
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 26 July 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 6, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Sue Anderson  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Jerry Miles 
Varsha Parmar 
 

Tony Ferrari 
Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Nana Asante 
2. Krishna Suresh 
3. Krishna James 
 

1. Chris Mote 
2. Susan Hall 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Lysandra Dwyer, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1264    E-mail:  lysandra.dwyer@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 26 July 2011 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub Committee; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN    
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-

Committee for the Municipal Year 2011/12. 
 

4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2011 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 

8. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 26 July 2011 

9. CHAIR'S REPORT   (Pages 9 - 44) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Partnership Development and Performance 

 
10. INFORMATION REPORT:  CAPITAL GOVERNANCE AND MONITORING   

(Pages 45 - 72) 
 
 Report of the Interim Director Finance and the Director of Legal & Governance 

Services. 
 

11. REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN 2010/11    
 
 Report of the Interim Director Finance 

 
For the sake of the economy, the report which was circulated on the agenda for the 
22 June 2011 Cabinet meeting is not being reprinted in this agenda. Members are 
therefore requested to bring their copy with them to the meeting.  
 

12. PROGRESS AGAINST THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY ACTION 
PLAN 2010/11   (Pages 73 - 94) 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director Place Shaping. 

 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 - 21 - 

 
 
 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 
SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE  

MINUTES 
 

6 APRIL 2011 
 

 
Chair: * Councillor Sue Anderson 
   
Councillors: 
 

* Tony Ferrari 
* Barry Macleod-Cullinane  
 

* Jerry Miles 
* Varsha Parmar 
 

* Denotes Member present 
 
 

28. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at 
this meeting. 
 

29. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interests were declared: 
 
Agenda Item 13  - Response to Recommendations on Community 
Sustainability made by the Overview and Scrutiny Sustainability Review 
Councillor Sue Anderson declared a personal interest in that she was a 
volunteer walk leader, health trainer and neighbourhood champion.  She 
would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
  
Councillors Tony Ferrari and Varsha Parmar declared a personal interest in 
that they were neighbourhood champions.  They would remain in the room 
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 

30. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2011, be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record. 

Agenda Item 4 
Pages 1 to 8 

1



 

- 22 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 

 
31. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   

 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received at this meeting. 
 

32. References from Council and Other Committees/Panels   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no references. 
 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

33. Chair's Report   
 
The Sub-Committee received a report that set out the issues considered by 
the Chair since the last meeting of the Performance and Finance Sub-
Committee. 
 
In response to questions raised by the Committee, the Divisional Director of 
Finance and Procurement advised that: 
 
• in response to the concerns raised by the Sub-Committee in relation to 

budget forecasting compliance at the previous meeting, compliance 
matters were included in the reports prepared by Finance Business 
Partners for each Directorate.  It considered that this was the most 
effective and efficient way of managing non-compliance.  The 
Divisional Director indicated that she would be able to provide a fuller 
report on forecasting compliance at the end of Quarter 1.  Members 
considered that their understanding of the issue would be assisted by 
having the figures for non-compliance in departments in monetary as 
well as in percentage terms; 

 
• the budget was approved annually by Council and considered and 

monitored by Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  The Capital and Revenue 
accounts were monitored by finance officers on a monthly basis in 
accordance with the accounting principles that applied; 

 
• with regard to payment to suppliers, officers had initiated a number of 

actions that would tighten controls within the system used to raise 
purchase orders.  This would be closely monitored to ensure that the 
correct procedures to raise purchase orders and pay invoices received 
from suppliers were being followed.  The Chair and Vice-Chairman of 
the Sub-Committee would be briefed further on areas of non 
compliance. 

 
Members requested that officers provide more detailed monitoring information 
on the budget to the Sub-Committee.  In response, officers advised that this 
information would be presented quarterly to the briefing meetings with the 
Chair and Vice-Chairman of the Sub-Committee.  It was agreed that any 
concerns identified, would be brought to the attention of other Members of the 
Sub-Committee.  

2



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 - 23 - 

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

34. Draft Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee section of the 
Annual Report 2010/11   
 
The Sub-Committee received a report that contained the draft of the Sub-
Committee’s section of the Scrutiny annual report for 2010/11.  
 
Members commented that the draft was a fair representation of the Sub-
Committee’s work over the past municipal year.  
 
RESOLVED:  That the details of the draft report be noted.  
 

35. Revenue and Capital Monitoring for Quarter 3 as at 31 December 2010   
 
An officer presented a report that set out the Council’s revenue and capital 
monitoring position as at 31 December 2010. She stated that the report had 
previously been discussed at the Cabinet meeting on 10 February 2010. 
 
The Sub-Committee were advised that: 
 
• the total projected revenue outturn for the Council was £175.159m 

which represented an underspend of £0.866m, comprising a forecast 
overspend by Directorates of £0.416m and an underspend of £1.282m 
on corporate budgets; 

 
• from the total revenue carry forwards from 2009/10 of £2.153m, 

£1.978m had now been allocated.  However, as some of these projects 
did not go ahead, this money was reabsorbed by the general balance 
and used to support other Council projects.  

 
Members sought clarification on some key matters outlined in the report to 
which officers responded to as follows: 
 
• there was always a level of prudence in financial forecasts as there 

was an underlying assumption that directorates would take appropriate 
action to ensure they delivered within budget.  It was considered that 
this would improve the year end position on the balance sheet and 
reduce financial pressures on ongoing projects; 

 
• officers were keen to limit the number of carry forwards in the future.  

This would encourage directorates to continue to support projects that 
delivered on priorities and provided efficiencies. 

 
The Sub-Committee requested a reconciliation between the reduction in the 
forecast capital financing costs and the forecast spend on the capital 
programme. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

3



 

- 24 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 

36. Update on actions arising from the scrutiny review 'Delivering a 
Strengthened Voluntary Sector'   
 
The Sub-Committee received a report that presented an update on actions 
taken to address the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee report ‘Delivering a strengthened voluntary sector’ completed in 
December 2008. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the positive progress made, and its incorporation 
into the Third Sector Strategy working group action plan.  In addition, the Sub-
committee noted the progress against the recommendations that were 
adopted by Cabinet in March 2009. 
 
The Sub-Committee commented that the report did not fully consider the 
impact that the demise of Harrow Association of Voluntary Services (HAVS) 
would have on the recommendations outlined in the report.  The Sub-
Committee considered that the report should contain information that outlined 
any interim arrangements that had been put into place.  
 
In response, an officer advised that: 
 
• the Voluntary Sector Compact contained a set of principles that govern 

the relationship between the voluntary sector and the Council.  The 
delivery of actions around the Compact had been completed in 
partnership with the voluntary sector in Harrow which included HAVS 
as well as other organisations; 
 

• Compact challenges were monitored by the Service Manager of Policy 
and Partnerships.  Officers would seek clarification on how the 
voluntary sector would continue to be involved; 
 

• the funding code for the Compact document was subject to 
consultation with Councillors, officers and external colleagues.  It was 
anticipated that the final draft would be ready by July 2011; 
 

• officers would clarify whether a register of community premises for use 
by the voluntary and community sector had been compiled; 
 

• the Council had entered into an informal agreement for joint line 
management responsibility of the funding officer.  Although the post 
was jointly funded by the Council, HAVS had overall responsibility for 
the day-to-day management of the post;  
 

• officers would provide a further update on the implications of the 
closure of HAVS on the delivery of recommendations made by 
Overview and Scrutiny. 
 

Following the discussion, the Sub-Committee agreed that officers prepare a 
revised report on the impact of the HAVS closure and delivery of 
recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny to a future meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

4



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 - 25 - 

 
RESOLVED:  That 

 
(1) the report be noted; 

 
(2) officers prepare a report for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee that 

outlined the implications of HAVS closure on the delivery of 
recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny. 

 
37. Updated Response to Scrutiny Standing Review of the Budget (Report 

from Phase Two)   
 
An officer presented a report that provided an update to the recommendations 
in the report from Phase Two of the Scrutiny Standing Review of the Budget.  
An updated version of Appendix 1 to the report, which included the Corporate 
Director of Place Shaping’s response to the recommendations, was tabled at 
the meeting.  The Sub-Committee agreed to consider it as a matter of urgency 
to ensure that the responses to the recommendations from the Corporate 
Director of Place Shaping could be considered. 
 
The officer referred to the recommendations and reported that: 
 
• the Council had compiled a property strategy that had been used as a 

guide for asset development and disposal decisions during 2010/11.  
Following changes in relation to the localism agenda and within the 
National Health Service (NHS) by the coalition government, Harrow’s 
Strategic Partnership (HSP) wide strategy had not been developed 
further; 

 
• engagement with partners, including the police, Primary Care Trust 

(PCT) and doctors would influence future asset planning.  This ongoing 
collaboration would contribute to the redevelopment of the Civic Centre 
and integration of the children’s strategy; 

 
• officers had made good progress in finalising the planning documents 

that formed the Local Development Framework (LDF) Core Strategy. 
The strategy had been revised and restructured on an area basis.  An 
area action plan for the Harrow and Wealdstone Intensification Area 
had been incorporated in the Local Development Scheme (LDS).  The 
scheme set out the timetable for the preparation of documents that 
supported the implementation of the Core Strategy; 

 
• in response to the fourth recommendation, co-location arrangements 

with the Council’s partners’ had taken place.  Examples of these 
arrangements included Alexandra Avenue Health Centre, 
Neighbourhood Resource Centres and Safer Neighbourhood Offices.  
The 2011/12 capital Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provided 
an opportunity for the acquisition of property to develop further 
strategic objectives; 

 

5



 

- 26 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 

• an Area Action Plan (AAP) for Central Harrow had incorporated the 
Strategic Sites Development Programme recommended by the review. 
Consultation on the AAP was programmed to commence in Spring 
2011.  The final AAP would identify key development sites owned by 
the Council and would support a strategy on how to develop these sites 
in the future; 

 
• in the current economic climate, the commercial property portfolio 

continued to be managed and maintained with a high level of 
occupancy which was currently held at 99%.  Leases and rents totalled 
£2 million and officers would explore whether these premises could be 
used by the third sector. 

 
In response to a request from Members, an officer confirmed that the Sub-
Committee would receive an update on whether the Council was receiving the 
best value out of the existing property portfolio. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.   
 

38. Response to Recommendations on Community Sustainability made by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Sustainability Review   
 
The Sub-Committee received a report that set out the Council’s response to 
the recommendations for the community sustainability set out in the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee’s ‘Sustainability Review’ completed in February 2010.  
An officer reported that the actions taken in response to the recommendations 
outlined in the review supported the Council’s vision of ‘Working together:  
Our Harrow, Our Community’ and its corporate priorities.  She added that 
officers were continuing to promote community cohesion by supporting new 
arrivals in the borough and undertaking neighbourhood projects.  
 
Members sought clarification on a number of matters outlined in the appendix 
to the report, to which the officer responded as follows: 
 
• some strands of the action plan outlined proposals that should improve 

community engagement.  It was noted that the demonstration in 
September 2009 had been successfully managed by the Council in 
partnership with leaders of the Muslim community.  This success was 
partly attributed to the intelligence gathering and planning completed 
by the Council and its partners.  Other local authorities had cited the 
management of the demonstration as an example of good practice; 

 
• officers had considered and implemented appropriate intervention 

measures that addressed extremism and provided support to 
vulnerable individuals.  Schools and communities worked in 
partnership with the police by identifying those at risk of extremism and 
taking necessary action; 

 
• community cohesion activity within schools might be affected by some 

schools being awarded academy status as these schools would be 

6



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 April 2011 - 27 - 

independent of local authority control.  Changes within OFSTED would 
also impact on how this could be delivered in the future; 

 
• officers would present an updated Community cohesion action plan 

that reflected changes that had been made, to the next meeting of the 
Chair and Vice-Chairman. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the update be noted.  
 

39. Sustainability review (2009-10) - Progress report on Climate Change   
 
The Sub-Committee were asked to accept the Information Report that 
provided an update on the actions taken in relation to the recommendations 
arising from the sustainability review completed by Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
It was agreed that the Chair and Vice-Chairman would receive a briefing on 
the report.  Members requested that a more comprehensive report, that 
included comments from the Cabinet meeting on 19 April 2011, be presented 
at a future meeting. 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the item be deferred; 
 
(2) the Chair and Vice-Chairman receive a briefing on the report; 
 
(3) officers present a comprehensive report to a future meeting of the  

Sub-Committee. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.35 pm, closed at 9.35 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR SUE ANDERSON 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

PERFORMANCE AND 
FINANCE SCRUTINY 
SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

26 July 2011 

Subject: 
 

Chair’s report 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director, 
Partnership Development and 
Performance 
 

Scrutiny Lead 
Member area: 
 

All areas 
 

Exempt: No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

• Appendix A – Note of Chair’s 
briefing held on 27 June 2011 

• Appendix B – Update on indicators 
selected for further monitoring at 
Q3 2010/11 

• Appendix C – Community Cohesion 
Action Plan 2011/2012 – update  

• Appendix D – Note of Chair’s 
briefing on Sustainability Review 
held on 11 May 2011 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out issues considered by the Chair since the last meeting of 
the Performance and Finance scrutiny sub-committee.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
• The sub-committee is requested to note the report.  

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 9 to 44 

9



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
 
This report outlines the work of the Chair and Vice-Chair since the last 
meeting of the sub-committee, held on 6 April 2011.   
 
Background 
 
Briefing – 27 June 2011 
A briefing for the Chair and Vice-Chair was held on 27 June.  A note of the 
briefing is available at Appendix A.  The meeting covered:    
 
• Capital overspend 2010/11 
• Budget outturn 2010/11 
• Budget forecasting in SAP 
• Quarter 4 2010/11 and Annual Corporate Scorecards – including an 

update on performance queries raised at Q3 (see Appendix B) 
 
It also included the updated Community Cohesion Action plan which was 
requested by the sub-committee.  The updated action plan is attached to this 
report as Appendix C.  
 
A note of the Chair’s meeting with the Head of Climate Change, to discuss the 
Sustainability Review (2009/10):  Progress report on Climate Change is 
included with this report as Appendix D.  
 
Agenda items for 26 July 2011 
Items were agreed as follows: 
 
• P&F Chair’s report 
• Capital governance and monitoring 
• Revenue and capital outturn 2010/11 
• Sustainability review – report on progress – economic development 
 
Financial Implications 
There are no specific implications arising from this report.  
 
Performance Issues 
This report deals with matters of financial and service performance 
throughout.   
 
Environmental Impact 
Not applicable. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
Not applicable. 

10



 
Corporate Priorities 
The work of the sub-committee addresses all of the council’s corporate 
priorities.   
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer, 020 8420 9203, 
heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
Background Papers:   
 
Strategic Performance Report (Q4/Annual) – available at: 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&MId=60639   
(Cabinet, 21 July 2011) 
 
Revenue and Capital Outturn 2010/11 – available at:  
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s89120/Revenue%20and%20Ca
pital%20Outturn%20Report.pdf (Cabinet, 22 June 2011)  

11



Appendix A 
 
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Chair’s briefing – notes 
 
Monday 27 June 
 
Attendees: 
• Councillor Sue Anderson, Chair 
• Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane, Vice-Chair (items 4-7) 
• Julie Alderson, Director of Finance (items 1-4) 
• Jennifer Hydari, Divisional Director, Corporate Finance & Procurement 

(items 1-3) 
• Jon Turner, Divisional Director HRD & Shared Services, (items 1-4) 
• Martin Randall, Senior Performance Officer (items 1-4) 
• Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer 
 
1. Capital overspend 2010/11 – update 

A detailed implementation plan arising from the investigation reports into 
the capital overspend is being monitored by GARM (Governance, Audit 
and Risk Management) Committee as well as by CSB (Corporate Strategy 
Board).   
 
As well as addressing the recommendations, work is underway to ensure 
that the problems identified by the investigation reports into the capital 
overspend are addressed holistically.  This will enable expenditure to be 
planned appropriately, in accordance with good governance, and to deliver 
better value for money for the organisation.   
 
It is intended that the medium term financial strategy for 2012/13 and 
beyond will include the capital programme, which will be informed by a 
new Capital Strategy. The strategy will be based around the organisation’s 
priorities and needs.  Work is underway on the development of principles 
to underpin the Capital Strategy, for agreement by CSB.  It is intended that 
in future capital bids will be presented alongside revenue with the aim of 
achieving better integration.   
 
The reinvigorated Capital Forum is the first line challenge and provides 
approvals.  The Leader is required to approve expenditure over £500k, 
though in practice he approves all expenditure.  A list of items and when 
they were approved is also reviewed by Internal Audit.  Cost codes are not 
entered on SAP until items are approved.  The Interim Capital Programme 
Manager maintains an audit trail, undertakes monthly monitoring and tests 
coding; this is summarised at year-end.   
 
CSB has agreed that project management should be mandatory in future 
and there is a push for proper discipline on capital projects.  The financial 
regulations and contract procedure rules are also being reviewed as part 
of a review of governance arrangements.   
 
The Chair requested that she and the Vice-Chair be given updates at 
future briefings as appropriate.   See also item 7.   

12



 
2. Budget outturn 2010/11 

The Chair and Director of Finance discussed whether the Revenue and 
Capital Outturn report for 2010/11 should be included on the agenda.  See 
item 7.   

 
3. Budget forecasting in SAP 

As the briefing was too early in the financial year to provide information on 
budget forecasting at Q1, the Divisional Director, Corporate Finance & 
Procurement provided the Chair with some examples from some of the 
directorates at period 2.  This included the value of the budget for which a 
forecast had not been provided within the deadline, the percentage of the 
total budget and the number of cost centres affected.  She stressed that 
finance business partners had reviewed 100% of budgets.  The cost 
centres where forecasts had not been provided were not considered to be 
of high risk, to be particularly volatile or to suffer from lack of forecasting 
on an ongoing basis.   
 
The KP06 submission was just a part of the process.  The indicator itself 
did not measure the accuracy of the forecast.  KP06 was the starting point 
for further qualitative analysis.   
The finance team were responsible for reviewing the forecasts.   
 
Managers with low risk budgets should be expected to get on with 
completing their forecasts and allow finance business partners to 
concentrate on higher risk areas.   

 
4. Quarter 4/Annual Corporate Scorecard – to include update on 

performance queries raised at Q3  
 
Updates from Q3 
A detailed update on each of the indicators highlighted at Q3 is attached 
as an appendix.  Comments on the indicators were provided by the Senior 
Performance Officer.   

 
Indicator Comments and action to be taken 
NI 195 household 
waste recycled and 
composted 

No further monitoring required at this stage. 

NI 32 repeat 
incidents of 
domestic violence 

Monitoring at the Chair’s briefing to continue. 
 

NI 40 number of 
drug users in 
effective treatment  

This is a partnership indicator.  The Chair 
requested that further information be provided in 
order to better understand the indicator and 
comparisons with other boroughs.   

NI 64 – duration on 
the child protection 
register 

Monitoring at the Chair’s briefing to continue. 

% of children looked 
after allocated to a 
qualified social 
worker  

No further monitoring required at this stage. 

13



Indicator Comments and action to be taken 
PAF-D40 People 
receiving a review 
as a % of those 
receiving a service  

No further monitoring required at this stage. 

No. of households 
we assist with 
housing in the 
private rental sector 

No further monitoring required at this stage. 

NI 157a Processing 
of Major Planning 
Applications 

Monitoring at the Chair’s briefing to continue, on 
the basis of the replacement indicator for 2011/12. 
 

Customer 
satisfaction with 
responsive repairs 
service 

No further monitoring required at this stage. 

Former BV16a – % 
of employers 
declaring that they 
meet the DDA 
definition  
 

The Divisional Director HRD & Shared Services 
advised that a modification will be made in SAP to 
enable employees to update their own social 
identity status.  The issue remains with regard to 
how all staff will be able to access the system, but 
the Director advised that although kiosks could be 
provided it would still be difficult to reach some 
staff.  The only other way to capture this 
information was by surveying all staff which was 
costly.   
 
Part of the issue is changing perceptions and 
helping staff to feel more confident in declaring 
their status; 6% of staff declare a disability in the 
staff survey (anonymously) compared with 3% 
declaring a disability to their manager.    

Payment of invoices 
 

Work through the recession busting working group 
identified the need to pay small businesses 
promptly in order to avoid a detrimental impact on 
cash flow.  With regard to payment of large 
suppliers there is no specific policy as yet, but 
there is an opportunity to negotiate rebates with 
larger suppliers in return for paying invoices within 
an agreed timeframe.   
 
As well as representing good practice, purchase 
orders need to be raised in order to allow the 
Council to operate meaningful commitment 
accounting and secure good financial 
management.  It requires compliance by 
managers.   
 
Training in good financial management is available 
to managers through the Management 
Development Programme (MDP) on business 
management.   
 

14



Indicator Comments and action to be taken 
The Director of Finance advised that Internal Audit 
carried out a review in April in order to identify 
practical issues impacting on the ability to pay 
invoices within a 30 day period.  This could include 
contracts, VAT issues, bailiffs’ costs (charged after 
action has been taken) and buying occurring 
through other systems.  Internal Audit plan to 
review a month as part of this process.  These 
findings could then involve changes to SAP or 
other procedures.   
 
A business case for e-invoicing is also under 
development.  This will require suppliers to have 
the necessary technical capability, but for larger 
suppliers this can be written into the contract.   
 
Monitoring at the Chair’s briefing to continue, once 
the Internal Audit report has been issued. 

 
Quarter 4/Annual Scorecard 
While directorates are no longer required to collect national indicators, 
significant numbers have been retained by directorates.  This does 
however enable comparisons to be drawn with performance elsewhere.   

 
Indicator 
 

Comments/action to be taken 
NI 195c – Improved 
cleanliness – graffiti 
(quarterly) 

Declining performance appears to be an 
aberration. 
 
To monitor at the next Chair’s briefing.   

NI 125 – achieving 
independence for older 
people through rehab 
(quarterly) 

There are problems with the target for this 
indicator; no target or guidance has yet been 
issued by the Department of Health.   
 
To monitor at the next Chair’s briefing.   

Rate of fixed term 
exclusions (quarterly) 

Fixed term exclusions were at their lowest in 
the Autumn term.  Spring 2011 was a long 
term and may have had an impact.   
 
To monitor at the next Chair’s briefing.   

NI 109 number of Sure 
Start Children’s Centres 
(quarterly) 

The remaining three centres are to be 
launched in the Autumn term. 

NI 92 Narrowing the gap 
between the lowest 
achieving 20% in the 
EYFSP (Early Years 
Foundation Stage Profile) 
and the rest (annual) 

The gap has been reduced but an ambitious 
target was set.  Performance is therefore 
showing as high red.   
 

NI 101 Looked after 
children achieving 5 A*-C 
GCSEs (or equivalent) at 

Continued success with adoptions left an 
older cohort that was less stable, which had 
an impact on this indicator. Two out of a 

15



Indicator 
 

Comments/action to be taken 
Key Stage 4 (including 
English and mathematics) 
(annual) 

cohort of 17 young people obtained 5 A*-C 
including English & Maths, seven young 
people obtained 5 GCSE's grade A* - G. The 
Virtual Head teachers only tracked pupils in 
Borough for 2009-10 and we had nine 
children out of Borough. Seven young people 
did not sit any exams. 
From 2010 - 11, Virtual Head teachers will 
continue tracking pupils including those out 
of Borough. 
 
The Chair and Vice-Chair requested further 
information regarding the lack of inclusion of 
the out of borough pupils within the cohort 
tracked.   

NI 107 % pupils achieving 
L4 or above in both 
English and maths at KS2 
for BME groups (annual) 

The Chair and Vice-Chair requested further 
information on the size of each cohort and 
the percentage of the school population this 
represented.   
 

% pupils achieving 5+ A*-
C including English and 
mathematics GCSEs for 
White British pupils 
eligible for FSM (free 
school meals) (annual) 

The Chair and the Vice-Chair requested 
further information on the rationale for the 
target set as well as the size of the cohort. 
 

Customer satisfaction 
with the responsive 
repairs service (quarterly) 

The return of ‘low red’ was based on five 
surveys.  The Chair and Vice-Chair 
requested further information on the number 
of cases of ASB.  All tenants who had had an 
ASB case were surveyed to determine 
satisfaction. 

 
5. Community Cohesion Action plan – update 

The action plan update was noted.  The Vice-Chair asked that he be 
provided with further clarification on the current position with regard to 
grants to the voluntary sector.1   

 
6. Note of the Chair’s meeting with the Head of Climate Change 

The report of the meeting was noted.  It was agreed that the climate 
change indicators be considered at the next Chair’s briefing.   

 
7. Confirmation of agenda items for P&F meeting – 26 July 2011 

The Chair and Vice-Chair discussed the briefings.  It was agreed that the 
agenda should include a capital governance report, providing the sub-
committee with an outline of the governance structure for capital 
monitoring.  In addition they requested that the report demonstrate how 
last year's capital overspend would have been picked up by the new 

                                            
1 Since the meeting, the Chair has sought further clarification on the update numbered 6.6.  
Details will be provided at the sub-committee meeting if required.   

16



arrangements.  The agenda should also include the Revenue and Capital 
outturn report for 2010/11 to ensure that scrutiny members have the 
opportunity to consider the final position.   
 
The Chair and Vice-Chair agreed the agenda as follows: 
 
• P&F Chair’s report 
• Capital governance and monitoring 
• Revenue and capital outturn 2010/11 
• Sustainability review – report on progress – economic development 

 
 
Heather Smith 
Scrutiny Officer 
heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk  
020 8420 9203

17



 

APPENDIX B – Performance & Finance Sub-Committee – Chair’s briefing – 27 June 2011  
 
Update on indicators selected for further monitoring at Q3 2010/11 

NI Ref: Indicator Description 
Polarity 
Good to 
be High 
� or 
Low �? 

On 
corporate 
Scorecard 
2009/ 10 

2009/10 
Target 
Q4 

2009/10 
Actual 
Q4 

2009/10 
Q4 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q3 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q3 

2010/11 
Q3 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q4 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q4 

2010/11 
Q4 

Status 

             

NI 192   NI 192 Household waste 
recycled and composted 

� � 47% 46.40% A 48% 45% A 50% 51% LG 
Q4 figure to be verified. However, it is anticipated that the 50% annual target will be exceeded but the annual outturn could range between 
49.5 to 51.5%. The final outturn will be confirmed during Q1 2011/12. 
 
NI 32 NI 32 Repeat incidents of 

domestic violence 
� � 12.50% 23% HR 25% 41% HR 25% 38% HR 

Of the cases referred to the MARAC  in Q4, 38% had been referred back within 12 months. Of the eight cases, one individual was referred 
back four times, accounting for half. Over the past year a programme of training and information across involved professionals in the 
Borough has raised awareness of the processes around domestic violence incidents and raised reporting levels. Recording processes are 
also now more accurate. The level of reported repeat incidents is now thought to be stabilising and is comparable with best practice 
MARACs. The target for 2011/12 has been adjusted accordingly. Funding has been agreed in principle to support and mainstream DV 
support in Harrow for 2011/12 and for future years will be considered in the next budget round. 
 
NI 40  NI 40 Number of drug users 

recorded as being in 
effective treatment 

� � 435 402 LR 431 404 LR 435 402 LR 

A drop in the number of clients in the quarter was due to the discharge of 15 clients with eight successful completions. Achievement of the 
year-end target will be measured in June owing to the requirement of a 12 week retention. The Probation Service has set up a system to 
identify and refer additional clients and other actions are in place to encourage take-up. 
 
NI 64 NI 64 (PAF C21) Duration on 

the Child Protection Register 
� � 10% 3.64% LG 10% 13.51% A 10% 16.67% LR 

Child Protection Challenge Panels are being held to ensure all cases of over 18 months are receiving additional scrutiny. There are 
currently 24 children in this group. These plans will be discussed at the Challenge Panels. A new local indicator to reduce the number of 
children with plans 2years+ will further focus on reducing the numbers in 2011/12. 

18



NI Ref: Indicator Description 
Polarity 
Good to 
be High 
� or 
Low �? 

On 
corporate 
Scorecard 
2009/ 10 

2009/10 
Target 
Q4 

2009/10 
Actual 
Q4 

2009/10 
Q4 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q3 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q3 

2010/11 
Q3 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q4 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q4 

2010/11 
Q4 

Status 

 
 % of Children Looked After 

allocated to a qualified 
Social Worker 

� � 100% 98.73% A 100% 96.12% A 100% 99.28% A 

At the snapshot date, 2 out of 141 children looked after cases appeared not to be allocated on the system but there was a qualified social 
worker responsible for each case. Request made for records to be updated. 
 
 PAF-D40 People receiving a 

review as a % of those 
receiving a service. 

� � Not 
available 

    65% 63.70% A 87% 86.70% LG 

Headline: Maximum number of clients reviewed. 
Context: The indicator can never reach 100% because clients may die or move away/cease to receive services during the course of the 
year, before we can review them.  In this context following data analysis 87% was the maximum we could achieve on this indicator and 
therefore is an excellent result. 
 
 No. of households we assist 

with housing in the private 
rental sector 

� � Not 
available 

    240 187 HR 250 272 HG 

We met our revised target in spite of the difficult housing market. 
 
NI 
157a 

NI 157a Processing of Major 
Planning Applications 

� � 60% 85% HG 60% 50% HR 60% 66% HG 
Improvement in Q4 and overall for year end. (Revised indicator applies in 2011/12.)  
 
 Customer satisfaction with 

responsive repairs service 
� � 92% 89% A 92% 87% LR 93% 88% LR 

Performance in quarter 4 was 88% against a target of 93%. In retrospect it is considered that expectations were too high and a revised 
target will be applied for 2011/12. 

19



 

NI Ref: Indicator Description 
Polarity 
Good to 
be High 
� or 
Low �? 

On 
corporate 
Scorecard 
2009/ 10 

2009/10 
Target 
Q4 

2009/10 
Actual 
Q4 

2009/10 
Q4 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q3 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q3 

2010/11 
Q3 

Status 
2010/11 
Target 
Q4 

2010/11 
Actual 
Q4 

2010/11 
Q4 

Status 

 
 BV 16a % of employees 

declaring that they meet the 
DDA definition 

� � 3% 1.91% HR 3% 1.81% HR 3% 1.82% HR 

Standing at High Red for some time, this indicator registers 1.82% against a target of 3% - a marginal improvement but below 2009/10 
outturn. It has been highlighted by the Corporate Equality Group as the recent staff survey suggests a significantly larger proportion of 
disabled persons on staff than this indicates. It is intended to review the indicator following the planned refresh of equalities data for staff. 
 
 BV 8 Percentage of invoices 

paid on time 
� � 95% 80% HR 95.0% 78.0% HR 95.0% 72.0% HR 

High Red for an extended period, this measure deteriorated further in Q4 . An internal audit review is under way to investigate invoice 
processes further, following which the Corporate Strategic Board will review policies and processes. 
 
Additional information: 
 Monetary value of invoices 

where the SAP purchase 
order was raised after the 
invoice date 

      £11.2m 
(29% of 
invoices 

processed) 

  £8.5m 
(21.6% of 
invoices 

processed) 

 

 Total monetary value of PO 
invoices processed in 
quarter 

      £38m   £32m  

 
 
 % of cost centres for which 

SAP budget forecast 
completed 

� � 100% 100% - 100% 92% LR Not required for Q4 
 
 

Managers are requested to review their outturn at year end.  They are not required to prepare a forecast on SAP. 
 
Prepared by the Corporate Performance Team, June 2011.

20



 

Appendix C - Community Cohesion Action Plan 2011/2012 
1.  % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area 

Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and dignity  
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

1.1 Raise profile and 
increase 
community 
interaction with on-
line Community, 
Faith and Cultural 
Calendar 

Existing 2011 - 21012 Community 
Development 
Services 
(John Tucker) 

Increased online 
use measured by 
number of visits 

Improved 
understanding of 
commonality and 
diversity.  

Updated for 2011. 
Improved 
community service 
through ‘What’s 
On’ online events 
calendar 

1.2 Delivery of Under 
One Sky 2011 

Raised levels of 
income through 
stalls and ticket 
charges. In-kind 
support, external 
community and 
business support 

Ongoing with 
event delivery on 
June 26 2011 

Community 
Development 
Services 
(John Tucker) 

Increased 
community 
participation and 
attendance by 
local residents. 

Improved 
perceptions of 
community 
cohesion and 
improved 
understanding of 
commonality and 
diversity.  

Delivery plan in 
place 
 
 

1.3 Work in 
partnership with 
community and 
faith partners to 
support the 
delivery of  multi-
faith events 

Existing including 
advice and 
guidance for event 
delivery 

2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
Services 
(John Tucker) 

No. of events, 
community 
feedback and 
participation; 
attendance 
numbers. 

Strengthened 
inter-faith 
relations. 
 

Second Open 
Faith Weekend 
held in Nov 10 as 
part of National 
Interfaith Week 
 

1.4 Third Party 
Reporting roll out 
to all equality 
strands 
 

Existing +LAA 
Reward funding 
(₤4,000) 

2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
Services 
(Jasbinder 
Baddhan) 

No. of hate crime 
incidents. 
Victim satisfaction 
survey 
Sanction detection 
rate 

Community 
confidence in 
reporting hate 
crime. 

Action plan 
agreed. The Hate 
Crime Working 
Group (with 
representatives 
from all diversity 
strands) is meeting 
monthly to take 
this project 
forward. 

21



1.  % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area 
Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and dignity  

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
1.5 Community 

tension monitoring  
Existing 2011 - 2012 Community 

Development 
services 
(Samia Malik) 
 

Monthly returns  Community 
tensions are 
monitored and 
prompt action 
taken to ease 
tensions when 
they arise. 

Process in place 
for gathering 
community tension 
responses across 
the Council and 
partner agencies.  

1.6 Multi agency 
Prevent Panel to 
support individuals 
vulnerable to 
radicalisation 

Existing + support 
from the Channel 
team (Met. Police) 
 

2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
services 
(Samia Malik) 

Number of 
individuals referred 
and supported. 

Support for local 
vulnerable 
individuals put in 
place on a case by 
case basis. 
 

To date local 
support has been 
put in place. If a 
case were to 
require greater 
intervention the 
Channel team will 
need to assist in 
identifying 
appropriate 
support. 

1.7 Establish Cricket 
initiative across 
Harrow 
 
 

SNT & Partnership 
Unit 

 April 2011 - March 
2012 

Harrow Police  
(Nick Davies / 
Stuart Ward) 

Each SNT and 
school to have 
access to a Level 
1 MCC trained 
coach. 
 
Borough wide 
tournament to take 
place in Summer 
2011 

Using cricket as a 
medium to bring 
together different 
communities and 
teaching self-
discipline and 
team working to 
the young people 
taking part. 

The scheme has 
now been rolled 
into six schools. 
Engagement with 
around 240 
children a week 
takes place across 
the borough. A 
summer 
programme is 
being designed. 
 

22



1.  % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area 
Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and dignity  

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
1.8 Walk Your Way to 

Health 
 
 

Coordinator’s time, 
30 volunteer walk 
leaders, a small 
budget 

2011 - 2012 NHS Harrow, 
Public Health, 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Coordinator 
(Denise 
Thiruchelvam) 

Health 
Questionnaire to 
monitor uptake 
and target groups 

Increased physical 
activity (walking) in 
individuals from 
BME communities 
whilst improving 
community 
cohesion 

Currently 14% of 
walkers are from 
BME groups which 
is under 
representation of 
the community 

1.9 Training on 
Community 
Cohesion in 
schools 
 

EMAS & A&I staff 2011 - 2012 Achievement and 
Inclusion (A&I) and 
EMAS 
(Joy Collins / 
Zaitun Virani) 

Successful Ofsted  
judgments in 
related aspects: 
attainment, 
Closing the Gap, 
rates of progress, 
working with 
parents and social, 
moral and spiritual 
education. 

Cohesive, happy, 
healthy safe 
communities 

Different schools 
are at different 
stages – from 
outstanding to 
satisfactory 

1.10 Organise ‘A Young 
Peoples 
Conference’  
 

Subscriptions, 
donations from all 
faiths plus Council 
grant and 
partnership 
contributions 

One day 
conference, 
pending on funds 
received in 2011 

Harrow Inter Faith 
Council and 
partners 
(Mary Hale) 

Organised 
individual 
workshops 
measured by 
young people 
attending  

To encourage 
dialogue and 
understanding 
between the youth 
from all  faiths and 
philosophy’s in 
Harrow 

HIFC have tried 
and tested this 
activity (in 2007). 
The youth enjoyed 
it and intimated 
they would attend 
future conferences  

1.11 Projects 
supporting youth 
and raising 
awareness of Inter 
Faith Issues in 
cooperation with 
Youth Parliament 
and N.W. 
Middlesex Scouts. 

Subscriptions, 
Donations and 
partnership 
contributions. 
Subscriptions for 
2011 to date £595. 
Grant of £2,900 
requested from 
Harrow Council. 

April 2011 to April 
2012 

Harrow Inter Faith 
Council E.C. 
Officers and 
members 
HIFC Executive 
Committee, 
Officers and sub-
committees 
appointed by EC. 

Measured by 
partnership and 
audience 
attendance 
 
 
 
 
Measure by 

To encourage all 
faiths to talk to and 
learn from each 
other. To share 
knowledge and 
understanding of 
diversity. 
Development of 
respect and 

The working party 
partnership meet 
regularly to 
organise the 
activities and plan 
events. 
 

23



1.  % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area 
Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and dignity  

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
Half marathon 
along a route 
taking in important 
places of worship 
in Harrow. Joint 
celebrations of 
important religious 
festivals. An Arts 
Festival with all 
faith communities 
invited to 
participate. 
Possible fund 
raising activities. 
 

 
 

to organise 
specific activities. 

attendance and by 
observable 
cooperation and 
collaboration of 
groups from 
different faith 
groups in initiating, 
planning and 
organising 
activities. 

friendly 
relationships and a 
spirit of 
cooperation and 
collaboration 
among members. 
Awareness of Inter 
faith activities and 
issues among the 
youth. 

 

24



 
2 Environment for a thriving third sector  
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

2.1 To encourage 
applications from 
voluntary and 
community groups 
for projects that 
support cohesion. 
 

Grants budget 
(£669,360) & staff 
time 

March 2011 and 
on-going 
monitoring 

Community 
Development 
Services 
(Melvyn Leach) 

Number of grants 
awarded to 
projects that 
promote 
community 
cohesion. 
 

Improved 
perceptions of 
community 
cohesion across all 
communities. 

131 applications 
were received for 
the grants 
application round 
2011/12.  43 
applications 
indicated that the 
proposed project 
supported the 
Council’s corporate 
priority of ‘United 
and involved 
communities: a 
Council that listens 
and leads’. Final 
grant 
recommendations 
are pending, once 
finalised an 
analysis of funded 
projects will be 
undertaken to 
quantify projects 
that support 
community 
cohesion.  

2.2 Development and 
delivery of Third 
Sector Strategy 
 

Realignment of 
existing resources 
and external 
funding 

2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
Services (and the 
Third Sector 
Strategy  Working 
Group) 

Increased VCS 
engagement 
opportunities. 
No. of training / 
capacity building 
initiatives 

Strengthened 
partnerships and 
role of VCS in 
delivery of public 
services. 

 A third sector 
strategy working 
group has been set 
up to monitor the 
delivery of the 
action plan.  The 

25



2 Environment for a thriving third sector  
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

(Kashmir Takhar) delivered. 
Increased 
opportunities for 
commissioning 
 

group has 
undertaken an 
exercise to map all 
council support to 
the VCS, it is also 
monitoring the 
impact of funding 
cuts on the VCS. 

 

26



 
3 Migrants English Language skills and knowledge  
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
3.1 Development of 

ESOL action plan 
Existing 2011 - 2012 Community 

Development 
Services 
(Geoff Trodd) 

ESOL registrations, 
classes, 
progressions 

Access to English 
language training 
that meets the 
needs of the 
learner to aid 
integration. 

There have been 
major changes to 
national ESOL 
funding and learner 
eligibility, resulting 
in a reduction of 
ESOL provision run 
through the FE 
Colleges and 
School clusters. An 
ESOL Group of 
providers is 
meeting regularly 
to look at planning 
pre-entry provision 
and better sign 
posting for 2011/12 

3.2 Family Learning 
programmes in 
Numeracy, and 
Wider Family 
Learning 

Skills Funding 
Agency Family 
Learning funding 

 
2011 - 2012 

Community 
Development 
Services 
(Geoff Trodd) 

% of families from 
BME communities 
% of new learners 

Increased 
participation in 
community 
learning. 

50 families from 
localities of 
greatest need 
engaged in family 
learning and 
signposted to 
further 
learning/training 

3.3 Basic ICT  and 
computers with 
English 
programmes,  run 
at Beacon Centre, 
Sangat Centre, 
KLC and SKSS 

 Skills Funding 
Agency  funding 

 
2011 - 2012 

Community 
Development 
Services 
(Geoff Trodd) 

% of families from 
BME communities 
% of new learners 

Increased 
participation in 
community 
learning. 

40 learners 
engaged in 
community-based 
ICT programmes 

27



3 Migrants English Language skills and knowledge  
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

Temple 

3.4 To support the 
delivery of ESOL in 
schools and 
Children’s Centres 

Early Intervention 
Grant and via Pupil 
Premium  

2011 - 2012 Integrated Early 
Years and 
Community 
Services 
(Wendy Beeton) 
and schools 

Number of classes, 
enrolments and 
destination of 
learners. 

Improved access 
to English 
language classes 
to ease integration 
of new arrivals. 

Part of the 
Extended Schools 
agenda and 
Narrowing the Gap. 
Schools and 
Children’s Centre 
partnership 

 
 
 
 
4 Participation in regular volunteering 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
4.1 One-4-One 

employee 
volunteering 
scheme promoted 
across the Council  

Existing  2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
Services 
(Samia Malik) 

Increase in number 
of staff 
volunteering 
 
Increase in number 
of volunteering 
opportunities 
registered on 
scheme. 

Increased 
community 
involvement 
through 
volunteering in the 
community. 

To date 63 
members of staff 
have participated in 
the scheme. 

4.2 Harrow’s Heroes 
volunteer awards 
ceremony  

Existing + LAA 
Reward Funding 
(₤4,500 in 2011) 
and sponsorship 

November 2011 Community 
Development 
Services and 
partners. 
(Samia Malik) 

Number of 
nominations / press 
coverage / event 
feedback / 
increased numbers 

To raise the profile 
of volunteering, 
celebrate the 
contribution 
volunteers make 

Hugely successful 
Harrow’s Heroes 
event delivered in 
2010, with just over 
100 nominations. 

28



4 Participation in regular volunteering 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

of volunteers. 
 

and encourage 
others to volunteer. 

Planning has 
commenced for the 
2011 event. 

4.3 Increase the 
number of 
volunteers helping 
in libraries and 
museum.  
 

Existing plus 
resources identified 
by Harrow College 

April 2010 - May 
2011 

Harrow Library 
Service and 
Harrow College 
(Ian McNicol) 

Increase in the 
number of 
volunteers 

Increased 
opportunities for 
isolated individuals 
to participate in 
local activity. 

15 in libraries 
2 in Housebound 
Service 
8 at the museum 

4.4 Ensure local 
people know how 
to register for the 
official London 
2012 Volunteer 
Programme.  

Existing Ongoing to 2012 Cultural Services  
(Ian McNicol) 

Numbers of 
volunteers 
participating in 
2012 

Active participation 
of local people in 
London 2012 

The date for 
registration has 
now passed. 
Borough 
breakdowns not yet 
available. 

4.5 Delivery of National 
Citizenship project 

National 
Citizenship Service 
funding 

2011 - 2012 Children’s Services 
(Joy Shakespeare) 

Project plan 
contains measures  

Young people from 
a range of diverse 
backgrounds are 
enabled to gain 
work experience 
through 
volunteering and 
qualifications 

This project builds 
on the previous 
successful V Talent 
project and delivers 
citizenship through 
volunteering. 

 

29



 
5 % of people who feel they can influence decisions in their locality 

Civic Participation in the local area 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
5.1 Neighbourhood 

Champions  
 
 

Existing 2011 -2012 Public Realm 
(Jerry Hickman) 

Numbers of 
neighbourhood 
champions / 
Number of issues 
reported and dealt 
with 
 
Neighbourhood 
Champion 
Conference 
 

Positive civic 
engagement and 
involvement of 
local community 
volunteers. 
 
Supporting NC’s to 
increase links with 
other NC’s, share 
ideas and 
successes. 
Develop strategies 
to increase 
intergenerational 
and cross 
community 
problem solving 

NC scheme was 
official launched on 
17th March 2010. 
By March 2011 672 
NCs were trained 
and 560 were 
awaiting training. 
The aim is to have 
a NH for every 
road in Harrow. 

5.2 Residents 
Meetings 

Existing Ongoing Public Realm 
(Jerry Hickman) 

Feedback from 
residents and 
number of issues 
tackled. 
 
Supporting Safer 
Neighbourhood 
Teams – NC and 
Ward meetings 

Giving a voice to 
local residents and 
building trust in 
council services. 

Commissioned for 
operational 
reasons and used 
to give residents 
positive messages 

5.3 Pride in Harrow 
(Weeks of Action / 
Days of Action) 

Existing 2011 - 2012 Joint between 
Council, Police and 
other partners 
(Jerry Hickman) 

On site meetings 
with NC’s , 
residents,  
businesses 
Police, officers and 
Members 

Engaging and 
informing residents 
of council services 
and support. 
 
Consult with local 

Street opportunities 
to capture 
community interest 
and showcase 
community 
cohesion 

30



5 % of people who feel they can influence decisions in their locality 
Civic Participation in the local area 

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
 
Positive impacts 
delivered and 
resident feedback. 

people and 
partners to deliver 
positive outcomes  
 
 
 

5.4 Resident 
participation 

Dedicated budget 
for HFTRA, RI 
budget and an 
additional Resident 
Participation 
Officer recruited 

2011 -2012 Adults and Housing 
(Carol Yarde) 

Update on 
measure: Tenant 
and Leaseholder 
satisfaction 
surveys  
undertaken at end 
of 2010. 
Various RI 
activities including 
focus groups and 
residents panels. 
Residents involved 
in mystery 
shopping. 
More than 100 
residents new to 
involvement 
actively engaged 
over last 12 
months. 
Number of new 
residents that 
become actively 
involved in 2011 – 
2012. 
Survey to be 
undertaken bi-

53.8% of residents 
are satisfied that 
their views are 
being taken into 
account, whilst 
15.8% are 
dissatisfied. 
Satisfaction with 
the range of 
opportunities 
available to help 
shape and 
influence Housing 
Services is also 
58%, where 13% 
are dissatisfied  

The 2011/12 work 
plan for Resident 
Involvement will 
strive to further 
improve resident 
satisfaction in this 
area and to 
increase further the 
number of new 
residents that 
become actively 
engaged 

31



5 % of people who feel they can influence decisions in their locality 
Civic Participation in the local area 

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
annually (next 
survey: 2012) 

5.5 Better Together 
programme – to 
identify 
opportunities which 
engage residents 
in changing their 
behaviours to 
Improve outcomes 
and have a positive 
financial impact 
 

To be identified 2009 – 2013 Adults and Housing 
(Carol Yarde) 

Reputation Tracker  
 
Public health 
Indices 
 
 

Used innovative 
techniques called 
‘Triage Day’ to 
consult users on 
the replacement 
journey ‘Your 
future Our future’ 
public meeting as 
part of overarching 
Adults community 
engagement plan.  
Project went live on 
23 October.  All 
referrals for social 
care now going 
through the 
reablement front 
door. 

Resident 
satisfaction survey 
shows service 
improvement is 
now being seen by 
residents.  

5.6 Elected Youth 
Parliament to 
represent young 
people across 
Harrow  
 
 

Existing 2011 - 2012 Children’s Services 
(Joy Shakespeare) 

Measures for each 
activity are 
contained within 
the Youth 
Parliament 
programme 

Improved 
participation by 
young people in all 
aspects of council 
decision making, 
and raising 
awareness of 
issues such as 
bullying and the 
impact of the 
recession. 

Youth Parliament 
continues to deliver 
improved 
participation and 
has contributed to 
a range of 
consultations and 
events across the 
council. 

 

32



 
6 Access and fair treatment by local services 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
6.1 New Arrivals Task 

Force - currently 
focusing on the 
needs of the 
Afghan and Tamil 
communities 
 
 

To be identified by 
partners 

2011 - 2012 Community 
Development 
Services 
(Samia Malik) 

Measures for each 
activity will be 
contained within 
the action plan 

Improved quality of 
life for the Afghan 
and Tamil 
communities  

Community 
engagement and a 
needs assesment 
will be undertaken 
with the Afgan and 
Tamil communities, 
following which an 
action plan will be 
developed by 
partners.  Task 
Force meets 
quarterly to monitor 
progress. 

6.2 Development of an 
action plan in line 
with the Harrow 
Equalities Centre’s 
aims of promoting 
community 
cohesion, 
integration and a 
life free from 
discrimination and 
prejudice in 
Harrow. 

 

Harrow Council  
 
Trust for London 
EHRC 

2011 - 2012 Harrow Equalities 
Centre 
(Sami Aziz) 

New body 
established, 
supporting 
community 
cohesion and 
participation, active 
participation in 
relevant meetings. 

Increased access 
to advice, 
information and 
support on equality 
and human rights 
issues. 
 
Representation 
and championing 
of all equality 
strands 

New organisation 
launched and 
active. New 
Director recruited 
and started in April 
2011. An away day 
will be planed to 
discuss strategic 
directions and the 
Business Plan for 
the organisation 

6.3 Home Library 
Service - to 
increase use of the 
service by a 
programme of talks 
promoting the 

Existing resources 
–stock and staffing 

2011 - 2012 Home Library 
Service/Harrow 
Library Service 
(Ian McNicol) 

Increase in the 
number of 
residents using the 
Home Library 
Service. The target 
is a minimum of 

Access to Library 
Service for 
vulnerable people 
who otherwise 
would not be able 
to do so. 

120 new users of 
the service (2010-
2011). 

33



6 Access and fair treatment by local services 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

service to sheltered 
housing units and 
to older people. 

100 (during 2010-
2011) 

6.4 Establish Tamil 
forum 
 
 
 
 

SNT & Partnership 
unit  

By July 2011 Harrow Police 
(Inspector Aleks 
Pogroszewski) 

This will empower 
the community to 
provide 
constructive 
feedback to 
partnership so their 
needs can be 
better served. 

Better engagement 
and cooperation 
with young Tamils, 
increased 
knowledge of the 
problems/issues 
they face, enabling 
the police and local 
service providers to 
give them a better 
service. 

The Police have 
written to a number 
of local Tamil 
organisations and 
will now be 
arranging to meet 
with them to 
discuss the 
establishment of 
the Tamil forum. 

6.5 LGBT forum 
established and 
operates to support 
the needs of the 
LGBT community 
 
 

Community Safety 
& Partnership Unit 

On going quarterly 
meetings 2011 - 
2012 

Harrow Police 
(Inspector Stuart 
Ward)  

To support a 
Harrow borough 
LGBT forum to give 
members a vehicle 
to voice opinions, 
identify concerns 
and provide 
constructive 
criticism to service 
providers across 
the borough. 

Better engagement 
and cooperation 
with LGBT 
community leading 
to greater 
empowerment, 
mutual 
understanding and 
enabling the 
partnership to 
provide a better 
service through a 
focused response. 

The Harrow LGBT 
forum was 
established in 
January 2010, and 
now meets 
quarterly to take 
forward issues 
affecting the 
community. The 
group is supporting 
the Warren Lane 
project. The group 
facilitator from 
WLA has moved 
on so the group will 
need to become 
self sustaining. 

6.6 Promote universal 
access to 

Early Intervention 
Grant 

2011 - 2012 Integrated Early 
Years and 

Measures 
contained in 

Universal access to 
children’s centre 

2 Health Trainers 
are being trained to 

34



6 Access and fair treatment by local services 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

Children’s Centres 
for all Communities 

Community 
Services (IEYCS) 
(Wendy Beeton) 

Children’s Centre 
Strategy 

services. support a Mental 
Health project 
using the Lets Get 
Moving 
programme. 

6.7 Delivery of Young 
People’s Services 
Diversity Action 
Plan 

Existing  2011 - 2012 Children’s Services 
(Joy Shakespeare) 

Measures for each 
activity are 
contained within 
the plan 

Reduced 
disproportionality 
within the Criminal 
Justice System  
 

The action plan 
has been 
subsumed within 
the Divisional plan 
for Children’s 
Services, but 
outcomes relating 
to disproportionality 
are still being 
monitored through 
Safer Harrow. 

6.8 Development of 
Youth Crime 
Prevention 
initiatives including 
Triage and Early 
Intervention 

Existing 2011 - 2012 Children’s Services 
(Joy Shakespeare) 

Measures are 
contained in the 
Youth Justice Plan 
and the Safer 
Harrow Partnership 
Plan. 

Young people from 
a diverse range of 
backgrounds are 
helped to avoid 
offending and 
make a positive 
contribution to the 
community 

Triage and other 
interventions have 
been successful in 
reducing youth first 
time entrants to the 
Criminal Justice 
system by 45% 
over the last 3 
years.  

6.9 Delivery of Youth 
Justice Plan 

Youth Justice 
Board funding and 
Partner funding  

2011 - 2012 Young People’s 
Services 
(Joy Shakespeare) 

Measures for each 
activity are 
contained within 
the plan 

Young people from 
a diverse range of 
backgrounds are 
helped to avoid 
offending and 
make a positive 
contribution to the 
community. 

The Youth Justice 
Plan 2010-11 was 
published as a 
public document in 
June 2010 and was 
monitored by the 
Youth Justice 
Board. 

35



6 Access and fair treatment by local services 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

6.10 To address health 
inequalities in 
priority areas (eg. 
smoking cessation) 

NHS Harrow 
Health Trainers 
service 

2011 - 2012 Health Trainers 
Team 
Leader/Public 
Health 
(Denise 
Thiruchelvam) 

Number of events, 
talks to community 
groups and  
individuals 
supported 

Reduced health 
inequalities for 
Harrow residents 

All Health Trainers 
continue to support 
the Stop Smoking 
service with 
referrals to 
pharmacy service, 
staff events and 
one runs a clinic in 
area of high 
prevalence. 
65 people to 
pharmacy service 
for stop smoking 

6.11 Promote Mental 
Health within BME 
groups 

Mind in Harrow 
NHS Harrow 
Charitable Trusts 
Government Funds 

O2011 - 2012 Mind Harrow 
(Mark Gillham) 

Number of 
activities  

Reduced 
marginalisation and 
increased 
networking and 
support 

Local increase in 
BME population 
where mental 
health promotion 
support has been 
identified as a 
need. 

 

36



 
7 Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 3 qualification by the age of 19 

Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 2 qualification by the age of 19 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
7.1 Narrowing the Gap 

(NtG) in 36 
schools.  This 
programme targets 
Black Caribbean, 
Somali and White 
British on Free 
School Meals. 

EMA Grant  Current to 31st July 
2011 

EMAS (Ethnic 
Minority 
Achievement 
Service) 
(Joy Collins) 

Each school has 
Raising Attainment 
Plan (RAP) with 
identified actions 

Raised attainment 
for targeted 
groups. 

40 schools now 
involved.  Gap 
closed for BC in 
English at KS2 and 
closing for 
Somalies in 
English at KS2.  
Travellers included 
as a target group. 

7.2 Rights Respecting 
School Awards 
(RRSA) involving 
20 schools 
 
 
 

Schools & LA January 2010 – 
31st July 2011 

EMAS 
(Joy Collins) 

Reduction in 
number of racist 
incidents and 
bullying incidents.  

Communities 
respect each other 
and themselves 
and children grow 
up to be 
responsible global 
citizens 

Now 21 schools 
involved.  1 school 
achieved Award 
(Level 1) 5 
assessments 
booked. 

7.3 New Arrivals 
Project  
 

Migration Impact 
Funding 

September 2009 - 
April 2011 

EMAS 
(Joy Collins) 

10 parents/carers 
recruited in the first 
year, 10 in the 
following year 
 

75% of course 
participants 
progress to paid 
part-time or full-
time roles as 
parent 
ambassadors in 
Harrow schools 

Update (project 
concluded in April 
2011): 14 
completed Parent 
Ambassador 
Training course.  
All received work 
experience in 
schools supported 
by a trained 
Mentor. 2 have 
been via SLA with 
school.  Bespoke 
PA course now 
accredited and will 
run in September 

37



7 Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 3 qualification by the age of 19 
Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 2 qualification by the age of 19 

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
at Glebe Primary 
School. 
1 Primary and 1 
Secondary 
Consultant. 18 
schools targeted 
for support for New 
Arrivals re 
assessment, 
policy, resources, 
pedagogy. 

7.4 Harrow Weekend 
School 
 

John Lyons Charity January 2010 -
December 2013 

EMAS 
(Joy Collins) 

Study support in 
English, Maths and 
Science for 100 
children on 
Saturdays 
Partnership 
between 
mainstream 
schools. 

Improvement in 
pupils motivation 
and attitudes to 
learning and pupils 
make 3 sub levels 
of progress (the 
average is 2 in 1 
year) 

44% of children 
made 3 sub levels 
of progress.  63% 
at least 2 sub 
levels of progress.  
61% of children 
with SEN made 3 
sub levels of 
progress.  2 sub 
levels is the 
expected progress 
in a year. 
A second weekend 
schools provision 
was established at 
Stag Lane Junior 
School.   Currently 
applying for Big 
Lottery funding to 
sustain. 

7.5 Produce Welcome 
to Harrow 

EMA Grant 2011 - 2012 
 

EMAS 
(Joy Collins) 

Copy sent to all 
schools and 

Families who are 
new arrivals have 

Booklet + CD in 5 
languages. “Abdi’s 

38



7 Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 3 qualification by the age of 19 
Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 2 qualification by the age of 19 

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
publication  Children’s Centres 

 
information about 
Harrow and the UK 
educational 
system.   

Day” by Verna 
Wilkins a story 
commissioned by 
EMAS reflecting a 
Somali child 
growing up in a 
urban UK setting  
Welcome to 
Harrow Booklet 
sent to every 
school in Harrow 
July 2010.  Somali 
story book launch 
at Gayton Library 
Autumn 2010.  
Copies including 
CD of Teacher 
resources 
circulated to all 
schools and 
purchased by 
schools and 
Harrow Libraries. 
EMAS are now 
contacting other 
authorities to sell 
the resource 
developed in 
Harrow (2011 – 
2012). 

7.6 Achievement of 
UNICEF Rights 
Respecting 

Internal resource 
(EMA grant) 

2011 - 2012 EMAS (Joy Collins) Number of schools 
gaining the award 

Improvement of 
behaviour, 
attendance and 

Currently 21 local 
schools and 
engaged and one 

39



7 Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 3 qualification by the age of 19 
Reduce inequality gap in the achievement of a level 2 qualification by the age of 19 

 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
Schools Award 
(which promotes 
citizenship and 
community 
cohesion) 

attainment, 
parental and 
community 
engagement. 

has gained the 
award. 

 

40



 
8 % of people who feel that they belong to their neighbourhood 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  
8.1 Promotion of Credit 

Union 
£13k 2010/2011 
subordinated loan 
of £40k.  
2011/12 £12k 

March 2011 – 
March 2012 

M4Money, with 
Econ Devt Harrow 
Council (Mark 
Billington) 

FSA approval 
Launch 
Payroll Process in 
place 
HSP sign up 

Financial inclusion 
Circa 100 
members in 
Harrow 

Report to 
Corporate Director.  
Credit Union 
Champions Group 
The project has 
met membership 
targets. Has 
conducted 
outreach access 
Harrow, housing 
fairs, Catalyst 
Housing, colleges, 
and been 
extensively 
promoted in 
Harrow People. 
The Credit Union 
will be promoted 
again in 2011/12 

8.2 Delivery of 
Enterprising 
Harrow Action Plan 

Partnership 
resources.  

2010 - 2013 Economic 
Development 
(Mark Billington) 

Measures 
contained within 
plan. 

Reduced 
worklessness. 
Increased 
business growth 
and business start 
up. 
Additional support 
secured for 
workless residents, 
and support to 
district centre 
commenced, new 
commitment to 

Quarterly updates 
managed by the 
Group. 
Ongoing 

41



8 % of people who feel that they belong to their neighbourhood 
 Action Resources Timescale Responsibility Measure Outcome Update / Issues  

business 
introduced.  
Vacancy rates in 
the Town Centre 
declined.  

8.3 Recession Busting 
Group, Economic 
Recovery Plan 
 

Partnership 
resources.  

2010 - 2011 Economic 
Development 
(Mark Billington) 

Measures 
contained within 
plan. 

Increased access 
to advice and 
guidance, 
increased benefit 
take up, reduced 
worklessness, 
Business growth, 
business start up. 
Benefit take up 
increased. Over 90 
parents helped into 
employment. 

Quarterly updates 
managed by the 
Group. 

8.4 Mental Health 
Personal Trainers 
 
 
 
 

2 PT personal 
trainers, use of 
community based 
leisure and sport 
facilities 

2011 - 2012 NHS Harrow, 
CNWLH  
(Denise 
Thiruchelvam) 

Pre assessments 
and 3 month 
follow-ups. 

Increased physical 
activity levels, 
increased 
integration within 
community based 
activities, avoiding 
social exclusion 
and isolation. 

2 Health Trainers 
are being trained to 
support a Mental 
Health project 
using the Lets Get 
Moving 
programme. 

8.5 Work Clubs 2 job brokers and 
admin support.  

2011 - 2012 Victoria Isaacs 
Economic 
Development 

50 people into 
work, 2 volunteers 
trained 
 

Reduced 
unemployment for 
any Harrow 
resident. 

As at April 2011 9 
people have been 
assisted into work. 

 
 

42



 

Appendix D 
 
PERFORMANCE & FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 
 
Chair’s briefing meeting – Wednesday 11 May 2011 
 
Attendees 
• Councillor Sue Anderson, Chair 
• Andrew Baker, Head of Climate Change 
• Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Sustainability Review (2009/10) – Progress report on Climate Change 
 
Briefing  
The Head of Climate Change introduced the progress report and advised that 
the recommendations from the Sustainability Review conducted in 2009/10 
had been incorporated into the strategy.  Since then, the revised action plan 
for the strategy had been agreed by Cabinet in October 2010 and was 
consulted on in January/February 2011.  The progress report included the 
comments received and the council’s response.   
 
As the strategy was being refreshed, limited changes had been proposed as a 
result of consultation, other than revising the timeframe for actions to be 
completed.  However, there are plans for a re-working of the strategy in 
autumn 2011 at which point input from scrutiny could be beneficial.  It was 
hoped that the re-worked strategy would have a tighter focus on areas where 
it was most likely to have impact on carbon emissions.  For example, 
decisions taken in areas such as capital expenditure would need to take heed 
of the impact on carbon emissions.  Work with health partners and adults 
services on affordable warmth also meant that the link between carbon and 
fuel poverty was beginning to be made.   
 
The council has committed itself to reducing carbon emissions by 4% per 
annum.  Indicators are being developed to measure this.  It was agreed that 
scrutiny could consider the indicators after July 2011.   
 
Actions: 
The Chair recommends that: 
• The Sustainable Development and Enterprise leads consider receiving a 

briefing in autumn 2011 on climate change and the performance indicators 
associated with the strategy.  

• The Health and Social Care scrutiny sub-committee be requested to 
consider the affordable warmth strategy as part of its work on health and 
housing. 

• That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider commissioning a 
challenge panel on the refresh of the Climate Change Strategy in autumn 
2011. 

 
Heather Smith 
Scrutiny Officer 
heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk 
020 8420 9203 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

PERFORMANCE AND 
FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

26 July 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT - Capital 
Governance and Monitoring 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Julie Alderson, Interim Director of 
Finance; 
Hugh Peart, Director of Legal and 
Governance Services 
 

Scrutiny Lead 
Member area: 
 

Councillor Jerry Miles, Corporate 
Effectiveness Policy Lead Member and 
Councillor Tony Ferrari, Corporate 
Effectiveness Performance Lead Member 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A - Information Report to 
Governance, Audit & Risk Management 
Committee, 28 June 2011 – Capital 
Governance and Implementation Plan 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
At the request of the Chair and Vice-Chair of the sub-committee, 
the report presented to the Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee on Capital Governance has been 
included on the agenda.   
 
Recommendations: That the report be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 45 to 74 

45



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\7\AI00072773\$3ulupwlz.doc 

 

46



 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
As per the P&F Chair’s report (elsewhere on this agenda), the Chair and Vice-
Chair requested an item on new arrangements for capital governance.   
 
The report to the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee on 28 
June is therefore included on this agenda. 
 
The Director of Finance will be in attendance to respond verbally to questions 
from sub-committee Members on this report. 
 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for the covering report.   
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer, 020 8420 9203 
heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
Background Papers:   
Report to Cabinet, 15 December 2010, Capital Programme.  
Available at: 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&
MId=60259&Ver=4  
 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

28 June 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – 
Capital Governance and 
Implementation Plan 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Julie Alderson – Interim Director of 
Finance  
Hugh Peart – Director of Legal & 
Governance Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 – Approved Capital 
Projects/Business Cases 
 
Appendix 2 – Capital Implementation 
Plan 
 

 
 

Section 1 - Summary 
 
 
This report provides an update on capital governance and sets out the 
progress against the Capital Implementation Plan. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 

49



 

 

Section 2 - Report 
 
Background 
 
2.1  Following the investigation into the overspend in the Children’s Services 

capital programme Cabinet received a report in December 2010 setting 
out issues and the outcomes of two investigations, one focussing on 
project management, one on financial management. 

 
2.2 The investigations made a series of specific detailed recommendations, 

to avoid any recurrence of the issues which had affected the 
programme. Key staff within Finance, Children’s Services and 
Community & Environment have been working together on implementing 
these recommendations and in addition on a fundamental review of 
process to ensure that the Council has robust and holistic arrangements 
in place for both the development and implementation of its capital 
programme.  The key actions being taken to mitigate the immediate risks 
and develop a robust framework for the future are outlined below:-  

 
Key Actions Implemented 
 
2.3 The following key actions have been implemented to mitigate the 

immediate risk to the Council: 
 
Approval Process 
 
2.4 A clear and comprehensive approvals process for capital schemes has 

been developed and put into place for the 2011/12 Capital Programme.  
Approvals required include the relevant Corporate Director, the Portfolio 
Holder, the Finance Business Partner, any relevant consultative group, 
the Capital Forum and the Leader of the Council.     

 
Capital Forum  
 
2.5 The role of the Capital Forum has been reviewed and reinvigorated. The 

Chairmanship has been passed from Community and Environment to 
the Interim Director of Finance providing greater emphasis on financial 
control.  All new schemes on the current Capital Programme are now 
required to submit a business case (using an improved standard format) 
which have to be agreed with the relevant Corporate Director, Portfolio 
Holder and Finance Business Partner before submission to the Capital 
Forum.  A robust challenge process takes place at the Forum before 
business cases are approved or rejected with the challenge process and 
the decision being clearly minuted.   At this stage the scheme is set up 
on SAP and the budget released and the Interim Director of Finance 
presents all approved business cases to the Leader for final approval.  
Thus a much more robust process is now in place ensuring that capital 
schemes are well planned, fully approved and financially viable  before 
any money is spent.  Appendix 1 provides a summary of the business 
cases approved by the Capital Forum so far this financial year. 

 

50



 

Interim Capital Project Manager 
 
2.6 An interim Capital Project Manager, who is an accountant with capital 

accounting experience, has been appointed to oversee and drive the 
capital monitoring process and to implement the agreed capital 
recommendations within Finance.  This officer logs all business cases 
onto a spreadsheet as they are approved by the Finance Business 
Partners and records the Capital Forum decision to approve or reject the 
case.  Once approved the officer is responsible for setting the scheme 
up on SAP and releasing the budget. 

 
In-year and Year-end Processes 
 
2.7 The Finance Business Partners have undertaken test checking on 

capital codes throughout the year to ensure that expenditure has been 
coded correctly.  At year-end a through review of in-year capital 
additions and a review of work-in progress has been undertaken leading 
to the write-off of costs arising on prior year capital projects not now 
going ahead due to the current economic climate, in accordance with 
proper financial accounting practice.      

 
Key Actions in Development 
 
2.8 The following key actions are currently in development to mitigate risk to 

the Council in the longer-term and to establish a robust end to end 
process: 

 
Capital Forum Monitoring 
 
2.9 The Capital Forum will, from the end of Period 2 (to be reported to the 

June Capital Forum meeting), be monitoring monthly expenditure on all 
approved capital schemes against the agreed budgets and progress 
against the project plan.  This will, alongside the control over the initial 
release of the budget described above, ensure that the level of 
expenditure is in line with progress made on the delivery of the project. 

 
Capital Strategy   
 
2.10 A capital strategy is being developed for 2012/13 onwards to provide an 

objective framework for decision making and robust arrangements for 
managing the overall delivery of the Council’s capital programme.  The 
development of the strategy and supporting asset management plan will 
be overseen by the Capital Forum with input from Cabinet Members to 
provide a robust framework for capital bids to be made in the quarter 3 of 
2011/12 for the 2012/13 Capital Programme.  The strategy and capital 
bids will be taken into account in the refresh of the MTFS and approved 
alongside the revenue budget.   

 
Financial Regulations 
 
2.11 A review of the Council’s Financial Regulations is underway with the 

intention of providing more robust and clearer rules governing capital 
expenditure.  These will sit alongside detailed procedure notes also 

51



 

being developed/in draft covering the management and reporting of 
capital projects.  Training will be provided to key staff across the Council 
who are also involved/being consulted in the review and development 
process to secure “ownership” of the updated governance 
arrangements. 

 
Project Management   
 
2.12 On the 18/05/11 CSB agreed: 
 

• that a single mandatory process for project management across 
the council should be developed, within which a project risk 
evaluation process will decide to what extent it is applied; 

• that the Project Management Office (PMO) will provide 
compulsory project management training for those managing 
large high risk projects; 

• that the PMO will provide professional support for the initiation of 
new projects, and the review of in-flight projects; 

• that the PMO will develop an approach with Internal Audit to 
support compliance; 

• that the council’s approach to project management will reflect the 
proposals for governance and process for the Capital 
Programme; and  

• that an informal user group will be set up to test new proposals 
and help with improvement. 

 
Internal Audit 
 
2.13 Cabinet requested that the GARM Committee monitor and report on 

implementation of the recommendations made in the investigation 
reports, supported by Internal Audit, who have been instructed to 
independently verify the process. 

 
2.14 An initial report was made to GARM Committee in January 2011 

outlining the recommendations and suggested action against each 
recommendation and an update on progress was reported to the last 
GARM meeting on 29th March 2011. Since then two meetings have 
taken place with the new Chair of GARM Committee and the previous 
Vice-chair to provide updates on the progress against the agreed 
implementation plan. 

 
2.15 Progress against the detailed implementation plan is shown in Appendix 

2.  50% of actions are reported as implemented by management and 
Internal Audit is in the process of reviewing evidence to support this 
assertion; 43% of actions are not yet due/are in progress; 3.5% of 
actions are incomplete and the implementation date is imminent or has 
been extended and 3.5% of actions are incomplete and the 
implementation date has passed.      

 
2.16 Whilst significant progress has been made to implement the specific 

recommendations in the short term to mitigate the risks identified it is 
recognised that management have also been working on the longer term 

52



 

objective of a developing a holistic end to end process as detailed 
above.   

 
2.17 Internal audit will continue to monitor the progress of the implementation 

of the planned actions, seeking evidence of action taken and reviewing 
proposed processes as they are developed with time allocated for this 
being included in the 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan.   

 
2.18 Progress of the planned actions, with particular emphasis on those that 

may impact on the Value for Money (VFM) assessment, and evidence 
obtained will be shared with the External Auditors to support their work.   

  
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3.1 A further update of this work will be reported to GARM Committee as 

part of the Internal Audit Mid-year Report. 
 
Section 4 - Financial Implications 
 

4.1 The processes set out in this report can be supported within existing 
resources. 

 
Risk Management Implications 
 
5.1 As considerable progress has been made in the implementation of the 

recommendations the Council’s risk exposure has decreased 
significantly. 

 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities 
 
6.1 This report does not incorporate any of the specific priorities. 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 13 June 2011 

   
    

 
Name: Hugh Peart √  Director of Legal & 

Governance Services 
  
Date: 10 June 2011 

   

53



 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson, Service Manager Internal Audit, 020 

8424 1420 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 

54



Ca
pit

al 
Pr

og
ram

me
 - A

pp
ro

ve
d P

ro
jec

ts/
Bu

sin
es

s C
as

es
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
1

Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le
Dir

ec
tor

ate
No

tes

Tra
ns

po
rt L

oc
al 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n P

lan
 2

3,3
18

,00
0

Co
mm

un
ity 

& E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

15
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Tra

ffic
 & 

Pa
rki

ng
 Sc

he
me

s, 
Ro

llin
g P

rog
ram

me
 

35
5,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
15

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Fla
ts 

Re
cyc

lin
g

38
1,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
15

 Ap
ril 

20
11

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

a C
on

so
lid
ate

d, 
Int

eg
rat

ed
 C

ivic
 1 

Bu
ild
ing

94
5,0

00
Pla

ce
 Sh

ap
ing

27
 M

ay
 20

11
Hig

hw
ay

s I
mp

rov
em

en
t

4,3
40

,00
0

Co
mm

un
ity 

& E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

15
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Flo

od
 D
efe

nc
e &

 H
igh

wa
y D

rai
na

ge
 U

pg
rad

e
32

0,0
00

Co
mm

un
ity 

& E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

15
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Str

ee
t L

igh
tin

g I
mp

rov
em

en
ts

97
4,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
15

 Ap
ril 

20
11

HR
A C

ap
ita

l P
rog

ram
me

6,3
60

,00
0

Ho
us

ing
 R
ev

en
ue

 Ac
co

un
t

27
 M

ay
 20

11
Up

gra
de

 of
 EM

S t
o O

ne
.ne

t
31

,91
4

Ch
ild

ren
s S

erv
ice

s
15

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
es

10
0,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Co
rpo

rat
e A

cc
om

mo
da

tio
n

25
0,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Ap
pro

ve
d i

n p
rin

cip
le 

on
ly -

 £5
0k

 co
nti

ng
en

cy 
pro

vid
ed

 fo
r im

me
dia

te/
em

erg
en

cy 
wo

rks
Hig

h P
rio

rity
 Pl

an
ne

d M
ain

ten
an

ce
 fo

r S
ch

oo
ls 
an

d C
orp

ora
te 

Pr
op

ert
y

44
0,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Pa
rk 

Hig
h

95
0,0

00
Ch

ild
ren

s S
erv

ice
s

27
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Ca

ter
ing

 Va
rio

us
 Pr

oje
cts

1,6
00

,00
0

Ch
ild

ren
s S

erv
ice

s
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Ap
pro

ve
d -

 su
bje

ct 
to 

20
10

/11
 C

ap
ita

l c
arr

y f
orw

ard
s a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 m
em

be
rs

Elm
gro

ve
 Am

alg
am

ati
on

1,3
00

,00
0

Ch
ild

ren
s S

erv
ice

s
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Gr
an

ge
 Am

alg
am

ati
on

75
0,0

00
Ch

ild
ren

s S
erv

ice
s

27
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Lo

ng
fie

ld 
Am

alg
am

ati
on

75
0,0

00
Ch

ild
ren

s S
erv

ice
s

27
 Ap

ril 
20

11
Ma

rlb
oro

ug
h

1,9
00

,00
0

Ch
ild

ren
s S

erv
ice

s
27

 Ap
ril 

20
11

Gr
ee

n G
rid

20
0,0

00
Pla

ce
 Sh

ap
ing

20
 M

ay
 20

11
St.

 An
ns

 R
oa

d/H
av

elo
ck

 Pl
ac

e
30

0,0
00

Pla
ce

 Sh
ap

ing
20

 M
ay

 20
11

Lo
wla

nd
s R

ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

10
0,0

00
Pla

ce
 Sh

ap
ing

20
 M

ay
 20

11

Bu
sin

es
s T

ran
sfo

rm
ati

on
 - S

tre
ets

1,0
52

,00
0

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s
n/a

Bu
sin

es
s T

ran
sfo

rm
ati

on
 - L

ibr
ari

es
 R

FID
1,2

97
,00

0
Co

rpo
rat

e S
erv

ice
s

n/a
Bu

sin
es

s T
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

 - C
orp

ora
te 

Se
rvi

ce
s

16
2,0

00
Co

rpo
rat

e S
erv

ice
s

n/a
Bu

sin
es

s T
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

 - C
CA

D
90

7,0
00

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s
n/a

Bu
sin

es
s T

ran
sfo

rm
ati

on
 - B

us
ine

ss
 Su

pp
ort

1,0
62

,00
0

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s
n/a

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d I

nv
es

tm
en

t S
ch

em
e

31
0,0

00
Co

mm
un

ity 
& E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
Pr

og
ram

me
 al

loc
ate

d e
qu

all
y t

o t
he

 21
 w
ard

s (
£1

4,7
60

 to
 ea

ch
 w
ard

)

30
,45

4,9
14

20
11

/12
 G

ros
s 

Ca
pit

al 
Va

lue

Th
es

e s
ch

em
es

 w
ere

 al
wa

ys 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o s

tra
dd

le 
fin

an
cia

l ye
ars

. A
s "

ful
l b

us
ine

ss
 

ca
se

s" 
ha

ve
 be

en
 pr

es
en

ted
 to

 an
d a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ab

ine
t in

 th
e l

att
er 

pa
rt o

f 2
01

0/1
1 

an
d a

s t
he

re 
wa

s n
o s

ign
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

e o
f c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 th

es
e s

ch
em

es
 ar

e n
ot 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o r
eq

uir
e a

pp
rov

al 
by

 C
ap

ita
l F

oru
m

Ca
pit

al 
Fo

rum
 

ap
pro

va
l d

ate

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
1

KE
Y 

 
3.5

% 
of 

ac
tio
ns
 

inc
om

ple
te 

an
d t

he
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 

ha
s p

as
se
d. 

 
3.5

% 
of 

ac
tio
ns
 in
co
mp

let
e a

nd
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 im

mi
ne

nt 
or 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 ex

ten
de

d. 
 

53
% 

of 
ac
tio
ns
 re

po
rte

d 
as
 co

mp
let
ed

 – 
ev
ide

nc
e b

ein
g r

ev
iew

ed
 

by
 In

ter
na

l A
ud

it. 
 

 
40

% 
of 

ac
tio
ns
 no

t y
et 

du
e/i
n p

rog
res

s. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e r

eq
ue
sts

/qu
eri

es
 sh

ow
n i
n b

old
 

 
CA

PI
TA

L 
IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N 
PL

AN
 

  
Ite

m 
No

  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Pr

ior
ity

 
rat

ing
 

Pla
nn

ed
 ac

tio
n /

 re
sp

on
se

 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
da

te 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er 
 Wk

 
str

ea
m 

Cu
rre

nt 
St

atu
s/E

vid
en

ce
/ou

tst
an

din
g q

ue
rie

s 
Sp

ec
ific

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ta
sk
s 

 
 

1. 8.1
.1 

RG
 

Th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 D
ire

cto
r o

f 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou
rce

s s
ho
uld

 de
ter

mi
ne
 

wh
eth

er 
an

y c
on

du
ct 
inv

es
tig
ati
on

s a
re 

wa
rra

nte
d. 
 

 

Hig
h 

Ev
ide

nc
e t
o b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 an

d 
co
nd
uc
t in

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 in
sti
ga
ted

 
as
 ne

ce
ss
ary

.   
De

c 2
01

0  
 

JT
 

n/a
 

Co
nd

uc
t in

ve
sti
ga

tio
ns
 ar

e 
co
mp

let
e, 
 

2. 8.1
.2 

RG
 

Re
cru

it a
n i
nd

ivid
ua
l to

 ta
ke
 ov

er 
the

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 

the
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
se
rvi
ce
s 

ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
se
ttin

g u
p p

rop
er 

sy
ste

ms
 of
 co

ntr
ol 
an

d m
an
ag
em

en
t a
s 

we
ll a

s i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 is
su
es
 on

 ot
he

r 
sc
he
me

s. 
 

 

Hig
h 

Int
eri
m 

rec
rui
ted

 fro
m 

PW
C 

17
/12

/10
 

CD
 

n/a
 

Int
eri
m 

in 
po

st 

3. 8.1
.3 

RG
 

Inv
es
tig
ate

 w
he
the

r th
ere

 is
 an

y r
ed
res

s 
for

 th
e e

sc
ala

tin
g c

os
ts 
of 

the
 te
mp

ora
ry 

sc
ho
ol.
  

 

Me
d 

Do
cu
me

nta
tio
n b

ein
g r

ev
iew

ed
, 

off
ice

rs 
be
ing

 in
ter

vie
we

d a
nd
 

leg
al 
to 

be
 co

ns
ult
ed

.  A
 re

po
rt o

n 
the

 ou
tco

me
 w
ill b

e p
rep

are
d. 

En
d M

arc
h 2

01
1 

 Re
vis

ed
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

da
te:

 En
d o

f M
ay
 

20
11
 

BH
/D
L  

n/a
 

Ini
tia
l re

vie
w 
ha
s c

on
clu

de
d t

ha
t 

the
re 

is 
no
 re

dre
ss
 le
ga
l a
dv
ice

 
be
ing

 ta
ke
n t
o c

he
ck
 no

 sc
op
e 

thr
ou
gh

 co
ntr

ac
t p

rov
isio

ns
 –

rep
ort

 st
ill t

o b
e d

raf
ted

. 
  

4. 8.1
.4 

RG
 

Re
vis

it t
he
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on
ey
 as

se
ss
me

nts
 

for
 th
e r

ev
iew

ed
 pr

oje
cts

.  
 

Lo
w 

Re
vie

w 
the

 ex
ist
ing

 as
se
ss
me

nts
 

an
d c

om
me

nt 
ac
co
rdi
ng

ly 
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

JA
 

n/a
 

Re
sc
he
du

led
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 

de
ad

lin
e t

o a
llo
w 
all
 ne

ce
ss
ary

 
da
ta 

to 
be

 co
lle
cte

d. 
 Ti

mi
ng
 to
 

fee
d i
nto

 Ex
ter

na
l A

ud
it V

FM
 

rep
ort

. 
5. 8.1

.5 
Ch

ec
k t
ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 co

mp
lie
d w

ith
 

the
 gr

an
t c
on

dit
ion

s a
nd

 is
 no

t c
arr

yin
g 

Lo
w 

All
 gr

an
t fu

nd
ing

 to
 be

 re
vie

we
d 

by
 th

e B
us
ine

ss
 Pa

rtn
er 

- 
De

c 2
01

0 
MB

 
n/a

 
Re

vie
w 
co
mp

let
e -

 co
nfi
rm

ed
 

gra
nt 
co
nd

itio
ns
 co

mp
lie
d w

ith
 

57



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
2

RG
 

an
y r
isk

 fro
m 

ha
vin

g w
aiv

ed
 th
e 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
n f

rom
 th
e c

hu
rch

 sc
ho
ols

 
 

Fin
an
cia

l A
cc
ou

nti
ng
, T

rea
su
ry 

an
d P

en
sio

n F
un
d. 

an
d t

he
re 

is 
no

 ris
k t
o t
he
 

Co
un
cil 

(to
 be

 co
nfi
rm

ed
 by

 
Le
ga

l). 
 Ev

ide
nc
e o

f r
ev
iew

 to
 

be
 su

pp
lie
d b

y J
H/
HS

 
Co

ntr
ac
t M

an
ag
em

en
t E

vid
en
ce
 R
eq
uir

ed
: 

 
 

6. 2. PW
C 

 

A c
lea

r a
pp

rov
al 
da
te 

sh
ou

ld 
be
 in
clu

de
d 

wit
hin

 th
e G

ate
wa

y d
oc
um

en
tat

ion
. 

Lo
w 

Am
en
dm

en
t o
f th

e 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 fo

rm
 in
co
rpo

rat
ed
 

wit
hin

 th
e G

ate
wa

y 
do
cu
me

nta
tio
n, 

inc
lus

ive
 of

 
Ga

tew
ay
 0,

 1,
 2 

or 
an

y r
ev
isio

ns
 

so
 pr

es
en
ted

 fo
r a

pp
rov

al 
wit

hin
 

de
leg

ate
d a

uth
ori
ty 
to 

inc
lud

e t
he

 
ap
pro

va
l d
ate

.   

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L  

3 
Am

en
dm

en
t a
cti
on
ed

. T
o b

e 
pic

ke
d u

p a
s w

ell
 by

 w
ide

r 
rev

iew
 of

 pr
oc
es
s. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f a
me

nd
me

nt 
pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

7. 3. PW
C 

 8.2
.8 

RG
 

Th
e I
ns
tru

cti
ng
 D
ep

art
me

nt 
sh
ou
ld 
be

 
req

uir
ed

 to
 au

tho
ris
e a

ll p
roj

ec
t 

Ga
tew

ay
s. 

 Th
e c

lie
nt 
se
rvi
ce
 de

pa
rtm

en
t s
ho

uld
 

au
tho

ris
e t
he

 G
ate

wa
y a

nd
 an

y o
the

r 
co
mm

itm
en
ts 
be
ing

 m
ad
e o

n t
he

ir b
eh

alf
 

Hig
h 

Cu
rre

ntl
y A

H 
sig

nin
g o

ff G
ate

wa
y 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n o

n b
eh

alf
 of
 

ins
tru

cti
ng

 de
pa
rtm

en
t 

(C
hil
dre

n’s
) b

ut 
no
 sp

ec
ific

 pl
ac
e 

on
 fo

rm
s. 
 R
ev
isio

n t
o G

ate
wa

y 
0,1

an
d 2

 si
gn

 of
f p

ag
e t
o i
nc
lud

e 
Bu

dg
et 
Ho

lde
r’s
 si
gn
atu

re 
tha

t is
 

to 
be

 so
ug

ht 
in 
ad

va
nc
e o

f 
su
bm

iss
ion

 to
 H
oS

 or
 D
ire
cto

r. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
3 

Am
en
dm

en
t a
cti
on
ed

  - 
a m

ore
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e r
ev
iew

 of
 

sig
na
tor

ies
 is
 to
 be

 pi
ck
ed
 up

 by
 

wid
er 

rev
iew

 of
 pr

oc
es
s. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f a
me

nd
me

nt 
pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 
 

 

8. 4. PW
C 

An
y s

ub
se
qu

en
t re

vis
ion

s t
o t
he

 G
ate

wa
y 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n s

ho
uld

 be
 co

mp
let
ed
 

thr
ou
gh

 th
e u

se
 of

 a 
de

dic
ate

d r
ev
isio

n 
for

m 
tha

t d
oc
um

en
ts 
the

 ne
ed
 fo

r th
e 

rev
isio

n a
nd

 th
e c

os
t a
nd

 sc
he
du

le 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

Me
d 

A d
ed

ica
ted

 re
vis

ion
 fo

rm
 w
ill b

e 
us
ed
 w
hic

h d
oc
um

en
ts 
the

 
rea

so
ns
 fo

r th
e r

ev
isio

n a
nd

 
de
tai
ls 
all
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 re

lat
ing

 to
 

tha
t re

vis
ion

.   
In 
ad

dit
ion

, th
e  

wo
rks

tre
am

 3 
tea

m 
wil

l  c
on

sid
er 

at 
wh

at 
po
int
 

in 
a p

roj
ec
t re

vis
ion

s t
o t

he
 

ga
tew

ay
 do

cu
me

nta
tio
n s

ho
uld

 
tak

e p
lac

e (
eg

 on
ce
 a 
ce
rta

in 
lev

el 
of 

ins
tru

cte
d c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

pro
jec

t h
av
e t

ak
en
 pl
ac
e, 

or 
if 

the
re 

is 
a m

ate
ria
l c
ha
ng

e t
o t
he

 
pro

jec
t e
tc)

.  

Ma
rch

 20
11
/ 

Ju
ne
  2

01
1 

BH
/D
L 

3 
Th

es
e a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

co
mp

let
ed

 to
wa

rds
 th
e e

nd
 of

 a 
pro

jec
t ra

the
r th

an
 du

rin
g t

he
 

cu
rre

nc
y a

nd
 th

is 
wil

l b
e 

rec
on
sid

ere
d a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 

wid
er 

pro
jec

t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

rev
iew

. 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

reg
ard

ing
 tim

ely
 co

mp
let
ion

 of
 

Ga
tew

ay
 re

vis
ion

s. 
Ev

ide
nc
e o

f in
str

uc
tio
n a

nd
 

sa
mp

le 
ca
se
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 
  . 

9. 5. PW
C 

 

It s
ho
uld

 be
 en

su
red

 th
at 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
co
ntr

ac
tua

l a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 pr
ior

 to
 an

y p
roj

ec
t w

ork
 

ac
tua

lly 
co
mm

en
cin

g. 

Hig
h 

Pr
oc
es
s r

eit
era

tio
n o

f in
str

uc
tio
n 

to 
all
 st
aff

 re
mi
nd
ing

 th
e C

lie
nt 

Re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e t
ha

t P
re 

Po
ss
es
sio

n A
gre

em
en
ts 
or 

sim
ila
r c

on
tra

ct 
do
cu
me

nts
 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
3 

Cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g a

cti
ve
ly 

ma
na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 se

rvi
ce
 

he
ad
s. 
Ro

les
 & 

res
po

ns
ibi
litie

s 
to 
be

 pi
ck
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
wid

er 
pro

jec
t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

58



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
3

ca
nn

ot 
be
 is
su
ed
 to

 th
e 

co
ns
tru

cto
r u

nle
ss
 th
e a

pp
rov

ed
 

Ga
tew

ay
 0,

 1 
or 

2 i
s i
n p

lac
e. 

Pr
oc
es
s k

no
wn

 by
 st
aff

 an
d i
n 

pla
ce
. C

ore
 G
rou

ps
 to
 al
ign

 
ap
pro

va
l le

ad
 in
 tim

e t
o p

roj
ec
t 

tim
eta

ble
. 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

co
re 

gro
up
 to

 m
on
ito
r 

an
d e

ns
ure

 th
at 
thi
s i
s i
n p

lac
e. 

 

rev
iew

. M
an

ag
em

en
t in

str
uc
tio
n 

iss
ue
d r

eg
ard

ing
 co

mp
let
ion

 of
 

all
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l a
gre

em
en
t p
rio
r 

to 
the

 co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 

wo
rk.

 
Ev

ide
nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

10
. 

7. PW
C 

 

Th
e G

ate
wa

y 2
 do

cu
me

nta
tio
n s

ho
uld

 
inc

lud
e a

 pr
ov
isio

na
l s
um

 fo
r w

ork
s t
o b

e 
co
mp

let
ed

 di
rec

tly
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 co
nti
ng

en
cy
 fo

r a
ny
 ris

ks
 

tra
ns
fer

red
 to
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

Hig
h 

All
 no

n-p
rov

isio
na

l s
um

s (
ie 
firm

ly 
co
ste

d w
ork

s) 
to 
be
 in
clu

de
d i
n 

ga
tew

ay
 w
he

the
r in

 AM
P, 

or 
dir
ec
t w

ork
s b

y t
he

 cl
ien

t. 
Pr
ov
isio

na
l s
um

s s
ho
uld

 al
so
 be

 
inc

lud
ed

 in
 th
e s

am
e w

ay
 ba

se
d 

on
 th

e b
es
t e
sti
ma

te.
  

Th
e u

nc
ert

ain
 el
em

en
t o
f th

e 
pro

vis
ion

al 
su
m 

to 
be
 tra

ns
fer

red
 

to 
the

 ris
k r

eg
ist
er 

wit
h t
he

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 co
nti
ng

en
cy
 be

ing
 

all
ow

ed
 ba

se
d o

n q
ua
nti
ty 
an
d 

pro
ba

bil
ity
 of

 oc
cu
rre

nc
e. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

3 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 he

ad
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
. T

o b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

pro
jec

t 
go
ve
rna

nc
e (

wo
rks

tre
am

 3 
– 

pro
jec

t g
ov
ern

an
ce
). 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

11
. 

9. PW
C 

Th
e c

ha
ng
e o

rde
r a

uth
ori
sa
tio
n p

roc
ed

ure
 

sh
ou
ld 
be

 ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 
us
ed
 on

 al
l 

pro
jec

ts,
 in
clu

din
g f

orm
al 
ac
ce
pta

nc
e b

y 
the

 in
str

uc
tin
g p

art
y. 
 

 

Hig
h 

Re
ma

ins
 su

bje
ct 
to 
fur

the
r 

pro
ce
ss
 re

vie
ws

 to
 fu

lly 
me

et 
thi
s 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

. T
he
 ch

an
ge
 

pro
ce
du
re 

wil
l b
e r

ev
ise

d t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

au
tho

ris
ati
on
 by

 th
e b

ud
ge
t 

ho
lde

r is
 in
 pl
ac
e. 

Th
e e

xa
ct 

de
tai
l o
f th

is 
wil

l b
e c

on
sid

ere
d i
n 

wo
rks

tre
am

 3 
of 

the
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e r

ev
iew

. 
 

 Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
3 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 he

ad
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
.  T

o b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

pro
jec

t 
go
ve
rna

nc
e. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

12
. 

13
. 

PW
C 

It s
ho
uld

 be
 en

su
red

 th
at 

all
 ch

an
ge
 

ord
ers

 in
str

uc
ted

 by
 Sc

ho
ols

 ar
e c

oll
ate

d 
an
d r

ec
ha

rge
d w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

.  
(6.

3 I
n r

ev
iew

ing
 th
e f

ina
l a
cc
ou
nts

 fo
r 

Pa
rk 

& C
an
no

ns
 (ii
) w

e d
id 
no
t id

en
tify

 
an

y e
vid

en
ce
 th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il h

ad
 

ac
tiv
ely

 so
ug

ht 
to 
rec

ha
rge

 th
e S

ch
oo

l fo
r 

ch
an
ge
s d

ire
ctl
y r
eq

ue
ste

d b
y t
he
 sc

ho
ol)

 

Me
d 

An
y c

ha
ng

es
 re

qu
ire

d b
y t
he

 
sc
ho
ol 
wil

l b
e p

roc
es
se
d i
n t

he
 

sa
me

 w
ay
 as

 al
l o
the

r p
roj

ec
t 

ch
an
ge
s. 
W
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d 

ag
ree

d b
y t
he

 sc
ho
ol 
an

d b
ud
ge

t 
ho
lde

r, t
he

 pa
ym

en
t fo

r th
e 

ch
an
ge

 w
ill b

e t
ran

sfe
rre

d p
rio
r to

 
wo

rk 
tal
kin

g p
lac

e s
uc
h t
ha

t it
 is
 

 Ju
ne
 20

11
  

BH
/D
L 

 
3 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 he

ad
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
.  T

o b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

pro
jec

t 
go
ve
rna

nc
e. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

59



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
4

he
ld 
wit

hin
 th

e c
en
tra

l b
ud

ge
t. 

Au
tho

ris
ati
on

 by
 th

e b
ud

ge
t 

ho
lde

r a
s d

eta
ils 

in 
the

 ab
ov
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

 w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 co

ntr
ols

 ar
e i
n p

lac
e. 
Th

is 
wil

l 
be
 es

tab
lish

ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 ne
w 

pro
ce
ss
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e p

roj
ec
t 

go
ve
rna

nc
e w

ork
str

ea
m 

3 r
ev
iew

. 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

13
. 

14
. 

PW
C 

An
 in
ter

na
l p
roj

ec
t c
om

ple
tio
n p

roc
ed

ure
 

sh
ou
ld 
be

 es
tab

lish
ed
 w
hic

h r
eq
uir

es
 th

e 
au
tho

riz
ati
on
 of

 th
e i
ns
tru

cti
ng
 

de
pa
rtm

en
t p
rio

r to
 Pr

op
ert

y S
erv

ice
s 

for
ma

lly 
sig

nin
g o

ff p
roj

ec
ts.
  

 

Me
d 

Fo
rm

al 
pro

jec
t c
los

e o
ut 

pro
ce
du
res

 to
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 as

 
pa
rt o

f w
ork

str
ea
m 

3 (
pro

jec
t 

go
ve
rna

nc
e) 

an
d w

ill i
nc
lud

e t
he

 
rel
ev
an
t a

uth
ori
sa
tio
n f

rom
 th
e 

bu
dg

et 
ho

lde
r a

s w
ell
 as

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

 w
ith
 th

e r
ele

va
nt 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs.
 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

3 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 he

ad
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
.  T

o b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

pro
jec

t 
go
ve
rna

nc
e. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 
14
. 

20
. 

PW
C 

An
 up

 to
 da

te 
ris
k r

eg
ist
er 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
ma

int
ain

ed
 th
rou

gh
ou
t a

ll p
roj

ec
ts 
& 

sc
he
me

s. 
 

.   

Hig
h 

Re
vie

w 
of 

ris
k r

eg
ist
er 

to 
be

 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e C
ore

 
Gr

ou
p a

ge
nd

a. 
Th

e c
on
ten

ts 
of 

the
 ris

k r
eg
ist
er 

wil
l b
e r

ev
iew

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

wo
rks

tre
am

 3 
pro

jec
t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t a

ll p
os
sib

le 
ris
ks
 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 w
ith
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 

co
nti
ng

en
cy
 an

d m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ure

s i
n p

lac
e. 

 

Ju
ne
 20

10
 

BH
/D
L 

3 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ins

tru
cti
on

 is
su
ed
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y i
nte

rim
 he

ad
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
.  T

o b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

pro
jec

t 
go
ve
rna

nc
e. 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 an
d s

am
ple

 ca
se
 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y D

L. 

15
. 

16
. 

PW
C 

 

Ad
op

t a
 co

ns
ist
en

t p
roj

ec
t fi
lin
g s

ys
tem

 
for

 pa
pe
rs 

& e
lec

tro
nic

 re
co
rds

 in
 C
&E

 
Hig

h 
Co

ns
ist
en

t a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 do

cu
me

nt 
ha
nd

lin
g a

nd
 fil
ing

 to
 be

 ad
op
ted

 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

the
 

Pr
op
ert

y S
erv

ice
 fu

nc
tio
n w

ith
in 

C 
& E

. T
he
 ex

ac
t p
roc

ed
ure

s a
re 

to 
be

 co
ns
ide

red
 by

 w
ork

str
ea
m 

3, 
an

d w
ill c

om
pli
me

nt 
the

 w
ide

r 
co
un
cil 

pro
jec

t m
an
ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce
du
res

 w
he
rev

er 
pra

cti
ca
ble

. 
 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
n/a

 
W
ide

r s
erv

ice
 re

vie
w 

co
mm

en
ce
d. 
  

 On
 ta
rg
et 
for

 en
d o

f J
un

e –
 D
L 

to 
se
nd

 co
py
 of
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ins
tru

cti
on

 as
 ev

ide
nc
e. 

Fin
an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

 
 

16
. 

8.3
.3 

RG
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 pr
oc
es
s f
or 

iss
uin

g c
od

es
.  

 
Hig

h 
Pr
oc
es
s t
o b

e r
ev
iew

ed
. 

 
Ja
n 2

01
1  

MB
 

n/a
 

Re
vie

w 
co
mp

let
e –

 co
de
s t
o b

e 
pro

vid
ed

 on
ly 
on

ce
 sc

he
me

 ha
s 

rec
eiv

ed
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 ap
pro

va
ls.
 

60



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
5

 
To

 be
 ad

de
d t

o C
ap

ita
l P

roj
ec
t 

Ap
pro

va
l 2
01
1/1

2 d
oc
um

en
t. 

Fin
al 
Ca

pit
al 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ap

pr
ov
al 

20
11
/12

 to
 be

 pr
ov
ide

d a
s 

ev
ide

nc
e b

y J
H 

17
. 

8.3
.5 

RG
 

Re
vie

w,
 cl
ari
fy 
an
d c

om
mu

nic
ate

 ho
w 

co
ntr

ac
ts 
an
d c

ap
ita
l s
ch
em

es
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 

co
mm

itte
d w

ith
in 
SA

P. 
 

 

Me
d 

All
 ca

pit
al 
sc
he
me

 m
an
ag
ers

 
pro

vid
ed

 w
ith
 re

fre
sh
er 

tra
ini
ng

 in
 

Ma
y/J

un
e 2

01
0 a

nd
 re

mi
nd

ed
 of

 
the

 ne
ed

 to
 ra

ise
 pu

rch
as
e o

rde
rs 

in 
SA

P i
n a

dv
an
ce
 of

 an
y w

ork
 

co
mm

en
cin

g. 
  

Als
o c

ov
ere

d i
n 1

:1s
 w
ith
 Fi

na
nc
e 

Of
fic
ers

. 

Ju
ly 
20
11

 
JA

 
 (N
H/
KH

to 
lea

d) 

n/a
 

Fu
rth

er 
tra

ini
ng
 is
 re

qu
ire
d f

or 
bo
th 
fin
an
ce
 st
aff

 an
d c

ap
ita
l 

ma
na
ge
rs,

 th
is 
inc

lud
es
 bu

dg
et 

ma
na
ge
rs 

an
d p

roj
ec
t m

an
ag
ers

  
- th

is 
wil

l ta
ke
 pl
ac
e o

n a
 

co
mp

uls
ory

 ba
sis

 on
ce
 w
ide

r 
iss

ue
s h

av
e b

ee
n c

lar
ifie

d. 
 

18
. 

8.3
.6 

RG
 

Th
e m

on
ito
rin

g s
ys
tem

 sh
ou
ld 
pro

vid
e f

or 
the

 fa
cili

ty:
  

to 
all
oc
ate

 th
e b

ud
ge

t a
cro

ss
 ke

y 
he
ad

ing
s, 
wh

ich
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 m
ore

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 fo

r b
ud
ge

t m
on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 

co
ntr

ol 
pu
rpo

se
s; 

to 
sh
ow

 th
e s

ch
em

es
’ b
ud

ge
t a
cro

ss
 

fin
an
cia

l y
ea
rs 

fro
m 

inc
ep
tio
n, 

in 
ord

er 
to 

ha
ve
 a 
co
mp

let
e o

ve
rvi
ew

 of
 a 
sc
he
me

 
bo
th 

ap
pro

ve
d b

ud
ge

t a
nd
 co

sts
 in
cu
rre

d 
 

Lo
w 

SA
P h

as
 be

en
 am

en
de

d t
o a

llo
w 

the
 us

e o
f s
ub
-co

de
s f
or 

ca
pit
al 

sc
he
me

s t
o a

id 
mo

nit
ori
ng

. 
 It i
s p

os
sib

le 
to 
sh
ow

 sc
he

me
 

bu
dg

ets
 ac

ros
s f
ina

nc
ial
 ye

ars
 in
 

SA
P. 

 Th
e c

ab
ine

t re
po

rt o
n t
he

 
20
11
-12

 to
 20

15
-16

 ca
pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill s
ho

w 
sc
he

me
 

bu
dg

ets
 ac

ros
s y

ea
rs 

wh
ere

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 is
 av

ail
ab
le.
  

Mo
nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rts

 ar
e b

ein
g 

alt
ere

d t
o i
nc
lud

e p
re 

ye
ar,

 
cu
rre

nt 
an

d f
utu

re 
ye
ar 

sp
en

d. 

Ap
ril 
20

11
 

   Op
era

tiv
e f

rom
 

Ap
ril 
 fo

r 1
1/1

2 
pro

gra
mm

e 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rt 

ch
an
ge
s w

ill b
e i
n 

rep
ort

 to
 C
ab

ine
t   

Se
pt 

20
11
 (q

ua
rte

r 
1) 

MB
 

 JH
 to
 

lea
d 

SA
P 

rev
iew

 

n/a
 

Co
mp

let
e. 

 .  T
o r

ev
iew

 bu
dg

et 
co
ntr

ol 
to 

co
ns
ide

r  w
he
the

r it
 is
 

wo
rki
ng
/ad

din
g v

alu
e..
 

. ( 
Th

is 
is 

in 
pla

ce
 – 

bu
t h

as
 no

t 
be

en
 re

qu
ire

d y
et 

for
 ne

w 
sc

he
me

s) 
IA
 to
 be

 sh
ow

n s
ub

-co
de
s o

n 
SA

P b
y J

H 
Ca

bin
et 
Re

po
rt 
ob

tai
ne
d a

s 
ev
ide

nc
e 

Co
py
 of
 am

en
de
d m

on
ito

rin
g 

rep
or
ts 
to 
be
 pr

ov
ide

d a
s 

ev
ide

nc
e b

y J
H 

19
. 

8.3
.7 

RG
 

 

Co
ns
ide

r th
e c

os
t b
en

efi
t o
f b

ein
g a

ble
 to

 
pro

file
 th

e b
ud

ge
t a

cro
ss
 qu

art
ers

 – 
thi
s 

wil
l e
na
ble

 th
e f

ina
nc
ial
 in
for

ma
tio
n t

o b
e 

int
eg

rat
ed

 w
ith
 th

e c
as
h f

low
 w
ith
in 
the

 
AM

P a
nd

 pr
ov
ide

 in
for

ma
tio
n f

or 
tre

as
ury

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pu
rpo

se
s. 
 

 

Lo
w 

Fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
is 
req

uir
ed
 to

 
inv

es
tig
ate

  h
ow

 th
is 
pro

ce
ss
 ca

n 
be
 im

ple
me

nte
d o

n S
AP

 
 To

 be
 un

de
rta

ke
n i
n c

on
jun

cti
on
 

wit
h I

nte
rim

 H
ea
d o

f P
rop

ert
y. 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

JA
 

n/a
 

Mo
re 

wo
rk 

is 
req

uir
ed
 to

 as
se
ss
 

the
 be

ne
fits

 of
 pr

ofi
lin
g a

nd
 ho

w 
thi
s c

ou
ld 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d i
n S

AP
. 

20
. 

8.3
.10

 
RG

 
Co

ns
ide

r p
utt

ing
 in
 pl
ac
e s

om
e c

he
ck
s 

an
d b

ala
nc
es
 ba

se
d o

n s
uc
h t
hin

gs
 as

:  
Ex

ce
pti
on
 re

po
rts

, w
he

re 
pu

rch
as
e o

rde
rs 

are
 de

clin
ed
 fo

r in
su
ffic

ien
t b

ud
ge

ts,
 so

 
tha

t F
ina

nc
e c

an
 us

e t
he

se
 at
 m

on
thl
y 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 m

ee
tin
gs
 an

d a
ler

t s
en
ior

 
ma

na
ge
rs;

  

Lo
w 

Re
mi
nd
ers

 ha
ve
 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 

iss
ue
d t

o a
ll S

AP
 us

ers
 on

 th
e 

im
po
rta

nc
e o

f ra
isin

g p
urc

ha
se
 

ord
ers

 in
 ad

va
nc
e. 

 
 Ev

ide
nc
e o

f th
es
e t
o b

e 
pr
ov
ide

d. 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

sy
ste

ms
 to
 be

 
de
ve
lop

ed
 du

rin
g 

20
11
-12

 

JA
 

 Fin
an
ce
 

BP
s t
o 

lia
ise

 
wit

h 
Sh

are
d 

n/a
 

Ex
ce
pti
on
 re

po
rts

 ar
e n

ow
 be

ing
 

iss
ue
d t

o m
an
ag
ers

 on
 a 

reg
ula

r 
ba
sis

 on
 pu

rch
as
e o

rde
rs 

– 
ne
ed

 to
 en

su
re 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s 

an
d F

ina
nc
e a

re 
joi
ne

d u
p. 

 Ex
am

ple
 of
 re

po
rts

 to
 

61



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
6

Ex
ce
pti
on
 re

po
rts

 w
he

re 
the

 pu
rch

as
e 

ord
er 

da
te 

is 
the

 sa
me

 as
 or

 af
ter

 th
e 

inv
oic

e d
ate

;  
Re

po
rts

 on
 bl
oc
ke
d i
nv
oic

es
;  

Re
vie

ws
 of

 tra
ns
fer

s; 
an
d  

A r
eq

uir
em

en
t to

 co
mp

let
e a

 po
st 

co
mp

let
ion

 re
po
rt o

nc
e t
he

 bu
dg

et 
ha

s 
be
en

 fu
lly 

co
mm

itte
d. 
 

 Co
ntr

ols
 on

 ex
pe
nd

itu
re 

to 
be
 

rev
iew

ed
 fo

r e
ffic

ac
y i
n 

co
ntr

oll
ing

 bu
dg

ets
 as

 pe
r 1

8 
ab
ov
e. 

 Ex
ce
pti
on
 re

po
rts

 be
ing

 pr
od

uc
ed
 

by
 C
AP

/C
AR

. 
 As

 pa
rt o

f th
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 

pro
jec

t, a
dd

itio
na

l c
he

ck
s a

nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 w
ill b

e p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 in
 

rel
ati
on
 to

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs.

 
  

Se
rvi
ce

s    LD
 

CA
P/C

AR
 

 VD
 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

ma
na
ge
rs 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y L

D 
(as

 
pe
r 5

2).
 

 Jo
urn

al 
co
ntr

ols
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

en
ha

nc
ed
. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
o b

e p
ro
vid

ed
. 

 Fin
an
ce
 Bu

sin
es
s P

art
ne

rs 
to 

bri
ng
 to

ge
the

r in
 on

e r
es
po

ns
e 

mo
nth

ly 
to 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rs.
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f r
ep
or
t to

 be
 

pr
ov
ide

d (
as
 pe

r 5
2) 

  NB
, P

os
t C

om
ple

tio
n R

ep
ort

s 
are

 re
sp
on
sib

ility
 of

 C
&E

 an
d 

no
t F

ina
nc
e. 

  
 

21
. 

8.3
.14

 
RG

 
W
he
re 

pro
jec

tio
ns
 ar

e n
ot 

pro
vid

ed
 by

 
bu
dg

et 
ho

lde
rs,

 th
is 
sh
ou

ld 
be
 es

ca
lat
ed

 
an
d b

e p
res

en
ted

 as
 “b

ud
ge

t h
old

er 
ha
s 

no
t p
rov

ide
d a

 pr
oje

cti
on

”.  
 

Lo
w 

Ag
ree

d 
 

Ja
n 2

01
1 

MB
 

n/a
 

Co
mp

let
e –

 FB
Ps

 ar
e e

ns
uri

ng
 

tha
t fo

rec
as
ts 
are

 co
mp

let
ed

. 
W
he
re 

the
y a

re 
no

t th
is 
wil

l b
e 

es
ca
lat
ed

 by
 FB

Ps
 to

 JH
 + 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r o
n a

 m
on
thl
y 

ba
sis

 (n
ot 

ye
t h
ap

pe
ne

d) 
 Ev

ide
nc
e o

f th
is 
be
 pr

ov
ide

d 
by
 JH

. 
       

22
. 

1. PW
C 

 

A s
ing

le 
Ma

ste
r c

od
e s

ho
uld

 be
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h p

roj
ec
t w

ith
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 su
b-c

od
es
 th
at 

all
ow

 an
 

an
aly

sis
 of

 su
b-c

ate
go
rie

s o
f c
os
ts 
as
 

req
uir
ed

. 

Hig
h 

To
 af
fec

t th
is 
the

 C
ap

ita
l S

ch
em

e 
mu

st 
be
 co

ns
tru

cte
d t

o s
ho

w 
all
 

rel
ev
an
t fu

nd
ing

 st
rea

ms
 an

d 
the

re 
mu

st 
be
 a 
tra

ns
pa
ren

t 
pro

ce
ss
 to
 sh

ow
 ho

w 
thi
s h

as
 

be
en

 au
tho

ris
ed

 an
d a

gre
ed

.  
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 fo
rm

 to
 re

co
rd 

Ma
ste

r a
nd
 su

b-c
od

es
 fo

r th
e 

Ap
ril 
20

11
 ie
 in
 

rel
ati
on
 to

 11
/12

 
ca
pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

MB
 

n/a
 

Co
mp

let
e. 

 (R
ela

tes
 to
 fu

nd
ing

 st
rea

ms
.) 

 To
 be

 ap
pli
ed
 to

 11
/12

 sc
he
me

s 
 As

 fo
r 1

8 I
A 
to 
be
 sh

ow
n s

ub
-

co
de
s o

n S
AP

 by
 JH

 

62



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
7

pro
jec

t. 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 pr
o-f

orm
a t
o b

e 
sig

ne
d b

y B
ud

ge
t H

old
er 

to 
ve
rify

 
co
de
 an

d b
ud
ge

t a
mo

un
t(s

). 
Bu

dg
et 

am
ou
nts

 to
 be

 cl
ea
r o

n 
inc

lus
ive

 or
 ex

clu
siv

e o
f fe

es
 

(bo
th 

int
ern

al 
an

d e
xte

rna
l). 

 

 Co
py
 of
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 fo
rm

 
rec

or
din

g M
as
ter

 an
d s

ub
-

co
de
s f
or
 th
e p

ro
jec

t to
 be

 
pr
ov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 by

 JH
 

23
. 

19
. 

PW
C 

 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv

e a
nd
 co

nte
mp

ora
ne
ou
s 

pro
jec

t fi
na
nc
e r

ep
ort

s s
ho

uld
 be

 
pro

du
ce
d f

or 
all
 pr

oje
cts

 w
hic

h 
sp
ec
ific

all
y d

eta
il b

ud
ge
ted

 co
st,
 ac

tua
l 

co
st 
to 
da

te,
 co

mm
itte

d c
os
ts 
an
d a

 
for

ec
as
t o
utt
urn

. It
 sh

ou
ld 
be

 en
su
red

 
tha

t s
uc
h r

ep
ort

s a
re 

ac
tiv
ely

 di
sc
us
se
d 

an
d c

on
sid

ere
d a

t c
ore

 pr
oje

ct 
me

eti
ng
s 

as
 a 
ma

tte
r o

f c
ou
rse

.  
 

Hig
h 

En
su
re 

the
 us

e o
f p

roj
ec
t c
as
h 

flo
w 
– t
o b

e p
rod

uc
ed
 by

 th
e 

co
ns
tru

cto
r th

at 
ali
gn

s w
ith
 th

e 
pro

jec
t p
rog

ram
me

 an
d i
s 

rev
iew

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f; 
1. 

Th
e p

roj
ec
t C

ore
 G
rou

p 
ag
en

da
 

2. 
Pr
es
en
ted

 to
 th

e B
ud
ge

t 
Ho

lde
r  

3. 
Us

e o
f S

AP
 to

 m
on
ito
r 

co
mm

itm
en
t a
nd
 sp

en
d 

fro
m 

SA
P b

y t
he

 Bu
dg

et 
Ho

lde
r. 

4. 
Ca

pit
al 
Fo

rum
 

 To
 in
tro

du
ce
 m

ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 

fin
an
ce
, b

ud
ge

t h
old

ers
 an

d 
pro

jec
t m

an
ag
ers

 as
 ap

pro
pri
ate

. 
 Sy

ste
ms

 fo
r re

po
rtin

g b
ein

g r
oll
ed
 

ou
t b

y P
roj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en
t 

Of
fic
e. 
( d

ate
 fo

r im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

to 
be

 ag
ree

d) 
 Th

ere
 is
 a 
ne

ed
 to

 in
tro

du
ce
 

mo
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e p

roj
ec
t re

po
rtin

g t
o 

sit
 al
on
gs
ide

 fin
an
ce
 re

po
rtin

g (
as
 

for
 tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n p

rog
ram

me
). 

 Fin
an
ce
 to
 m

ak
e m

ore
 us

e o
f 

sp
en
d t

o d
ate

 in
for

ma
tio
n a

nd
 

co
mp

are
 th
is 
wit

h p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
rep

ort
s. 

Ap
ril 
20

11
   

 On
 ta
rge

t fo
r e

nd
 

of 
Ap

ril 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n. 

JA
 

 JH
 to
 

lea
d 

n/a
 

Ch
air
ma

ns
hip

 of
 th
e C

ap
ita
l 

Fo
rum

 no
w 
pa

ss
ed
 to

 th
e 

Int
eri
m 

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 Fi

na
nc
e. 

  
 Mo

nth
ly 
me

eti
ng
s o

f th
e C

ap
ita
l 

Fo
rum

 w
ill n

ow
 re

ce
ive

 an
d 

mo
nit
or 

rep
ort

s o
n c

ap
ita
l 

pro
jec

ts 
wh

ich
 in
clu

de
 Fi

na
nc
ial
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d p
roj

ec
t 

pro
gre

ss
. T

his
 m

on
ito
rin
g w

ill 
be
gin

 at
 th

e e
nd

 of
 Ap

ril.
  

Te
sti
ng
 of

 a 
ne

w 
sy
ste

m 
to 

fac
ilita

te 
thi
s (

VE
RT

O)
 ha

s b
ee
n 

un
de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 un

til 
thi
s i
s u

p 
an
d r

un
nin

g t
he
 fin

an
cia

ls 
an

d 
pro

jec
t ti
me

tab
le 
wil

l b
e 

rec
ord

ed
 on

 th
e a

tta
ch
ed

 
sp
rea

ds
he

et.
  

 IA
 to
 re

vie
w 
ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 th
is 

sp
rea

ds
he
et 
an
d V

ER
TO

 in
 

du
e c

ou
rse

. 
 An

 In
ter

im
 C
ap
ita
l M

an
ag

er 
ha
s 

als
o b

ee
n a

pp
oin

ted
 to

 ov
ers

ee
 

ca
pit
al 
rep

ort
ing

. 
 Re

po
rts

 w
ill n

ow
 be

 m
ad
e o

n 
Ca

pit
al 
pro

jec
ts 
to 
CS

B a
nd

 
Po

rtfo
lio
 H
old

ers
 m

on
thl
y a

nd
 

Ca
bin

et 
qu
art

erl
y. 
 

   
24
. 

Pr
oje

ct 
co
sts

 sh
ou
ld 
be

 co
de

d t
o t

he
 

Hig
h 

Ac
co
un
tab

ility
 fo

r c
os
t c
od
es
 w
ill 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

3 
Th

is 
is 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g a

cti
ve
ly 

63



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
8

11
. 

PW
C 

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 pr
oje

ct 
co
de

.  
(6.

3 i
) w

e n
ote

d t
ha

t th
ere

 w
as
 a 
dif
fer

en
t 

fin
an
ce
 co

de
 ut

ilis
ed
 fo

r th
e f

ina
l a
cc
ou
nt 

se
ttle

me
nts

 fo
r b

oth
 sc

ho
ols

. In
 bo

th 
ins

tan
ce
s t
he
 co

de
 ut

ilis
ed

 w
as
 W

hit
mo

re 
Hig

h.)
 

be
 cl
ea

rly
 al
loc

ate
d t

o b
ud

ge
t 

ho
lde

rs,
 an

d t
he

y w
ill b

e 
res

po
ns
ibl
e f

or 
Pu

rch
as
e O

rde
rs 

an
d i
nv
oic

e p
roc

es
sin

g. 
Ap

pro
pri
ate

 tra
ini
ng

 w
ill b

e g
ive

n 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

ey
 un

de
rst

an
d 

the
ir r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s a
nd
 th

e 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 of

 m
isc

od
ing

. C
los

e 
wo

rki
ng
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 be
tw
ee
n 

bu
dg

et 
ho

lde
rs 

an
d t
he

 fin
an

ce
 

tea
m 

wil
l a
ss
ist
 in
 en

su
rin

g n
o 

de
via

nc
e t
ak
es
 pl
ac
e. 

W
ork

str
ea
m 

2 w
ill c

on
sid

er 
the

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 cu

rre
ntl
y i
n p

lac
e t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t a

ny
 ob

sta
cle

s t
o 

req
uir
ed

 fle
xib

iliti
es
 to

 m
ak
e t
his

 
wo

rka
ble

 ar
e a

dd
res

se
d. 

ma
na
ge
d b

y b
ud
ge

t h
old

ers
 an

d 
tes

t c
he
ck
ed
 by

 Fi
na

nc
e 

Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne
rs.

 
Ra

tio
na

lisa
tio
n o

f th
e i
np

ut 
of 

pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs 

an
d b

ett
er 

bu
dg

eti
ng
 w
ill a

ss
ist
 to
 en

su
re 

the
 ne

ed
 fo

r m
isc

od
ing

 is
 

rem
ov
ed
. T

he
se
 w
ill b

e 
co
ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt o

f 
wo

rks
tre

am
 2 
an
d 3

 re
lat
ing

 to
 

the
 fin

an
cia

l c
on
tro

l o
f th

e 
pro

jec
ts.
 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 to
 ch

ec
k a

nd
 

ve
rif
y. 

25
. 

8.3
.9 

RG
 

Th
e o

ve
ral

l p
rog

ram
me

, c
od
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 sh

ou
ld 
be

 fo
cu
se
d o

n 
sc
he
me

s/p
roj

ec
ts 
rat

he
r th

an
 fu

nd
ing

 
str

ea
ms

.  
 

Me
d 

Th
e c

ab
ine

t re
po
rt o

n t
he
 20

11
-

12
 to

 20
15
-16

 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
wil

l s
ho

w 
tot

al 
sc
he
me

 bu
dg

ets
, 

an
d m

on
ito
rin

g r
ep
ort

s w
ill r

ep
ort

 
at 
sc
he
me

 le
ve
l  (
 al
rea

dy
 

im
ple

me
nte

d).
 

Mo
nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rt 

ch
an
ge
s  
20
10

 -1
1 

(qu
art

er 
3) 

sh
ow

s 
sc
he
me

 le
ve
l. 

MB
 

n/a
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Ev
ide

nc
e: 
Ca

bin
et 
rep

or
t 

 Mo
nit
or
ing

 re
po

rt 
to 
be
 

pr
ov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 by

 JH
 

26
. 

8.3
.18

 
+ 8.3

.19
 

RG
 

Th
e c

ap
ita
l b
ud
ge

t m
on
ito
rin

g t
o 

me
mb

ers
 sh

ou
ld 
pre

se
nt 
the

 w
ho

le 
pro

gra
mm

e a
cro

ss
 th
e f

ina
nc
ial
 ye

ars
 of

 
the

 ap
pro

ve
d p

rog
ram

me
, a
nd
 in
clu

de
 

su
ffic

ien
t in

for
ma

tio
n t
o f

ac
ilita

te 
pro

pe
r 

ch
all
en
ge

 an
d s

cru
tin
y. 
 

 

Me
d 

I 
Th

e c
ab
ine

t re
po
rt o

n t
he
 20

11
-

12
 to

 20
15
-16

 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
wil

l s
ho

w 
tot

al 
sc
he
me

 bu
dg

ets
, 

an
d m

on
ito
rin

g r
ep
ort

s w
ill b

e 
en
ha

nc
ed
 du

rin
g 2

01
1-1

2. 
 

Mo
nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rt 

ch
an
ge
s 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

(qu
art

er 
1) 

CS
B f

rom
 Ap

ril 

MB
 

 HS
 to

 
lea

d 

n/a
 

On
 ta
rge

t 
 Ev

ide
nc
e: 
Ca

bin
et 
rep

or
t 

 Co
py
 of
 C
SB

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
rep

or
t to

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d a
s 

ev
ide

nc
e. 

27
. 

8.3
.20

 
RG

 
Re

vie
w 
all
 gr

an
ts 
sc
he
me

s b
ein

g 
de
ve
lop

ed
 or

 in
 th

e p
ipe

lin
e h

av
ing

 re
ga

rd 
to 
fun

din
g r

isk
s, 
on
go

ing
 re

ve
nu

e 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 an

d g
ran

t 
co
nd
itio

ns
/pe

na
ltie

s. 
 

Me
diu

m 
Th

is 
wil

l b
e a

dd
res

se
d i
n t
he

 
de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

 pr
oc
es
s f
or 

bu
sin

es
s c

as
es
 w
ith
 th

e t
em

pla
te 

de
sig

ne
d t

o i
de

nti
fy/
qu
an

tify
 

the
se
 is
su
es
/ris

ks
. 

 

Ju
ly 
20
11

 
CS

B 
2/3

 
Co

ve
red

 by
 Bu

sin
es
s C

as
e 

tem
pla

te 
– a

ll B
us
ine

ss
 C
as
es
 

rev
iew

ed
 by

 C
ap

ita
l F

oru
m.

 
 Ev

ide
nc
e: 
Bu

sin
es
s C

as
e 

tem
pla

te 
(to

 be
 re

vie
we

d b
y 

IA
) +
 lis

t o
f B

Cs
 re

vie
we

d s
o 

far
 by

 C
ap
ita
l F
or
um

. 
Go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

 
 

28
. 

8. PW
C 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il m

us
t e
ns
ure

 th
at 
a 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f th
e 

co
ntr

ac
tur

al 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 w
ith
 Ki

er/
ne

w 
Lo

w 
Th

is 
wa

s c
lea

rly
 se

t o
ut 

in 
Ca

bin
et 
rep

ort
s f
or 

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

of 
bo
th 
 Ki

er 
an

d A
po

llo
 an

d t
he

 
Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

n/a
 

A b
ett

er 
un

de
rst

an
din

g t
he
 

co
ntr

ac
tua

l a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
no

w 
ex
ist
s. 
 Th

is 
ha
s r

e-e
nfo

rce
d t
he

 

64



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
9

 8.2
.1 

RG
 

 

co
ntr

ac
tor

 is
 es

tab
lish

ed
 th
rou

gh
 a 
rev

iew
 

of 
the

 ex
ist
ing

 co
ntr

ac
t.  
Th

is 
wil

l e
ns
ure

 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 m
ax
im
isin

g t
he

 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on
ey
 

wit
hin

 th
e f

ram
ew

ork
 of

 th
e c

urr
en
t 

co
ntr

ac
t.  

 As
su
re 

its
elf
 th
at 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

arr
an
ge
me

nt 
de

live
rs 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
, 

ha
vin

g r
eg

ard
 to
 al
l th

e c
os
ts 
inc

urr
ed
 in
 

thi
s a

rra
ng

em
en
t a
nd

 th
e w

ay
 th

at 
the

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 is
 op

era
ted

. 

Te
rm

s a
nd
 C
on

dit
ion

s o
f th

e 
co
ntr

ac
t m

ad
e a

va
ila
ble

 to
 st
aff

 at
 

the
 tim

e. 
 Th

is 
wil

l b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
rev

iew
 an

d r
es
tru

ctu
rin

g o
f th

e 
Pr
op
ert

y S
erv

ice
 fu

nc
tio
n t

o m
ee
t 

the
 on

go
ing

 ne
ed
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il. 

Inc
lud

es
 a 
fun

da
me

nta
l re

vie
w 
of 

the
 ex

ist
ing

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 so

 th
at 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 

ca
n b

e r
ed

es
ign

ed
 to

 dr
ive

 va
lue

 
for

 m
on
ey
 in
 th

e d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
co
ns
tru

cti
on
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 to
 

me
et 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 ne
ed
 fo

r 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
.  

 A d
es
kto

p r
ev
iew

 of
 th
e G

ard
ine

r 
& T

he
ob
ald

 si
gn
 of

f o
f th

e 
W
hit
mo

re 
Sc

ho
ol 
ha
s b

ee
n 

un
de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 th

e r
es
ult
s a

re 
po
sit
ive

. 

req
uir
em

en
t to

 ch
an

ge
 th

e 
int
ern

al 
str

uc
tur

e/r
ev
iew

 
ca
pa
bil
itie

s. 
 Th

e w
ide

r s
erv

ice
 

rev
iew

 ha
s c

om
me

nc
ed
 an

d w
ill 

co
nti
nu

e b
ey
on

d J
un

e. 
 

29
. 

8.2
.3 

RG
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 fro

m 
the

 
Str

ate
gic

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Bo
ard

 an
d C

on
tra

ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Gr

ou
p, 

en
su
rin

g t
he

se
 ar

e 
fit 
for

 pu
rpo

se
 an

d t
he

ir r
ole

 cl
ea
rly
 

un
de
rst

oo
d w

ith
in 
the

 or
ga

nis
ati
on
. A

 
mo

re 
for

ma
l m

on
ito
r o

f a
ll p

roj
ec
ts 
us
ing

 
ke
y i
nd

ica
tor

s s
ho
uld

 be
 us

ed
.  

 

Me
diu

m 
Th

is 
wil

l b
e a

dd
res

se
d a

s p
art

 of
 

the
 re

vie
w 
of 

co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 

pro
jec

t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

  
 Ju

ne
 20

11
 

BH
 

2/3
 

 W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
& 3

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

 DL
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 flo
wc

ha
rt 
of 

ho
w 
SP

B,
 C
MG

 &
 C
ap
ita
l 

Fo
ru
m 
wo

rk 
tog

eth
er 
+ o

utl
ine

 
of 
ro
le 
of 
ea
ch
. 

30
. 

8.2
.4 

RG
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 op
era

tio
n a

nd
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

the
 Sp

ec
ial
 Pr

oje
cts

 
Te

am
, in

clu
din

g: 
the

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n o

f c
lea

r 
an
d c

on
sis

ten
t p

roc
ed

ure
s; 
for

ma
l 

rep
ort

ing
 to

 th
e c

lie
nt 

on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as
is;
 

an
d e

ns
uri

ng
 th

at 
the

re 
is 
an

 ov
era

ll h
igh

 
lev

el 
sc
he
du

le 
be

ing
 re

po
rte

d o
n k

ey
 

as
pe
cts

 of
 ea

ch
 pr

oje
ct 
an
d t

ha
t th

is 
is 

us
ed
 fo

r e
xc
ep
tio
n r

ep
ort

ing
 an

d 
dis

cu
ss
ion

.  
 

Me
diu

m 
Th

is 
wil

l b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 a 

co
mb

ina
tio
n o

f a
 re

vie
w 
an

d 
res

tru
ctu

rin
g o

f th
e P

rop
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce
 fu

nc
tio
n t

o m
ee
t th

e 
on
go

ing
 ne

ed
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 

up
da

ted
 co

rpo
rat

e a
nd

 pr
oje

ct 
go
ve
rna

nc
e t
hro

ug
h w

ork
str
ea
ms

 
2 a

nd
 3.
  

  

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2/3

 
Th

e S
pe
cia

l P
roj

ec
ts 
Te

am
 ha

s 
be
en

 di
sb
an
de

d. 
  

31
. 

A c
lea

r g
ov
ern

an
ce
 st
ruc

tur
e a

nd
 ch

art
 of

 
Hig

h 
Th

e p
roj

ec
t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

Ma
y2
01

1 
BH

/D
L 

3 
W
ork

str
ea
m 

3 e
sta

bli
sh
ed

 – 

65



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
10

17
. 

PW
C 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s s
ho
uld

 be
 ag

ree
d f

or 
ea
ch
 

pro
jec

t m
an
ag
ed
 by

 C
&E

.  
 

pro
ce
ss
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s w
ill b

e 
rec

on
sid

ere
d a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 

wo
rks

tre
am

 3 
rev

iew
. C

lea
r ro

les
 

an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s w
ill b

e 
ge
ne
rat

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f a
ll 

pro
ce
ss
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s 
rel
ati
ng
 to

 th
is 
an

d t
he
 ot

he
r 

wo
rks

tre
am

s a
s a

pp
lica

ble
 

ca
ref

ull
y c

on
sid

eri
ng

 th
e 

int
erf

ac
es
 be

tw
ee

n p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d f

ina
nc
ial
 

co
ntr

ol 
or 

pro
jec

ts.
 

 

be
ing

 ac
tiv
ely

 m
an
ag
ed

 by
 

int
eri

m 
se
rvi
ce
 he

ad
s. 

 Te
mp

lat
e o

f r
ole

s &
 

res
po

ns
ibi
liti
es
 to
 be

 pr
ov
ide

d 
by
 D
L a

s e
vid

en
ce
 by

 en
d o

f 
Ju
ne
. 

32
. 

15
. 

PW
C 

A r
ev
iew

 of
 th
e e

xis
tin
g d

oc
um

en
ted

 
pro

ce
du
res

 w
ith
in 
C&

E s
ho

uld
 be

 
un
de
rta

ke
n. 
 

 

Me
d 

Th
is 
wil

l b
e p

ick
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 a 

co
mb

ina
tio
n o

f a
 re

vie
w 
an

d 
res

tru
ctu

rin
g o

f th
e P

rop
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce
 fu

nc
tio
n t

o m
ee
t th

e 
on
go

ing
 ne

ed
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 

up
da

ted
 co

rpo
rat

e a
nd

 pr
oje

ct 
go
ve
rna

nc
e t
hro

ug
h w

ork
str
ea
ms

 
2 a

nd
 3.
  

It s
ho
uld

 be
 no

ted
 th

at 
the

 
Ga

tew
ay
 pr

oc
es
s w

as
 su

bje
ct 
to 

an
 In

ter
na

l A
ud

it r
ev
iew

 da
ted

 
21
/07

/20
10
 w
ith
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s d
isc

ha
rge

d. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

 On
go
ing

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t 2
01

1 

BH
/D
L 

 
3 

W
ide

r s
erv

ice
 re

vie
w 

co
mm

en
ce
d a

nd
 w
ork

str
ea
m 

3 
es
tab

lish
ed

. 
 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 

ex
ten

de
d. 

33
. 

HP
 

 
Re

vie
w 
wh

at 
is 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 m

em
be
rs 
& 

CS
B, 

an
d i
ts 
co
mp

let
en
es
s, 
rel
ev
an

ce
 

an
d a

cc
es
sib

ility
. 

 

Hig
h 

Th
is 
is 
be
ing

 pi
ck
ed
 up

 by
 th

e 
rev

iew
 of

 co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

wh
ich

 w
ill e

sta
bli
sh
 up

da
ted

 an
d 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 fo
r th

e 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 of

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 in
 re

sp
ec
t o
f c
ap

ita
l 

pro
jec

ts 
ac
ros

s t
he
 C
ou

nc
il. 
 

   

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

CS
B 

2 
W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
es
tab

lish
ed

  
 All

 ca
pit
al 
pro

jec
ts 
no

w 
go

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m.

  
Bu

sin
es
s c

as
es
 re

qu
ire

 Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde

r a
pp

rov
al.
 Th

e L
ea

de
r &

 
CS

B a
re 

bri
efe

d o
n t
ho

se
 

pro
jec

ts,
 an

d d
ec
ide

 w
hic

h n
ee
d 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 by
 C
ab
ine

t 
 Mo

nth
ly 
rep

ort
ing

 to
 C
SB

 fro
m 

the
 en

d o
f A

pri
l. 

 
34
. 

HP
 

Co
ns
ide

r th
e f

utu
re 

rol
es
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it 

& t
he

 O
ve
rvi
ew

 & 
Sc

rut
iny

 C
om

mi
tte
e i
n 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 w
ha
t is

 re
po

rte
d t

o C
SB

 an
d 

Me
diu

m 
Int
ern

al 
au

dit
 to

 re
vie

w 
33
 ab

ov
e, 

inv
olv

ing
 O
&S

 as
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 

Aft
er 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

TW
 

n/a
 

IA 
rev

iew
 w
ill t

ak
e p

lac
e o

nc
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

 33
 

im
ple

me
nte

d 

66



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
11

Me
mb

ers
.  

 
 

35
. 

HP
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 go
ve
rna

nc
e 

str
uc
tur

e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
me

mb
er 

tim
e i
s 

foc
us
se
d o

n p
rio

rity
 ar

ea
s. 
 

  

Lo
w 

Un
de
rta

ke
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

e 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e/a

ss
ura

nc
e r

ev
iew

, 
for

 co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 by
 C
SB

. 
 

To
 be

 de
ter

mi
ne
d 

by
 C
SB

 
HP

 
n/a

 
CS

B i
nit
ial
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
16
/03

/11
   

CS
B 
rep

or
t &

 ag
ree

d a
cti
on

 to
 

be
 pr

ov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 by

 
HP

 
 All

 ca
pit
al 
pro

jec
ts 
no

w 
go

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m.

  
Bu

sin
es
s c

as
es
 re

qu
ire

 Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde

r a
pp

rov
al.
 Th

e L
ea

de
r &

 
CS

B a
re 

bri
efe

d o
n t
ho

se
 

pro
jec

ts,
 an

d d
ec
ide

 w
hic

h n
ee
d 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 by
 C
ab
ine

t 
 Mo

nth
ly 
rep

ort
ing

 to
 C
SB

 fro
m 

the
 en

d o
f A

pri
l. 

 
36
. 

8.2
.2 

RG
 

Re
vie

w 
pro

jec
t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 st
ruc

tur
es
 

wit
h i
ts 
Co

ns
tru

cti
on

 Pa
rtn

er 
to 
en
su
re 

the
se
 ar

e c
on
cis

e a
nd

 cl
ea
r, m

ak
ing

 an
y 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 ch
an

ge
s t
o a

gre
ed
 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n a

s a
 re

su
lt. 
Th

is 
sh
ou
ld 

co
mp

lem
en
t th

e e
xp
ec
tat

ion
s w

ith
in 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s g
ov
ern

an
ce
 fra

me
wo

rk.
  

 

Me
diu

m 
Th

is 
is 
be
ing

 pi
ck
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

the
 re

vie
w 
of 

the
 Pr

op
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce
 fu

nc
tio
n a

nd
 th

e p
roj

ec
t 

go
ve
rna

nc
e w

ork
str

ea
m.

 
An

y a
dd

itio
na

l re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fro

m 
the

 C
on
str

uc
tor

 w
ill b

e a
gre

ed
 

an
d i
nc
orp

ora
ted

 in
to 
the

 
Co

ntr
ac
t w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

 On
go
ing

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t 2
01

1 

BH
/D
L 

3 
W
ide

r s
erv

ice
 re

vie
w 

co
mm

en
ce
d a

nd
 w
ork

str
ea
m 

3 
es
tab

lish
ed

. 
 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 

ex
ten

de
d. 

37
. 

8.2
.5 

RG
 

Cr
ea
te 

an
 ex

em
pti
on
 pr

oc
es
s w

ith
 se

nio
r 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sig

n o
ff f

or 
wh

en
 ag

ree
d 

pro
ce
ss
es
 ar

e n
ot 

be
ing

 fo
llo
we

d d
ue

 to
 

pra
cti
ca
litie

s i
n d

eli
ve
ry 

e.g
. s
tar

tin
g o

n 
sit
e. 
 

 

Me
diu

m 
To

 be
 pi
ck
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 2
 & 

3 a
nd
 co

ve
red

 
in 
rev

ise
d F

ina
nc
ial
 R
eg

ula
tio
ns
. 

 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2/3

 
W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
& 3

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

 Fo
rm

 to
 be

 de
sig

ne
d  
by
 en

d 
Ju
ne
. 

38
. 

8.2
.6 

RG
 

Cle
arl

y s
et 
ou

t &
 re

co
nc
ile
 w
ith
 th

e 
fin
an
cia

l re
gu

lat
ion

s t
he

 au
tho

rity
 to

 si
gn

 
pre

po
ss
es
sio

n a
gre

em
en
ts,
 ag

ree
 an

d 
sig

n A
MP

 do
cu
me

nts
, a
nd
 is
su
e b

rie
fs 

an
d b

ud
ge
t c
od

es
.  

 

Me
d 

To
 be

 pi
ck
ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 2
 & 

3 a
nd
 co

ve
red

 
in 
rev

ise
d F

ina
nc
ial
 R
eg

ula
tio
ns
. 

  Sc
he
me

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
 to

 be
 

rev
ise

d a
nd
 re

iss
ue
d t

o c
ap

tur
e 

the
se
 ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 

En
su
re 

Fin
an

cia
l P

roc
ed
ure

s t
o 

su
pp
ort

 th
e e

nd
 to

 en
d p

roc
es
s 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

   Ap
ril 
20

11
 

 Re
vis

ed
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

da
te 

No
ve
mb

er 

BH
/D
L 

   JA
 - J

H 
to 
lea

d 

2/3
 

W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
& 3

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

 Fin
an
cia

l  R
eg

ula
tio
ns
 re

-dr
aft

ed
 

an
d w

en
t to

 C
on
sti
tut

ion
al 
 

Re
vie

w 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p a
nd

 
cir
cu
lat
ed

 to
 se

nio
r o

ffic
ers

. 
Ho

we
ve
r it

 ha
s b

ee
n a

gre
ed

 (b
y 

wh
om

?) 
to 
de
lay

 th
e f

ina
lisa

tio
n 

of 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio
ns
 an

d 

67



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
12

are
 is
su
ed

 w
hic

h s
up

po
rt t

he
 

Fin
an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio
ns
 

 
Ca

bin
et/

Co
un

cil 
ap

pro
va
l  a

s 
mo

re 
wo

rk 
req

uir
ed
 to

 ge
t th

em
 

rig
ht.
   

 Sc
he
me

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
 is
 

ou
tst
an

din
g b

ec
au
se
 th

e p
re 

po
ss
es
sio

n  
ac
tiv
ity
 is
 no

t d
ue
 

un
til 
jun

e. 
 

  
39
. 

8.2
.7 

RG
 

Inc
orp

ora
te 

int
o t

he
 Fi

na
nc
ial
 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 

co
ntr

ac
t a
uth

ori
sa
tio
n a

rra
ng

em
en
ts 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e C

on
str

uc
tio
n P

art
ne

rsh
ip.
  

 

Me
d 

Fu
ll r
ev
iew

 of
 fin

an
cia

l 
reg

ula
tio
ns
 to

 be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
– t
o 

be
 re

po
rte

d t
o C

ab
ine

t in
 M

ay
.  

Fu
ll C

ou
nc
il a

pp
rov

al 
req

uir
ed
 in
 

Ju
ly.
 

Ju
ly 
20
11

 
JA

 
 JH

 to
 

lea
d  

n/a
 

In 
pro

gre
ss
 

  

40
. 

8.3
.1 

RG
 

Cle
arl

y s
et 
ou

t w
ith
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e d

oc
um

en
ts,
 th

e 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo

r a
gre

ein
g t

he
 de

tai
ls 
of 

the
 C
ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 at
 sc

he
me

 an
d 

pro
jec

t le
ve
l e
.g.

 C
ab
ine

t, P
ort

fol
io 
or 

Dir
ec
tor

 de
cis

ion
.  

Me
diu

m 
On

ce
 al
l w

ork
 co

mp
let
ed

 th
is 
wil

l 
be
 re

fle
cte

d i
n t
he

 co
ns
titu

tio
n. 

 Th
e 3

 pr
oje

ct 
str

ea
ms

 w
ill s

et 
ou

t 
the

 de
tai
l o
f th

is 
- o

nc
e a

gre
ed
 

wil
l b
e c

on
sid

ere
d b

y t
he

 
Co

ns
titu

tio
na

l R
ev
iew

 W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou
p f

or 
inc

lus
ion

 in
 

Co
ns
titu

tio
n 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
  

HP
  

n/a
 

 

41
. 

8.3
.2 

RG
 

Co
mb

ine
 th

e s
ch
em

e i
de
nti
fic
ati
on
 an

d 
bu
sin

es
s c

as
e p

roc
es
se
s w

hic
h f

orm
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 ca

pit
al 
bu

dg
et 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
wit

h 
the

 G
ate

wa
y 1

 an
d 2

 pr
oc
es
se
s i
n o

rde
r 

to 
ha

ve
 an

 in
teg

rat
ed
 pr

oc
es
s t
ha
t: 

im
pro

ve
s c

os
t e
sti
ma

tes
, p
rov

ide
s f
or 

fea
sib

ility
 st
ud

ies
 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, 
av
oid

s d
up

lica
tio
n, 
an

d e
ns
ure

s t
ha
t th

ere
 

is 
a s

ing
le 
vie

w 
of 

the
 ov

era
ll b

ud
ge
t a

nd
 

fun
din

g a
va
ila
ble

 an
d t
ha

t e
xp
en
dit
ure

 is
 

ke
pt 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 th

is.
  

 

Me
diu

m 
Th

is 
is 
a w

ide
 ra

ng
ing

 
req

uir
em

en
t w

hic
h i
s a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pro
jec

t p
roc

es
se
s f
rom

 
co
nc
ep
tio
n t

o c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 Al

l 
as
pe
cts

 w
ill b

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 1
, 2
 & 

3 w
ith
 th

e 
de
tai
led

 pr
oc
es
se
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d r

es
ult
ing

 ro
les

 
an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s e
ns
uri
ng

 
co
rre

ct 
str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 se
lec

tio
ns
 

of 
pro

jec
ts,
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t a

nd
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
co
mp

let
ion

. 
 

Ju
ne
  2

01
1 

 On
go
ing

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t 2
01

1 
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2/3

 
W
ork

str
ea
m 

2 &
 3 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

an
d b

ein
g a

cti
ve
ly 
ma

na
ge

d b
y 

int
eri

m 
se
rvi
ce
 he

ad
s. 

 Pic
ke
d u

p b
y C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m 

an
d 

wil
l b
e o

n-g
oin

g a
s g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e d
ev
elo

pe
d. 

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
 

ex
ten

de
d. 

42
. 

8.3
.4 

RG
 

Bu
sin

es
s c

as
es
 sh

ou
ld 
be

 re
qu

ire
d t

o 
inc

lud
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ab

ou
t th

e c
om

ple
te 

sc
he
me

, ir
res

pe
cti
ve
 of

 fu
nd
ing

, a
s w

ell
 

as
 on

go
ing

 re
ve
nu

e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
. 

Hig
h 

As
 ab

ov
e t

his
 is
 a 

wid
e r

an
gin

g 
req

uir
em

en
t w

hic
h i
s a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pro
jec

t p
roc

es
se
s f
rom

 
co
nc
ep
tio
n t

o c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 Al

l 

 Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

2/3
 

W
ork

str
ea
m 

2 &
 3 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

an
d b

ein
g a

cti
ve
ly 
ma

na
ge

d b
y 

int
eri

m 
se
rvi
ce
 he

ad
s. 
 Bu

sin
es
s 

Ca
se
s i
nc
lud

e r
eq
uir

ed
 

68



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
13

Co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 gi
ve
n t

o 
co
mp

let
ing

 th
es
e p

rio
r to

 th
e C

ab
ine

t 
ag
ree

ing
 th
e C

ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 in
 or

de
r 

to 
inf
orm

 de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

.  
 

as
pe
cts

 w
ill b

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 1
, 2
 & 

3 w
ith
 th

e 
de
tai
led

 pr
oc
es
se
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d r

es
ult
ing

 ro
les

 
an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s e
ns
uri
ng

 
co
rre

ct 
str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 se
lec

tio
ns
 

of 
pro

jec
ts,
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t a

nd
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
co
mp

let
ion

. 
 

inf
orm

ati
on
.   

  IA
 to
 re

vie
w 
Bu

sin
es
s C

as
e 

tem
pla

te 
to 
ve
rif
y. 
 

    
43
. 

8.3
.8 

RG
 

Th
e C

ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 pr

oc
ed
ure

 no
tes

 
to 
su
pp

ort
 th

e F
ina

nc
ial
 R
eg

ula
tio
ns
 ne

ed
 

to 
be

 re
vie

we
d i
n t

he
 lig

ht 
of 

wh
at 

ha
s 

ha
pp

en
ed

, to
 in
clu

de
 ro

les
 an

d 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s a
nd

 th
e a

pp
rov

al 
of 

vir
em

en
ts.
 Th

es
e p

roc
ed
ure

s n
ote

s 
sh
ou
ld 
ma

ke
 as

 m
uc
h u

se
 of

 flo
wc

ha
rts

 
as
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o e
ns
ure

 cl
ari

ty 
an

d e
as
e o

f 
rea

din
g. 
 

 

Me
diu

m 
Th

e C
ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 

pro
ce
du
re 

no
tes

 w
ill b

e r
ev
ise

d 
an
d r

eis
su
ed
. 

 

Ma
y 2

01
1 

JA
 

 NH
 to
 

lea
d 

n/a
 

Tra
ini
ng
 pr

es
en
tat

ion
 to

 be
 

up
da

ted
 an

d a
pp

en
de
d t

o 
pro

ce
du
re 

no
tes

 – 
ho

we
ve
r th

is 
is 
de
pe

nd
en
t o

n w
ide

r c
ha
ng

es
 

be
ing

 cl
ari
fie
d. 

  
 Th

es
e h

av
e b

ee
n d

raf
ted

 an
d 

pro
vid

ed
 to
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it a

s 
ev
ide

nc
e. 

44
. 

8.3
.11

 
RG

 
Ag

ree
 te
rm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 fo
r th

e C
ap

ita
l 

Fo
rum

 if 
it c

on
tin
ue

s t
o e

xis
t a
lon

g w
ith
 a 

cle
arl

y d
efi
ne
d c

orp
ora

te 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 
an
d c

lar
ity
 as

 to
 th

e r
ole

 of
 at

ten
de
es
 an

d 
the

 C
ha
irm

an
.  

 

Me
diu

m 
Ag

ain
 th

is 
is 
a w

ide
 ra

ng
ing

 
req

uir
em

en
t w

hic
h i
s a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pro
jec

t p
roc

es
se
s f
rom

 
co
nc
ep
tio
n t

o c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 Al

l 
as
pe
cts

 w
ill b

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 1
, 2
 & 

3 w
ith
 th

e 
de
tai
led

 pr
oc
es
se
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d r

es
ult
ing

 ro
les

 
an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s e
ns
uri
ng

 
co
rre

ct 
str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 se
lec

tio
ns
 

of 
pro

jec
ts,
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t a

nd
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
co
mp

let
ion

. 
A P

roj
ec
t M

an
da
te 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ag
ree

d b
y C

SB
 an

d a
 P1

D 
in 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
to 
co
me

 to
 C
SB

 in
 

Fe
b 2

01
1. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2 

Ca
pit
al 
for

um
 co

nti
nu

es
 no

w 
ch
air
ed
 by

 th
e I
nte

rim
 D
ire
cto

r o
f 

Fin
an
ce
 – 
ter

ms
 of

 re
fer

en
ce
 

att
en

de
es
 ag

ree
d b

ut 
su
bje

ct 
to 

on
go

ing
 re

vie
w.
 

 Up
da
ted

 te
rm

s o
f r
efe

ren
ce
 to
 

be
 pr

ov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
. 

45
. 

8.3
.12

 
RG

 
 

Re
vie

w 
me

mb
ers

hip
 of

 th
e F

oru
m 

to 
en
su
re 

it i
s a

pp
rop

ria
te 

ha
vin

g r
eg

ard
 to

 
the

 te
rm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
.  

 

Me
diu

m 
As

 ab
ov
e. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2 

As
 ab

ov
e. 

 Mi
nu

tes
 of
 fo
ru
m 
sh
ow

 
ev
ide

nc
e m

em
be
rsh

ip.
 

46
. 

Th
e C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m 

sh
ou
ld 
co
ns
ide

r 
Me

diu
m 

As
 ab

ov
e. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

2 
W
ork

str
ea
m 

2 &
 3 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

69



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
14

8.3
.13

 
RG

 
un
de
rta

kin
g d

eta
ile
d p

roj
ec
t re

vie
ws

 on
 a 

cy
clic

al 
ris
k b

as
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h h

av
ing

 
pa
rtic

ula
r re

ga
rd 

to 
rep

ha
se
d p

roj
ec
ts.
 

Th
is 
sh
ou
ld 
co
ns
ide

r p
roj

ec
t m

ile
sto

ne
s. 
 

 

 
an
d b

ein
g a

cti
ve
ly 
ma

na
ge

d b
y 

int
eri

m 
se
rvi
ce
 he

ad
s. 

 Th
is 
wil

l b
e c

on
sid

ere
d a

t th
e 

ne
xt 
Ca

pit
al 
Fo

rum
 m

ee
tin
g 

(D
L).

 
47
. 

8.3
.15

 
RG

 
Th

e m
on
ito
rin

g s
ch
ed

ule
s s

ho
uld

 
inc

orp
ora

te 
int
ell
ige

nc
e f

rom
 th
e c

as
h f

low
 

an
d m

ile
sto

ne
s w

ith
in 
the

 pr
oje

cts
.  

 

Lo
w 

Mo
nit
ori

ng
 sc

he
du

les
 sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e c
om

me
nts

 on
 ac

tua
l 

sp
en
d t

o d
ate

 an
d a

ch
iev

em
en
t 

of 
ke
y p

roj
ec
t m

ile
sto

ne
s. 
 M

ore
 

wo
rk 

is 
req

uir
ed
 to

 un
de
rst

an
d 

the
 re

so
urc

es
 re

qu
ire

d t
o s

up
po
rt 

thi
s a

nd
 es

tab
lish

 a 
su
ita
ble

 
pro

ce
du
re.

 
 Ne

ed
 to

 de
cid

e h
ow

 pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ill b

e 
co
lle
cte

d a
nd
 re

po
rte

d a
lon

gs
ide

 
fin
an
cia

l in
for

ma
tio
n 

Ap
ril 
20

11
 – 

on
 

ris
k a

ss
es
se
d 

pro
jec

ts 
 

JA
 

 JH
 to
 

lea
d 

n/a
 

As
 pe

r R
ec
 23

:  M
on

thl
y 

me
eti
ng
s o

f th
e C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m 

wil
l n
ow

 re
ce
ive

 an
d m

on
ito
r 

rep
ort

s o
n c

ap
ita
l p
roj

ec
ts 
wh

ich
 

inc
lud

e F
ina

nc
ial
 in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d p

roj
ec
t p
rog

res
s. 
Th

is 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 w
ill b

eg
in 
at 
the

 en
d 

of 
Ap

ril.
  T

es
tin
g o

f a
 ne

w 
sy
ste

m 
to 
fac

ilita
te 

thi
s (

VE
RT

O)
 

ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 an

d u
nti
l 

thi
s i
s u

p a
nd
 ru

nn
ing

 th
e 

fin
an
cia

ls 
an

d p
roj

ec
t ti
me

tab
le 

wil
l b
e r

ec
ord

ed
 on

 th
e a

tta
ch
ed
 

sp
rea

ds
he

et.
  

 IA
 to
 re

vie
w 
ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 th
is 

sp
rea

ds
he
et 
an
d V

ER
TO

 in
 

du
e c

ou
rse

. 
48
. 

8.3
.16

 
RG

 
Th

ere
 ne

ed
s t
o b

e m
ore

 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of 

se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t in

 ca
pit
al 
mo

nit
ori

ng
, 

wh
ich

 at
 pr

es
en

t a
pp
ea

rs 
foc

us
ed
 on

 th
e 

clie
nt 

se
rvi
ce
 re

pre
se
nta

tiv
e, 
the

 C
ap

ita
l 

Fo
rum

 an
d C

ab
ine

t.  
 Th

ere
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 

rev
iew

s a
t b

oth
 de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d 
co
rpo

rat
e m

an
ag
em

en
t le

ve
ls.
  

 

Hig
h 

As
 ab

ov
e t

his
 is
 a 

wid
e r

an
gin

g 
req

uir
em

en
t w

hic
h i
s a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pro
jec

t p
roc

es
se
s f
rom

 
co
nc
ep
tio
n t

o c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 Al

l 
as
pe
cts

 w
ill b

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 1
, 2
 & 

3 w
ith
 th

e 
de
tai
led

 pr
oc
es
se
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d r

es
ult
ing

 ro
les

 
an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s e
ns
uri

ng
 

co
rre

ct 
str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 se
lec

tio
ns
 

of 
pro

jec
ts,
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t a

nd
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
co
mp

let
ion

. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2 

Gr
ea
ter

 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of 

se
nio

r 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
in 
ca
pit
al 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

t C
SB

, 
Ca

pit
al 
Fo

rum
 an

d D
ire

cto
rat

e 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
s 

 Co
pie

s o
f m

inu
tes

 as
 

ev
ide

nc
e o

f g
rea

ter
 

inv
olv

em
en
t s
en
ior

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
inv

olv
em

en
t in

 
ca
pit
al 
mo

nit
or
ing

. 

49
. 

8.3
.17

 
RG

 
Fin

an
ce
 sh

ou
ld 
rev

iew
 th

e c
urr

en
t s
up
po

rt 
pro

vid
ed

 to
 th

e c
ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

 to
 

en
su
re 

the
re 

is 
cla

rity
 of

 ro
les

, 
ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 ar

e c
lea

r a
nd

 th
ere

 is
 

ad
eq

ua
te 

str
ate

gic
 ov

ers
igh

t.  

Me
d 

Ro
les

 ha
ve
 be

en
 cl
ari
fie
d w

ith
in 

Fin
an
ce
.  T

his
 ne

ed
s t
o a

lig
n w

ith
 

the
 w
ide

r re
vie

w 
of 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

for
 th
e c

ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

 to
 

en
su
re 

tha
t a

ll in
vo
lve

d h
av
e a

 

Ap
ril 
20

11
 

MB
 

n/a
 

Ne
w 
pro

ce
ss
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

for
 20

11
/12

 w
ith
 IA

 in
pu

t –
 in
 

dra
ft. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f r
ole

 cl
ari
fic
ati
on

 

70



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
15

 
cle

ar 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f th

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

wi
th 
Fin

an
ce
 to
 be

 pr
ov
ide

d +
 

co
py
 of
 fin

ali
se
d p

ro
ce
ss
 by

 
JH

 
 An

 In
ter

im
 C
ap
ita
l M

an
ag

er 
ha
s 

als
o b

ee
n a

pp
oin

ted
 to

 ov
ers

ee
 

ca
pit
al 
rep

ort
ing

. In
str

uc
tio
ns
 

ha
ve
 ne

en
 is
su
ed
 to

 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s o

n C
ap

ita
l 

Mo
nit
ori

ng
 to

 be
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y 
the

m.
  IA

 to
 be

 pr
ov
ide

d w
ith
 a 

co
py
. 

 Mo
nth

ly 
rep

ort
ing

 to
 C
ap

ita
l 

Fo
rum

 & 
CS

B, 
qu
art

erl
y 

rep
ort

ing
 to

 C
ab

ine
t. 

  
50
. 

8.4
.1 

RG
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 ad
eq

ua
cy
 of

 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
rep

ort
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin

g o
f s
tra

teg
ic,
 hi
gh

 
pro

file
 pr

oje
cts

. 
 

Hig
h 

As
 ab

ov
e t

his
 is
 a 

wid
e r

an
gin

g 
req

uir
em

en
t w

hic
h i
s a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pro
jec

t p
roc

es
se
s f
rom

 
co
nc
ep
tio
n t

o c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 Al

l 
as
pe
cts

 w
ill b

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 

wo
rks

tre
am

s 1
, 2
 & 

3 w
ith
 th

e 
de
tai
led

 pr
oc
es
se
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d r

es
ult
ing

 ro
les

 
an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi
litie

s e
ns
uri
ng

 
co
rre

ct 
str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 se
lec

tio
ns
 

of 
pro

jec
ts,
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t a

nd
 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
roj

ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
co
mp

let
ion

.  

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

 
2 

Mo
nth

ly 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 of

 pr
oje

cts
 

thr
ou
gh

 th
e C

ap
ita
l F

oru
m 

fro
m 

P2
. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e c

op
ies

 of
 th
e C

ap
ita
l 

Fo
ru
m 
mi
nu

tes
. 

51
. 

8.4
.2 

RG
 

Re
inf
orc

e i
ts 
ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 of

 pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
me

tho
do
log

y b
ein

g u
se
d o

n 
ca
pit
al 
pro

jec
ts.
  

 

Hig
h 

As
 ab

ov
e 

 
Ju
ne
 20

11
 

CS
B 

2 
Ag

ree
d a

t C
SB

 18
/05

/11
 be

ing
 

rol
led

 ou
t b

y P
roj

ec
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Of
fic
e (

PM
O)

 
 Ev

ide
nc
ed
 by

 C
SB

 pa
pe
r. 

52
. 

8.5
.1 

RG
 

Ad
dre

ss
 pu

rch
as
e o

rde
rs 

no
t b
ein

g r
ais

ed
 

or 
be
ing

 ra
ise

d a
fte

r in
vo
ice

s h
av
e b

ee
n 

rec
eiv

ed
. In

 ad
dre

ss
ing

 th
is,
 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

sh
ou
ld 
co
ns
ide

r th
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 ad

op
t, 

be
ca
us
e t

he
 in
clu

sio
n o

f c
om

mi
tm

en
ts 
is 

on
ly 
of 

va
lue

 in
 m

on
ito
rin

g a
nd
 ch

ec
kin

g, 

Me
diu

m 
Re

mi
nd
ers

 ha
ve
 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 

iss
ue
d t

o a
ll S

AP
 us

ers
 on

 th
e 

im
po
rta

nc
e o

f ra
isin

g p
urc

ha
se
 

ord
ers

 in
 ad

va
nc
e. 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

e p
roc

ure
me

nt 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

sy
ste

ms
 to
 be

 
de
ve
lop

ed
 du

rin
g 

20
11
-12

 

JA
 

 Fin
an
ce
 

BP
s t
o 

lia
ise

 
wit

h 

n/a
 

Re
po
rts

 ar
e n

ow
 be

ing
 is
su
ed
 to

 
ma

na
ge
rs 

on
 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 
on
 

pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs 

– n
ee
d t

o 
en
su
re 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s a

nd
 

Fin
an
ce
 ar

e j
oin

ed
 up

. 
En

su
re 

on
e c

om
pli
an
ce
 re

po
rt 

71



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
16

if t
he
re 

is 
cla

rity
 ab

ou
t ti
me

sc
ale

s a
nd

 
de
live

rab
les

.  B
y w

ay
 of

 illu
str

ati
on
, a

 
pro

jec
t w

hic
h h

as
 a 

co
mm

itm
en
t s
ho
win

g 
80
% 

of 
sp
en

d, 
co
uld

 st
ill b

e o
ve
rsp

en
t, i
f 

sp
en
d i
s e

xp
ec
ted

 to
 be

 ev
en
ly 
inc

urr
ed
 

an
d t

he
 co

mm
itm

en
t is

 on
ly 
up
 to

 pe
rio

d 
6. 
 

 

pro
jec

t, a
dd

itio
na

l c
he

ck
s a

nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 w
ill b

e p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 in
 

rel
ati
on
 to

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs.

 
  

Sh
are

d 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
tha

t c
ov
ers

 ev
ery

thi
ng
 go

es
 to
 

DM
Ts

 fo
r d

isc
us
sio

n/a
cti
on

. 
 Ex
am

ple
 of
 re

po
rts

 to
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

pr
ov
ide

d b
y L

D 
(as

 
pe
r 2

0).
 

  
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

 
 

53
. 

8.5
.2 

RG
 

 

Im
ple

me
nt 
in 
the

 C
S a

nd
 C
&E

 te
am

s 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t o

f in
div

idu
als

 
us
ing

 re
gu

lar
 1:

1s
 an

d I
PA

Ds
.  

 

Hig
h 

All
 m

id-
ye
ar 

rev
iew

s i
n P

&I 
co
mp

let
ed

 Ja
n 2

01
1. 
 1:

1 i
n 

pla
ce
. 

 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 an

d 
On

go
ing

 
CD

 & 
BH

 
n/a

 
Ac

tio
n b

ein
g t
ak
en
 in
 bo

th 
CS

 
an
d C

&E
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t s
taf

f in
 

the
 te

am
s c

on
ce
rne

d a
ll h

av
e u

p 
to 
da

te 
IPA

D’s
 an

d r
eg

ula
r 1

:2:
1 

me
eti
ng
s. 
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
o b

e p
ro
vid

ed
 of
 

mo
nit
or
ing

 re
po

rts
 on

 IP
AD

’s 
wi
thi
n C

S &
 C
&E

   
54
. 

HP
 

De
ve
lop

 a 
sh
are

d u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
nio

r o
ffic

er 
ov
ers

igh
t a

nd
 

rep
ort

ing
 of

 w
ork

 un
de
rta

ke
n b

y j
un
ior

 
sta

ff. 
 

 

Me
diu

m 
Co

mm
iss

ion
 an

 O
D 
pro

jec
t fo

r a
ll 

ma
na
ge
rs.

   
To

 be
 pi
ck
ed
 up

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

wo
rks

tre
am

 2.
 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

2 
W
ork

str
ea
m 

2 e
sta

bli
sh
ed

.  
De

ve
lop

ed
 vi
a t

he
 C
ap

ita
l 

Fo
rum

.   
 Ex

pe
cta

tio
ns
 of

 1:
1s
 to
 be

 
co
ve
red

 in
 D
MT

 m
ee
tin
gs
.   

 On
 ta
rge

t fo
r c

om
ple

tio
n b

y e
nd
 

of 
Ju
ne
. 

55
. 

HP
 

Co
ns
ide

r h
ow

 to
 su

pp
ort

 & 
de
ve
lop

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ac
co
un
tab

ility
  

 
Me

diu
m 

To
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 at

 C
SB

 
aw

ay
da

y, 
bu
t s
tar

t b
y a

gre
ein

g 
ac
tio
n p

oin
ts 
& a

cti
on
 ow

ne
rs 

at 
CS

B. 

Ja
n 2

01
1 a

nd
 

on
go

ing
 

CS
B 

n/a
 

A n
ew

 em
ph
as
is 
on
 co

mp
lia
nc
e 

wa
s a

gre
ed
 at

 th
e C

SB
 aw

ay
da

y 
to 
be

 pi
lot
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

pro
cu
rem

en
t in

itia
tiv
e. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f th
is 
to 
be
 

su
pp

lie
d (
by
 H
P?

) e
.g.
 C
SB

 
mi
nu

tes
 + 
ho

w 
thi
s w

ill 
be
 

im
ple

me
nte

d a
s p

art
 of
 th
e 

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t in

itia
tiv
e. 

56
. 

8.5
.3 

RG
 

 

Co
ns
ide

r w
ha

t a
cti
on
 is
 ne

ed
ed

 
sp
ec
ific

all
y a

nd
 m

ore
 ge

ne
ral
ly 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t in

div
idu

als
 co

mp
ly 
wit

h c
on
tro

ls 
an

d 
the

 re
sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 as

 se
t o

ut 
eg

 in
 th
e 

Fin
an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio
ns
. T

his
 in
clu

de
s 

Lo
w 

To
 be

 co
ns
ide

r a
t th

e n
ex
t C

GG
 

me
eti
ng
 ea

rly
 Ap

ril.
 

Ju
ly 
20
11

 
CG

G 
n/a

 
To

 be
 pi
ck
ed
 up

 at
 ne

xt 
CG

G 
me

eti
ng
 

72



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
17

tak
ing

 pr
oa
cti
ve
 ac

tio
n w

he
n t
he
re 

is 
ev
ide

nc
e o

f is
su
es
 of

 co
nc
ern

 or
 fa

ilu
re 

to 
co
mp

ly 
wit

h t
he
 re

lev
an

t s
ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

. T
he
 ov

err
idi
ng
 ob

jec
tiv
e 

sh
ou
ld 
be

 to
 pr

om
ote

 th
e b

es
t in

ter
es
ts 
of 

the
 C
ou
nc
il. 

57
. 

6. PW
C 

 

An
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 qu

ali
ty 
of 

ad
vic

e 
pro

vid
ed

 by
 G
&T

 (c
os
t c
on

su
lta
nts

) fo
r 

the
 sc

ho
ol 
ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e s
ho
uld

 be
 

un
de
rta

ke
n. 

Me
diu

m 
    

Th
e a

cti
on
 ar

ise
s f
rom

 a 
po

ten
tia
l 

dis
cre

pa
nc
y b

etw
ee

n p
lan

ne
d 

an
d b

uil
t fl
oo

r a
rea

s. 
Ac

tio
n b

ein
g 

tak
en
 to
 id
en
tify

 th
e c

orr
ec
t 

fig
ure

s, 
a d

ec
isio

n c
an
 th

en
 be

 
tak

en
 on

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 fo
llo
w 
up
 

ac
tio
n i
n t

erm
s o

f a
n a

ss
es
sm

en
t 

of 
the

 qu
ali
ty 
of 

the
 ad

vic
e g

ive
n. 

Ju
ne
 20

11
  

BH
/D
L 

n/a
 

In 
pro

gre
ss
 

  

58
. 

18
 

PW
C 

It s
ho
uld

 be
 en

su
red

 th
at 

job
 de

sc
rip
tio
ns
 

for
 al
l in

div
idu

als
 ac

ros
s t
he
 C
ou

nc
il a

re 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d u

p t
o d

ate
. 

Me
diu

m 
Th

e r
ole

s a
nd

 re
sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 

res
ult
ing

 fro
m 

the
 re

vie
w 
wil

l 
ne
ed

 to
 be

 in
co
rpo

rat
ed

 in
to 

job
 

de
sc
rip
tio
ns
 as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

. 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

BH
/D
L 

  CS
B 

n/a
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 - H
R 

to 
ad

vic
e a

cc
ord

ing
ly.
 

 W
ide

r im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 ac

ros
s t
he
 

co
un
cil 

to 
be
 co

ns
ide

red
. 

59
. 

22
 

PW
C 

A c
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n p

lan
 

sh
ou
ld 
be

 de
ve
lop

ed
. 

Me
diu

m 
A s

pe
cif
ic 
ac
tio
n t

hro
ug

h 
wo

rks
tre

am
s 2

 an
d 3

 w
ill b

e t
o 

de
vis

e a
 st
rat

eg
y a

nd
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

for
 bo

th 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
n a

nd
 

tra
ini
ng
 ac

ros
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il o

n t
he

 
up
da

ted
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g p
roj

ec
ts.
 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

2/3
 

W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
& 3

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

  

60
. 

23
. 

PW
C 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il s

ho
uld

 co
ns
ide

r in
tro

du
cin

g a
 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f in
de
pe

nd
en

t p
roj

ec
t 

as
su
ran

ce
 th

at 
wo

uld
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

tha
t p

roj
ec
ts 
are

 be
ing

 m
an
ag
ed

 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 es
tab

lish
ed
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d a

lso
 hi
gh
lig
ht 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 sh

are
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 

am
on
gs
t p
roj

ec
ts 
an
d d

ep
art

me
nts

.  

Me
diu

m 
Sy

ste
ma

tic
 an

nu
al 
pro

ce
ss
 to
 be

 
se
t u
p f

or 
pe

er 
gro

up
 re

vie
w 
of 

a 
ran

do
ml
y c

ho
se
n s

am
ple

 of
 

pro
jec

ts 
ac
ros

s t
he
 C
ou

nc
il. 
 

 

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

BH
/D
L 

2/3
 

W
ork

str
ea
ms

 2 
& 3

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

  

  
KE

Y 
 MB

  
Co

rpo
rat

e D
ire

cto
r F

ina
nc

e (
no

w 
lef

t) 
JA

   
Ne

w 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 Fi

na
nc

e  
BH

  
Co

rpo
rat

e D
ire

cto
r C

om
mu

nit
y &

 En
vir

on
me

nt 

73



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 
18

CD
  

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r C
hil

dre
n’s

 
HP

  
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 Le

ga
l &

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 Se

rvi
ce

 
TW

  
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
JH

  
Div

isio
na

l D
ire

cto
r o

f F
ina

nc
e &

 Pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
DL

  
Int

eri
m 

He
ad

 of
 Pr

op
ert

y (
Co

mm
un

ity
 & 

En
vir

on
me

nt)
 

AH
 

Int
eri

m 
Sc

ho
ol 

Ca
pit

al 
Pr

og
ram

me
 Te

am
 M

an
ag

er 
(C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce

s) 
HS

  
Bu

sin
es

s P
art

ne
r - 

Fin
an

cia
l A

cc
ou

nti
ng

, T
rea

su
ry 

an
d P

en
sio

n F
un

d 
KH

  
Fin

an
ce

 Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne

r C
om

mu
nit

y &
 En

vir
on

me
nt 

LD
  

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
- P

en
sio

ns
 & 

Co
rpo

rat
e A

cc
ou

nts
 Pa

ya
ble

 R
ec

eiv
ab

le 
VD

  
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

- P
roc

ure
me

nt 
 

NH
  

Int
eri

m 
Ca

pit
al 

Pr
oje

ct 
Ma

na
ge

r (F
ina

nc
e) 

CS
B  

Co
rpo

rat
e S

tra
teg

y B
oa

rd 
CG

G 
 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p 
CA

P/C
AR

  
Co

rpo
rat

e A
cc

ou
nts

 Pa
ya

ble
/R

ec
eiv

ab
le 

 
 74



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

PERFORMANCE AND 
FINANCE SCRUTINY 
SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 
 

26 July 2011 

Subject: 
 

Progress against the Economic 
Development Strategy Action 
Plan 2010/11 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Andrew Trehern, Corporate Director, 
Place Shaping 
 

Scrutiny Lead 
Member area: 
 

Councillor Sue Anderson, Sustainable 
Development and Enterprise 
Performance Lead Member 
 and Councillor Stephen Wright,  
Sustainable Development and 
Enterprise Policy Lead Member 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A - Enterprising Harrow 
Action Plan 2010/ 2011- Update 
 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report provides an update on progress against the Enterprising Harrow, 
as agreed at the meeting (November 2010) between the Scrutiny leads for 
Sustainable Development, the Portfolio Holder and Head of Economic 
Development. 
 
Recommendations:  
That progress made against the strategy be noted.  

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 75 to 96 

75



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The delivery of the Enterprising Harrow strategy will help Harrow Council 
achieve its Corporate priorities of: 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses 
 

When the scrutiny leads for SDE met with Portfolio Holder Keith Ferry and 
Head of Economic Development in November 2010, it was agreed that an 
update on progress would be submitted at the end of 2010/11. This report 
details the achievements made in 2011/12, includes as annexes the 
completed Action Plan for 2010/11 and agreed Action Plan for 2011/12, and 
outlines current direction of travel in national, regional and local policy.  
 
The Economic Development Action Plan is the implementation plan for 
Harrow’s Economic Development Strategy. The implementation of the Action 
Plan is managed by the Enterprising Harrow Steering Group. This group 
includes Harrow Council, Stanmore College, Harrow College, Jobcentreplus, 
Business Link in London, Harrow in Business, Brent and Harrow Education 
Business Services and West London Business.  
 
In Quarter 3 and 4 of 2010/11 members of the Group were consulted on a 
revised plan for 2011/12. That plan needed to account for the changed 
circumstances resulting from central government funding cuts faced by 
partner organisations. 
 
2. Performance Management 
 
The Enterprising Harrow Group meet ever quarter and is chaired by the Head 
of Economic Development. Their work supports the Economic Development 
strand in Place Shaping Service Plan. The Enterprising Harrow group manage 
performance against the Enterprising Harrow strategy. The Head of Economic 
Development reports progress against the economic development element in 
the Place Shaping Service Plan to monthly Departmental Management Team 
Performance meetings. Those meetings are chaired by the Corporate 
Director. Directorate performance reports are provided each Quarter to the 
Improvement Board. The Head of Economic also provided Quarterly reports to 
the Harrow Chief Executives Group on progress to mitigate the recession.  
 
The completed Economic Development Action plan for 2010/2011 and the 
Plan for 2011/2112 is attached. 
 
3. Enterprising Harrow Highlights 2010/11  
 
The following outline the delivery highlights from Harrow Council and its 
partners in delivering the  2010/11 Enterprising Harrow Action Plan.  
 

76



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

• Publication of Harrow’s first Local Economic Assessment, providing 
comprehensive analyses of the local economy.  

• Harrow’s first Commitment to Business produced, setting out the 
council’s service offer to businesses.  

• Xcite for Parents supported over 90 parents into work. Future Job fund 
supported 30 young people in employment.  

• Harrow’s first Meet the Buyer Events secured positive feedback from 
over 90% of respondents, and attendance over 100 companies at each 
event, with the opportunity to meet major buyers from companies 
operating in Harrow.  

• The Credit Union has been rolled out and membership targets have 
been exceeded.  

• Future Job Fund supported 43 young people into employment 
• Gateway Asia – two events, over 100 businesses attending in total, 

advised on accessing trade opportunities in India 
• Personal Best – 125 participants are guaranteed Olympic opportunity 

related interviews 
• West London Sustained Employment Programme commenced, with 

new provision provided for Incapacity Benefit claimants by Catalyst.  
• Response to Redundancy Programme supported 200 to gain new 

skills, and supported 60 into employment. 
• Harrow College and Stanmore College supported over 1,000 learners 

in Vocational courses  
• Harrow College developed plumbing and electrical provision for 16-18 

year olds and adult learners.   
• Harrow MIND developed the IAPT service to support employment 

retention for those with mild to moderate mental health issues 
• BHEBS supported Harrow College with 13 vocational programmes with 

work experience 
• BHEBS visited 480 employers and placed 4,200 into work experience 
• Business Link supported over 4,000 Harrow companies, providing 

intensive business support to 123 businesses.  
• HiB contractor of the year Barclays Let's Talk Business programme. 
• HiB’s Invest for Success (matched by Harrow Council) helped Harrow 

companies raise £500k in finance, over 60 clients were supported 
to develop business plans; 75 clients received 12 hour 
support.  

• West London Business successfully delivered Place West. 
Feature articles on Harrow in 2 editions of Business West.   

 
4. Policy context 
 
Since the last review of Economic Development by Scrutiny, new priorities 
have been adopted by Harrow Council and Harrow Strategic Partnership 
which will support our ambitions for economic development.  

• HSP priority of “Welfare and Worklessness”  
Corporate priorities of 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses 

77



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

 
At a national and regional level, provision has changed. The Future Job Fund 
which provided employment to workless young people aged 18-24 has ended, 
West London Working (the City Strategy Pathfinder) was wound up in March 
2011 and the LDA funded CAP09 programme was terminated in January 
2011.  
 
However, the Council was able to extract funds to continue to deliver its Xcite 
employment programme in 2011/12, but this is at 50% of former capacity. 
Equally, on a positive note, HSP is allocating funds through a competitive 
process to organisations that can demonstrate their activities will reduce 
Worklessness.  
 
The council is also bidding to the Outer London Fund to secure funds to 
revitalise Harrow Town Centre and local shopping centres, and the council 
has completed Expressions of Interests to help deliver the DWP/ESF 
programme to support Families with Multiple Problems. 
   
The Welfare to Work landscape has also been drastically changed and will 
continue to be as the Coalition Government’s changes to the Welfare system 
are implemented.   
 
The current and future provision includes the Work Programme, Work Choice, 
and the DWP ESF programme to support families with multiple problems. The 
Economic Development Unit (EDU) has led on developing links with prime 
contractors and responded (with support from Children Services) to the DWP 
consultation on provision for families with multiple problems.  
 
The Coalition Government’s Localism Bill, the proposed revision to the 
Planning System and the development of the Area Action Plan for the Growth 
Corridor also offers the chance for Harrow to attract new office and industrial 
development to the Harrow Town Centre and Wealdstone area, providing new 
job opportunities and the potential to increase revenue to the council with 
increased business rates. (Subject to the outcome of the Local Government 
Resource Review).  The Intensification Area is of central importance to the 
creation of new jobs in Harrow, both in respect of the type of job created and 
the volumes to be created. Of the council’s new jobs target, the bulk (3,000) 
will come from the intensification area. The retail and hospitality sectors offer 
entry level jobs with career paths, providing opportunities for workless 
residents.   
 
5. Tackling Worklessness 
 
There are no guarantees that job creation will impact on unemployment. 
During the years of economic growth in London, 30% of working age residents 
were economically inactive. Of those 40% had dependent children. (In Harrow 
as of April 2011 29.8% of the working age population were workless). 
The barriers to employment are complex, they include housing, childcare, 
educational attainment, poor skills, attitude, offender status, substance abuse, 
discrimination and health and disability.  
 

78



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

In order to understand the EDU approach to tackling Worklessness (outlined 
in the Action Plan), it is important to understand the programmes that are 
being put into place by the Government.   
 
5.1 The Work Programme 
 
The Work Programme is a mandatory programme for residents aged 25+ 
claiming Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) for more than 12 months, and 
residents aged 18-24 out of work for 9 months or more.  
 
Three Prime Contractors  in West London (the western half of London)  are 
Ingeus, Maximus/CDG, and Reed. They have been awarded 5 year contracts, 
with a further 2 years to support clients entering work in Year 5 of their 
programme. The contracts are worth circa £20M. The providers are required 
to provide support to clients for up to 2 years. After a client is helped into 
work, he or she will be supported in work for a further 12 months. All three 
providers are interested in working with the local authority and NHS. Potential 
links that have been identified, include co-location of delivery, operational links 
with housing benefits as clients make the transition into employment, and 
working with Children’s Services to support parents.  
 
Our approach has to been to engage the Prime Contractors with the Director 
of Public Health, and to identify how Prime Contractors provision could reduce 
the call on NHS services.  
 
5.2 DWP/ESF (European Social Fund) employment focussed provision for 
families with multiple problems 
 
The DWP is commissioning ESF (European Social Fund) employment 
focussed provision for families with multiple problems. The DWP has identified 
Local Authorities as the primary route to identify families who would benefit 
from employment support, but delivery is likely to be through prime national 
providers. The aim is to move “customers closer to the labour market”.  This 
provision, provides an opportunity to knit an externally funded service into the 
“Team around the Family” approach.  Particularly if that provision can offer 
sustainable support in helping someone into employment and overcome, for 
example, debt and substance abuse issues. Harrow Council has completed 
Expressions of Interest to participate in the DWP ESF programme.  
 
6. Supporting business growth 
 
The abolition of the Regional Development Agencies and the rationalisation of 
Business Link into a national web based / call centre provider will lead to a 
significant cut in business support available at both regional and local level.  
 
The Mayor’s submission for a London wide Local Enterprise Partnership was 
approved by the DCLG and BIS, but it is not clear how the LEP will be funded 
or how Harrow will benefit.  
 
Supporting local businesses helps to safeguard local jobs and also to create 
new local jobs.  
 

79



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

Through the Enterprising Harrow Group the council is supporting a range of 
initiatives to help Harrow businesses access new markets, reduce costs and 
access finance to help them grow. These include Gateway Asia (to access 
Indian and Chinese markets), Shop4support (accessing disabled shoppers 
and older shoppers), programmes to help businesses raise finance (Access to 
Finance, Mentoring 4 Success), and how to reduce cost and energy use 
(Smartworks).  
 
The Commitment to Business published in February has been welcomed by 
businesses as an easy to use guide to council services. The second edition of 
the Business Directory promotes inter - business trading in Harrow and 
enables buyers to search suppliers of goods and services by category and 
geography.   
 
In 2009, the Audit Commission identified local procurement as the most 
effective tool to combat recession. In October and November 2010 EDU held 
two Meet the Buyer events with local businesses and major buyers from 
several private sector companies. The feedback from local businesses was 
overwhelmingly positive, however there was some adverse comments from 
local companies on tender processes and the use of Tier One suppliers.  
 
The EDU has been working with Procurement to support their development of 
Sustainable Procurement Principles. These will help to encourage a diverse 
local supply chain, and provide opportunities for local recruitment and new 
entrants to the labour market. This will be an effective tool to support local 
companies to develop their own capacity to compete for contracts and also to 
promote apprenticeships for young people.  
 
In the last 12 months Cllr Ferry, portfolio holder for Planning, Development 
and Enterprise has been visiting Harrow’s Large Employers to listen to their 
views and outline the council’s offer.  
 
Work to provide business with a strategic role in Harrow has commenced with 
the recruitment of a representative from business to join the Harrow Chief 
Executives Group of the Harrow Strategic Partnership.  
 
7. Securing new investment and improving the infrastructure for 
business 
 
Attracting and retaining investment is critical to the economic performance of 
an area. Through the Area Action Plan, the Council will be able to reduce risk 
and increase the private sector’s confidence to invest in the area. 
 
The Economic Development Unit has led on the research currently being 
undertaken by Land Securities to identify and develop Harrow’s comparative 
advantage as a business location. This will help identify key growth sectors 
and the approaches required to maximise opportunities to develop clusters in 
the intensification area. The research will also set out how to create 
employment land offers that are attractive to potential inward investors.  
 

80



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

Promoting retail and hospitality growth in the local shopping centres and 
Harrow Town Centre will generate new entry level jobs. These jobs are 
easiest for workless residents to access.  
 
The Mayor and Outer London Commission have announced a new funding 
programme for Outer London Boroughs. This will be the Outer London Fund.  
The programme aims to support Outer London town and district centres that 
will neither benefit from Cross Rail, or the Olympics. The Programme is £50m 
over 3 years.  
 
There will be a competitive process in the allocation of funds. The bidding 
process will support programmes that are phased over two stages. Stage One 
will be targeted at easily deliverable and visible non-infrastructural 
improvements that will boost the trading vitality of the chosen locations in time 
for and beyond the Christmas 2011 trading season. Stage Two will focus on 
spend in years 2 and 3 on projects that are more likely to be infrastructure 
initiatives that can demonstrate economic uplift above a well-researched 
baseline. In Round 1, £10m will be allocated, the maximum allocation for 
Round 1 will be £500k per place (not per borough). Round One applications 
are required by 18th July 2011. Round 2 applications are required by early 
September. .  
 
Harrow Council is leading on the development of the bid, and Enterprisiing 
Harrow members (Harrow College, Jobcentreplus, Harrow in Business) are 
supporting the bid.  
 
 
Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications to the above work.   
 
Performance Issues 
Since the last review of Economic Development by Scrutiny, new priorities 
have been adopted by Harrow Council, the delivery of the Enterprising Harrow 
Strategy will support the following: 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses 
 
Performance indicators are shown below. These are new locally set 
measures, a reduction in each of the above would be positive.   
Town Centre vacancy rate 6.97% April 2011 

Number job seekers allowance claimants  4,116  May 2011 

Empty commercial properties in the borough  500 May 2011 

Vacancy rate - North Harrow (no target) 20.28% June, 2011 
Vacancy rate - Rayners Lane (no target) 7.85% June 2011 

 

81



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\7\7\AI00072771\$jnzl4c4h.doc 

Environmental Impact 
 

N/A not impacting on council’s climate change strategy.  
 
Risk Management Implications 
 

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
  
  
Corporate Priorities 
 
Please identify which corporate priority the report incorporates and how: 
 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
• Supporting our town centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses. 
 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Mark Billington, Head of Economic Development and 
Research, Telephone 020 8736 6533.  
 
Background Papers:   
 
Enterprising Harrow Action Plan 2010/2011 
Enterprising Harrow Action Plan 2011/2012 
 

82



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
 EN

TE
RP

RI
SI

NG
 H

AR
RO

W
 ST

RA
TE

GY
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
 20

10
/2

01
1 U

pd
at

e 
Ke
y t
o L

ea
ds
: H

C –
 H
ar
ro
w 
Co
un
cil
; E
D 
– H

ar
ro
w 
Ec
on
om

ic 
De
ve
lop

me
nt
 te
am

: H
IB
 – 
Ha
rro

w 
in 
Bu
sin

es
s; 
HC

l –
 Co

lle
ge
;  

W
LB
 – 
W
es
t L
on
do
n B

us
ine

ss
 

W
or
k S

tre
am

 A 
Se

cu
rin

g 
In
wa

rd
 In

ve
stm

en
t a

nd
 k
ee

pin
g 
cu

rre
nt
 b
us

ine
ss
es
 w

ith
in 

Ha
rro

w 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

e 
loc

al 
bu

sin
es
s 

ba
se
 re

ma
ins

 b
uo

ya
nt
 C
o-
or
din

at
or
s  

 H
ar
ro
w 

Co
un

cil
 E
co
no

mi
c 
De

ve
lop

me
nt
 te

am
 a
nd

 W
es
t L

on
do

n 
Bu

sin
es
s 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
  

Pr
om

ot
e H

ar
ro
w 
 

• 
Ha

rro
w 

lev
el 

– f
urt

he
r im

pro
ve

 w
eb

 sit
e 

to 
pro

vid
e p

rof
ile 

for
 bu

sin
ess

es 
 • 

De
ve

lop
ing

 ev
ide

nc
e b

ase
 th

rou
gh

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
Ec

on
om

ic A
sse

ssm
en

t 

HC
/E
D 
& 
Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 W
LB
 

We
b s

ite
 up

da
te 

on
go

ing
 

ED
 M

on
thl

y B
usi

ne
ss 

Ne
ws

let
ter

 to
 al

l lo
cal

 co
mp

an
ies

 w
ith

 em
ail 

on
 Ha

rro
w’s

 Bu
sin

ess
 Di

rec
tor

y 
as 

we
ll a

s b
usi

ne
ss 

con
tac

ts 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 LE
A. 

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
firs

t I
nv

est
me

nt 
pro

file
 fo

r N
ort

h H
arr

ow
.  

WL
B 2

 ar
tic

les
 in

 Bu
sin

ess
 W

est
 pr

om
oti

ng
 Ha

rro
w 

Se
ek
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r i
nt
er
na
tio
na
l 

inv
es
tm
en
t, 
ma

rk
et
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

me
nt
 

 
HC

/E
D;
 Th

ink
 Lo

nd
on
;  

Ga
tew

ay
 As

ia:
 Ga

tew
ay

 As
ia 

– W
ork

sho
p T

rad
e a

nd
 Fi

na
nc

ial 
Ins

tru
me

nts
 Ha

rro
w 

Civ
ic 1

 29
th

 Ju
ne

 
– 3

0 p
art

icip
ati

ng
 bu

sin
ess

es.
  

Sc
op

ing
 ex

erc
ise

 on
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ac
tio

n P
lan

 w
ith

 Ga
tew

ay
 As

ia 
for

 an
 in

wa
rd 

inv
est

me
nt 

fro
m 

Ind
ia.

 
 29

 M
arc

h B
usi

ne
ss 

Su
pp

ort
 ev

en
t; D

oin
g B

usi
ne

ss 
wit

h I
nd

ia 
ho

ste
d a

t H
arr

ow
 Co

un
cil,

 ad
vic

e o
n 

tax
, m

ark
ets

, le
ga

l is
sue

s, 
fin

an
ce 

ins
tru

me
nts

 fro
m 

Ch
an

tre
y V

ella
cou

rt, 
Ta

ta 
Co

nsu
lta

nc
y 

Se
rvi

ces
, F

ox
 M

an
de

l L
ittl

e a
nd

 th
e D

TI.
 O

ve
r 5

0 b
usi

ne
sse

s a
tte

nd
ed

.  
Ne

xt 
ev

en
t 1

4th
 Ap

ril 
W
LB

 
Pla

ce 
We

st 
Oc

t 2
01

0: 
ve

ry 
suc

ces
sfu

l co
nsi

de
rin

g e
con

om
ic c

lim
ate

 – 
ve

ry 
go

od
 sp

ea
ke

rs 
inc

lud
ing

 
Sir

 Si
mo

n M
ilto

n. 
MI

PIM
 de

leg
ati

on
 co

ord
ina

ted
 – 

5 o
ut 

of 
6 b

oro
ug

hs 
con

trib
ute

d t
o a

 W
 Lo

nd
on

 st
an

d a
nd

 
bro

ch
ure

 
 

Pr
o a

cti
ve
 Bu

sin
es
s R

et
en
tio
n 

 
HC

/E
D/
W
LB
 

Ha
rds

hip
 Ra

te 
Re

lief
 Fu

nd
 pr

om
ote

d t
hro

ug
h B

usi
ne

ss 
A t

o Z
.  

3 a
pp

lica
tio

ns 
rec

eiv
ed

 £1
7k

  a
id 

dis
trib

ute
d 

Ro
un

d o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 la
rge

 em
plo

ye
rs 

com
me

nc
ed

.  
Qu

art
erl

y m
ee

tin
gs 

Ch
am

be
r.  

83



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Re

lax
ati

on
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

con
tro

ls t
o p

rom
ote

 re
ten

tio
n. 

 
W
LB
 

 
W
or
k S

tre
am

 B1
 

Ta
ck
lin

g S
kil

ls 
sh

or
tag

es
 &
 Em

plo
ya

bil
ity

 Is
su

es
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

(T
ak

en
 fo

rw
ar
d v

ia 
Sk

ills
 an

d E
mp

loy
me

nt
 Fr

am
ew

or
k)
 Le

ad
 Vi

cto
ria

 Is
aa

cs
 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
  

 
Sk
ills

 Sh
or
ta
ge
s  

 
HC

ou
nc
il 

10
 Ap

pre
nti

ces
 – 

con
str

uct
ion

, 4
0 j

ob
s f

rom
 Xc

ite
 co

nst
ruc

tio
n –

 at
 Ha

rro
w 

Co
un

cil 
42

 Fu
tur

e J
ob

 Fu
nd

ed
 pl

ace
me

nts
 of

fer
ing

 w
ork

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e a
nd

 tr
ain

ing
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

we
re 

ev
en

tua
lly 

ach
iev

ed
 th

rou
gh

ou
t H

arr
ow

. 
We

st 
Lo

nd
on

 In
ter

im
 Sk

ills
 St

rat
eg

y c
om

ple
ted

.  
20

 W
ork

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e p
lac

em
en

ts 
Ha
rro

w 
Co
lle
ge
  

1.T
he

 Co
lleg

e i
s li

ke
ly 

pu
t o

n a
 re

pe
at 

of 
pro

gra
mm

es 
run

 un
de

r t
he

 six
 m

on
th 

off
er 

cov
eri

ng
 ba

sic
 

an
d i

nte
rm

ed
iat

e I
T. 

  
Cu

rre
ntl

y, 
the

 Co
lleg

e h
as 

JSA
 cla

im
an

ts 
on

 th
e f

ollo
win

g f
ull

 le
ve

l 2
 an

d f
ull 

lev
el 

3 p
rog

ram
me

s 
an

d w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 ac
cep

t o
n t

o t
he

se 
cou

rse
s n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

• 
Ac
ces

s t
o N

urs
ing

, 
• 

Ac
ces

s t
o H

um
an
itie

s a
nd
 So

cia
l S
cie

nc
e 

• 
Ac
ces

s t
o E

du
cat

ion
 (p

rim
ary

) 
• 

ES
OL

 – 
En
try

 1-
3 

• 
Bu
sin

ess
 St

ud
ies

 le
ve
l 2
 

• 
AA

T l
ev
el 
2 a

nd
 3 

• 
PT
TL
S 

• 
CE
LT
A 

• 
Ele

ctr
ica

l le
ve
l 1
 an

d 2
 

• 
Co
ns
tru

cti
on
  le

ve
l 1
 

• 
Plu

mb
ing

 le
ve
l 1
 an

d 2
 

• 
Ha

ird
res

sin
g l
ev
el 
1 a

nd
 2 
NV

Q 
• 

Be
au
ty 
lev

el 
2 N

VQ
 an

d I
TE
C 

• 
Ca
ch
e E

ntr
y L

ev
el 
Aw

ard
 in
 Ca

rin
g f

or 
Ch
ild
ren

 
• 

Ch
ild
ren

's C
are

 Le
arn

ing
 & 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Le
ve
l 2
 

• 
Pre

pa
rat

ion
 fo
r W

ork
ing

 w
ith
 Ch

ild
ren

 an
d A

du
lts
 

• 
He

alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c
are

 le
ve
l 2
 an

d 3
 

84



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
• 

BT
EC
 Le

ve
l 1
 Di

plo
ma

 fo
r I
T U

ser
s 

 2. 
Th

e C
olle

ge
 is 

loo
kin

g a
t a

 br
oa

de
r o

ffe
r fr

om
 Au

gu
st 

on
wa

rds
 to

 in
clu

de
 sh

ort
 in

ten
siv

e 
em

plo
ya

bil
ity

 pr
og

ram
me

s w
ith

 lit
era

cy.
  

Th
e C

olle
ge

 is 
pre

pa
rin

g a
 R
ou
tes

 in
to
 W
or
k p

rog
ram

me
 (p

re-
ap

pre
nti

ces
hip

) t
o s

tar
t in

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
for

 16
-18

 ye
ar 

old
s s

o c
ou

ld 
be

 op
en

ed
 to

 JC
P c

laim
an

ts 
wh

o a
re 

18
. 

3. 
Th

e C
olle

ge
, a

lon
g w

ith
 St

an
mo

re,
 ha

d a
n L

SIS
 bi

d a
pp

rov
ed

 to
 lo

ok
 at

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s a

cro
ss 

a 
ran

ge
 of

 ba
ck 

off
ice

 fu
nc

tio
ns.

  T
he

 pr
oje

ct 
ha

s j
ust

 st
art

ed
. 

4. 
A n

ew
 po

st 
He

ad
 of

 De
ve

lop
me

nt,
 En

ter
pri

se 
an

d I
nn

ov
ati

on
 ha

s b
ee

n r
ecr

uit
ed

 to
.  P

art
 of

 th
e 

res
po

nsi
bil

itie
s w

ill c
ov

er 
me

eti
ng

 lo
cal

 ne
ed

s t
o b

roa
de

n w
ha

t H
Cl 

cu
rre

ntl
y o

ffe
rs 

an
d l

oo
k a

t th
is 

acr
oss

 th
e c

urr
icu

lum
.  T

his
 w

ill i
nc

lud
e i

mp
rov

ing
 ho

w 
HC

l w
ork

 w
ith

 JC
P. 

  
Th

e C
are

ers
 se

cti
on

 ha
s b

ee
n r

eo
rga

nis
ed

 to
 Ca

ree
rs 

an
d E

mp
loy

ab
ilit

y t
o p

rov
ide

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 
sup

po
rt t

o l
ea

rne
rs 

as 
we

ll o
ffe

r a
 w

ork
 clu

b. 
 Sp

eci
fic 

are
as 

tar
ge

ted
 to

 de
ve

lop
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 fro
m 

rep
ort

s o
n W

est
 Lo

nd
on

 ar
e h

osp
ita

lity
 (f

ron
t e

nd
 se

rvi
ces

) a
nd

 ap
pre

nti
ces

hip
s 

in 
IT,

 Bu
sin

ess
 Ad

mi
n, 

Ca
re,

 He
alt

h, 
Cu

sto
me

r S
erv

ice
.  R

ew
ork

ing
 th

e E
SO

L p
rov

isio
n w

hic
h 

sup
po

rts
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

nu
mb

er 
of 

Ha
rro

w 
res

ide
nts

 in
 or

de
r t

o m
ain

tai
n t

he
 le

ve
l o

f p
rov

isio
n b

ut 
en

sur
e i

t c
an

 le
ad

 to
 Fo

un
da

tio
n L

ea
rni

ng
 an

d f
irs

t le
ve

l 2
 qu

alif
ica

tio
ns.

  
Ho

we
ve

r, H
CL

 st
ill c

om
mi

tte
d t

o o
ffe

rin
g (

tho
ug

h s
ma

ller
 pr

op
ort

ion
) o

f E
SO

L a
t e

ntr
y 1

 an
d 2

, b
ut 

thi
s is

 on
ly 

go
ing

 to
 be

 co
-fu

nd
ed

 an
d w

ill r
eq

uir
e p

eo
ple

 pa
yin

g f
ee

s a
nd

 th
ese

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 

un
de

r r
ev

iew
. 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

lleg
e s

ub
mi

ssi
on

 Le
arn

ing
 Sk

ills
 bi

d f
or 

pre
 Ap

pre
nti

ces
hip

 tr
ain

ing
 w

as 
suc

ces
sfu

l. T
he

 
pro

jec
t w

ill p
rov

ide
 Vo

cat
ion

al 
tas

ter
 co

urs
es,

 Em
plo

ya
bil

ity
 sk

ills
 tr

ain
ing

 (u
sin

g W
ork

ski
lls 

or 
Em

plo
ya

bil
ity

 sk
ills

 aw
ard

s),
 M

en
tor

ing
, a

 sh
ort

 in
ter

nsh
ip 

or 
wo

rk 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 a 

loc
al 

em
plo

ye
r 

 St
an
mo

re
 Co

lle
ge
  

Sta
nm

ore
 Co

lleg
e i

s r
un

nin
g w

ork
 fo

cu
sed

 tr
ain

ing
 pr

og
ram

me
s in

 th
e f

ollo
win

g a
rea

s :
IT 

Ne
tw

ork
ing

, S
ecu

rity
, F

ina
nc

e, 
Re

tai
l, H

osp
ita

lity
 an

d M
an

ag
em

en
t, t

o m
ee

t lo
cal

 bu
sin

ess
 

va
can

cie
s. 

In 
ad

dit
ion

 St
an

mo
re 

Co
lleg

e r
un

s v
oca

tio
na

l tr
ain

ing
 th

rou
gh

 T2
G p

rog
ram

me
s in

 Sp
ect

ato
r 

Sa
fet

y, 
Bu

sin
ess

 an
d A

dm
in,

 Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

, A
dv

ice
 an

d G
uid

an
ce,

 Te
am

 Le
ad

ing
 an

d 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt,

 He
alt

h a
nd

 So
cia

l C
are

, W
ast

e M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 Ch

ild
car

e. 
Ad

ult
 Ap

pre
nti

ces
hip

 
pro

gra
mm

e b
ein

g r
un

 in
 Bu

sin
ess

 an
d A

dm
in 

an
d T

ea
m 

Le
ad

ing
.  F

urt
he

r p
lac

es 
av

aila
ble

. 
 Mil

l F
arm

 – 
con

str
uc

tio
n t

rai
nin

g o
pp

ort
un

itie
s a

gre
ed

 w
ith

 Ge
ne

sis
 - T

rai
ne

e A
dm

ini
str

ato
r /

 RL
O, 

Tra
ine

e G
rou

nd
 W

ork
er,

 Ca
ter

ing
 an

d I
T t

rai
nin

g d
eliv

ere
d. 

 
Ha

rro
w 

PC
T d

ev
elo

pin
g a

pp
ren

tic
esh

ip 
mo

de
l. 

Es
ta
bli
sh
 em

plo
ye
r n
ee
ds
 

Qu
art

erl
y c

ha
mb

er 
liai

son
 in

 pl
ace

.  

85



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Fe

ed
ba

ck 
fro

m 
ag

en
cie

s w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 em

plo
ye

rs 
Sk

ills
 W

ork
sho

p w
ith

 em
plo

ye
rs 
 

20
11

 Bu
sin

ess
 Se

nti
me

nt 
sur

ve
y b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d b

y W
est

 Lo
nd

on
 Bu

sin
ess

.  
Lo

cal
 Ec

on
om

ic A
sse

ssm
en

t p
rov

ide
s b

asi
s f

or 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 em

plo
ym

en
t tr

en
ds 

an
d q

ua
lific

ati
on

 
lev

els
.  

Sta
nm

ore
 Co

lleg
e –

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 fo
r E

xce
llen

ce 
em

plo
ye

r s
urv

ey
 se

nt 
ou

t a
nn

ua
lly.

 
W
or
k b

as
ed
 cu

rri
cu
lum

 
De

live
r a

pp
ren

tic
esh

ip 
an

d T
2G

 tra
ini

ng
.  

HC
l 

Se
e a

bo
ve
 re
 ap

pr
en
tic
es
hip

s. 
Ha

rro
w 

Co
lleg

e h
as 

suc
ces

sfu
lly 

de
ve

lop
ed

 its
 pl

um
bin

g a
nd

 el
ect

ric
al 

pro
vis

ion
 fo

r 1
6-1

8 y
ea

r o
lds

 
an

d a
du

lt l
ea

rne
rs.

  It
 ha

s a
lso

 no
w 

be
gu

n t
o o

ffe
r C

PD
 co

urs
es 

for
 el

ect
ric

ian
s a

nd
 w

ill e
xp

an
d f

or 
oth

er 
tra

de
 ar

ea
s. 

 Th
e C

olle
ge

 al
so 

off
ers

 a 
Fo

un
da

tio
n D

eg
ree

 in
 Bu

sin
ess

 M
an

ag
em

en
t fo

r 
pe

op
le 

in 
jun

ior
 or

 hi
gh

er 
po

sit
ion

 as
 w

ell 
as 

a s
ucc

ess
ful

 FD
 in

 Co
un

sel
lin

g a
nd

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 te
ach

er 
tra

ini
ng

 pr
og

ram
me

s. 
Th

rou
gh

 its
 Pa

ren
ts 

int
o e

mp
loy

ab
ilit

y p
ath

wa
ys 

pro
jec

t th
e c

olle
ge

 ha
s d

ev
elo

pe
d w

ork
 sh

ad
ow

ing
 

rou
tes

 fo
r a

du
lt l

ea
rne

rs 
an

d s
pe

cifi
c p

rog
ram

me
s f

or 
ES

OL
 le

arn
ers

 de
ve

lop
ing

 th
eir

 em
plo

ya
bili

ty 
ski

lls.
 

Sta
nm

ore
 Co

lleg
e –

 se
e a

bo
ve

 en
try

 in
 sk

ills
 sh

ort
ag

es 
Co
lle
ge
/L
SC
 Pr

og
ra
mm

e  
Ma

int
ain

 an
d d

ev
elo

p u
p s

kil
lin
g 

pr
og
ra
mm

es
  

� 
Bid

 fo
r p
ro
vid

er
 tr
ain

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

  

St
an
mo

re
 Co

lle
ge

 – 
de

live
ry 

res
po

nse
 to

 Re
du

nd
an

cy 
pro

gra
mm

e 
Ha

rro
w 

Co
lleg

e –
 In

 20
09

/10
 th

e C
olle

ge
 ha

s s
up

po
rte

d n
ea

rly
 a 

10
00

 fu
nd

ed
 le

arn
ers

 ac
ros

s 
lev

els
 2,

 3,
 4 

an
d 5

. T
he

 Co
lleg

e h
as 

wo
rke

d w
ith

 ov
er 

20
0 l

ea
rne

rs 
to 

res
kill

 in
 ar

ea
s s

uc
h a

s 
bu

sin
ess

 ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n, 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
an

d h
ea

lth
 & 

soc
ial 

car
e a

nd
 ha

s s
up

po
rte

d o
ve

r 1
50

 
lea

rne
rs 

pro
gre

ss 
an

d u
psk

ill f
rom

 le
ve

l 2
 to

 3.
  W

he
re 

ne
ces

sar
y t

he
 Co

lleg
e h

as 
sup

po
rte

d 
lea

rne
rs 

to 
im

pro
ve

 th
eir

 lit
era

cy 
in 

ord
er 

for
 th

em
 to

 pr
og

res
s t

o t
he

 ne
xt 

lev
el.

 
 Sta

nm
ore

 Co
lleg

e i
s b

idd
ing

 fo
r t

he
 DW

P W
ork

 Pr
og

ram
me

 – 
ele

me
nt 

tra
inin

g a
nd

 up
ski

llin
g. 

    
Re
mo

ve
 ba

rri
er
s t
o w

or
k 

Xc
ite
 Pr

og
ra
mm

e 
         Jo
b C

en
tre

 
• 

Wo
rk 

Clu
bs 

Xc
ite

  - 
em

plo
ym

en
t s

up
po

rt 
(pr

e w
ork

 an
d i

n w
ork

) 2
90

 cli
en

ts.
 90

 Jo
bs

, n
ot 

all 
elig

ible
 fo

r th
e 

fun
de

d p
rog

ram
me

 
It 

clo
sed

 in
 M

arc
h 2

01
1. 

 
Xc

ite
 (X

3) 
Wo

rk 
Clu

bs 
ha

ve
 no

w 
be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 as

 a 
leg

acy
 pr

oje
ct 

fro
m 

fun
din

g o
rig

ina
lly 

ge
ne

rat
ed

 fro
m 

the
 LD

A E
SF

 fu
nd

ing
 st

rea
m 

an
d w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt t

o 
res

ide
nts

 fro
m 

the
 Ci

vic
 Ce

ntr
e, 

Th
e B

ea
con

 an
d S

av
oy

 Co
urt

 Co
mm

un
ity

 Ce
ntr

e. 
 

Th
e f

irs
t W

ork
 Cl

ub
 he

ld 
in 

Civ
ic C

en
tre

 ha
d 9

0 a
tte

nd
ee

s. 
 

Uti
lisi

ng
 ES

F T
ran

sna
tio

na
l N

PW
WL

 (N
ew

 Pa
thw

ay
s t

o W
ork

 in
 W

est
 Lo

nd
on

) -
 Br

ing
ing

 m
en

tal
 

he
alt

h a
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt s

erv
ice

s c
los

er 
tog

eth
er,

 De
ve

lop
ing

 ne
w 

an
d i

mp
rov

ed
 pa

thw
ay

s 
int

o e
mp

loy
me

nt 
for

 th
e m

ost
 di

sad
va

nta
ge

d c
om

mu
nit

ies
 in

 W
est

 Lo
nd

on
. 

Jo
b C

en
tre

 Pl
us
 

Wo
rk 

Clu
bs 

de
live

red
 by

  :-
 

HA
SV

O 
Ca

tal
yst

  H
ou

sin
g 

86



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Xc

ite
    
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh
ip 
wo

rk
ing

:  
- 

JC
P M

an
ag

er 
giv

en
 su

pp
ort

 to
 PC

T/I
AP

T l
ea

d f
or 

Ha
rro

w;
  

- 
JC

P A
tte

nd
s N

ew
 Ar

riv
als

 Ta
sk 

Fo
rce

  
- 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 Ha

rro
w 

As
soc

iat
ion

 of
 So

ma
li V

olu
nta

ry 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

s 
- 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tes

 in
 va

rio
us 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Bo
ard

s r
un

 by
 Ha

rro
w 

Co
un

cil 
- 

Ma
na

ge
r w

ork
s w

ith
 va

rio
us 

vo
lun

tar
y o

rga
nis

ati
on

s  
    

    
    

 
Ha

rro
w 

Co
lleg

e i
s n

ow
 ru

nn
ing

 an
 LD

A p
roj

ect
 su

pp
ort

ing
 pa

ren
ts 

int
o e

mp
loy

ab
ilit

y p
ath

wa
ys 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 JC

P a
nd

 ha
s 5

7 l
ea

rne
rs 

cu
rre

ntl
y s

ign
ed

 up
.  P

are
nts

 ar
e s

ign
-po

ste
d t

o J
CP

 an
d 

xci
te 

Pro
gra

mm
e. 

 Ha
rro

w 
Co

lleg
e c

on
tin

ue
s t

o p
rov

ide
 su

cce
ssf

ul 
ES

OL
 in

to 
Wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

es 
wh

ich
 al

so 
off

er 
wo

rk 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e. 

 Sta
nm

ore
 Co

lleg
e h

as 
bid

 as
 a 

pa
rtn

er 
(H

arr
ow

 Co
un

cil 
lea

d) 
for

 th
e I

nte
gra

tio
n o

f T
hir

d C
ou

ntr
y 

Na
tio

na
ls f

un
d f

rom
 th

e E
uro

pe
an

 Co
mm

iss
ion

. 
 RE

AC
H P

rog
ram

me
 de

live
red

 su
pp

ort
 to

 79
 cli

en
ts 

wit
h 4

 jo
b s

tar
ts.

  
 Cre

dit
 Un

ion
 – 

ov
er 

10
0 m

em
be

rs.
  

W
or
k S

tre
am

 B2
 

Em
plo

ym
en

t E
na

bli
ng

   
Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
  

 
Sli
ve
rs 
of 
Tim

e 
 

Pro
mo

ted
 fo

r s
oci

al 
car

e t
hro

ug
h P

CT
.  

Ha
rro

w 
Pr
ov
ide

r G
ro
up
 

• 
Es

tab
lish

 Ha
rro

w 
wid

e p
rac

titi
on

er 
gro

up
 

Pro
vid

er 
Gr

ou
p r

ole
 to

 be
 ex

ten
de

d. 
 

• 
Le
ad
 by

 ex
am

ple
   

HC
/H
R 
an
d J

ob
 Ce

nt
re
 Pl
us
 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

be
ing

 co
mp

let
ed

.  
Job

 br
ok

era
ge

 m
od

el 
we

ll e
sta

bli
she

d, 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 va

can
cie

s t
hro

ug
h J

CP
 be

for
e g

oin
g e

xte
rna

l, 2
 

rec
rui

ted
 Q

1. 
 

W
or
k E

xp
er
ien

ce
/ V

olu
nt
ee
rin
g 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

lleg
e -

 Pa
ren

ts 
int

o E
mp

loy
ab

ilit
y P

ath
wa

ys 
pro

gra
mm

e p
rov

ide
s o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

wo
rk 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e. 
  

 BH
EB

S s
up

po
rtin

g H
arr

ow
 Co

lleg
e w

ith
 th

e L
SIS

 pr
e a

pp
ren

tic
esh

ip 
pro

gra
mm

e. 
  

Vis
its

 be
ing

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

to 
em

plo
ye

rs 
to 

ob
tai

n w
ork

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e p
lac

em
en

ts 
wh

ich
 ar

e a
pp

rov
ed

 fo
r 

87



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
KS

 4 
an

d P
ost

 16
 st

ud
en

ts 
an

d t
o p

rom
ote

 th
e P

re 
ap

pre
nti

ces
hip

 pr
og

ram
me

 an
d t

o g
ag

e w
ha

t is
 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

sta
tus

 fo
r e

mp
loy

me
nt.

  
On

e s
tud

en
t in

 Ju
ly 

20
10

 di
d s

o w
ell 

on
 KS

 4 
wo

rk 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e t

ha
t h

e i
s b

ein
g o

ffe
red

 an
 

ap
pre

nti
ces

hip
 w

ith
 a 

loc
al 

com
pa

ny
. 

Ma
jor

 w
ork

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

wit
h s

tud
en

ts 
wit

h L
DD

 to
 he

lp 
pro

vid
e t

he
m 

wit
h t

ailo
red

 w
ork

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
an

d w
ill b

e w
ork

ing
 to

 as
sis

t 6
 Ha

rro
w 

Hig
h s

ch
oo

ls t
o s

en
d o

ut 
12

00
 st

ud
en

ts 
in 

Jul
y. 

 
Id
en
tif
y o

pp
or
tu
nit
ies

 to
 tr
ain

 to
 w
or
k o

n 
en
vir
on
me

nt
al 
ini
tia
tiv
es
 

Re
tro

fit 
Em

plo
ym

en
t P

rog
ram

me
 bi

d s
ub

mi
tte

d t
o L

DA
 (D

ece
mb

er 
09

) 
Pro

gra
mm

e s
uc

ces
sfu

l, i
nit

ial 
me

eti
ng

 w
ith

 LB
 Ea

lin
g, 

to 
loo

k a
t o

utr
ea

ch
 th

rou
gh

 Ha
rro

w’s
 CT

I.  
W
or
k S

tre
am

 B3
 

Di
re
ct 

De
liv

er
y –

 Co
-o
rd
ina

ter
 Vi

cto
ria

 Is
aa

cs
  

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
  

 
Jo
bc
en
tre

plu
s 

JC
P 

To
p 1

0 N
ot
ifie

d V
ac
an
cie

s b
y o

cc
up
ati
on
 

        Ma
ins

tre
am

 pr
og
ra
mm

es
 

             

1 
71
21
: C
oll
ec
tor
 sa

les
pe
rso

ns
 an

d c
red

it a
ge
nts

 
2 

35
42
: S
ale

s r
ep
res

en
tat
ive
 

3 
61
15
 : C

are
 as

sis
tan

ts 
an
d h

om
e c

are
rs 

4 
92
41
: S
ec
uri
ty 
gu
ard

s a
nd
 re
lat
ed
 oc

cu
pa
tio
ns
 

5 
71
11
 : S

ale
s a

nd
 re
tai
l a
ss
ist
an
ts 

6 
42
16
: R
ec
ep
tio
nis
ts 

7 
41
22
: A
cc
ou
nts

 an
d w

ag
es
 cl
erk

s, 
bo
ok
-ke

ep
ers

, o
the

r fi
na
nc
ial
 cl
erk

s 
8 

23
12
: F
urt
he
r e
du
ca
tio
n t
ea
ch
ing

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

als
 

9 
71
13
: T
ele
ph
on
e s

ale
sp
ers

on
s. 

10
 

91
29
: L
ab
ou
rer
s i
n o

the
r c
on
str
uc
tio
n t
rad

es
 n.
e.c

. 
 

 
Fr

om
 D

ay
 1 

inc
lud

es
 

• 
Su
pp
ort
 fo
r p
rof
es
sio
na
l &
 ex
ec
uti
ve
s (
un
til 
Ma
rch
 20
11
) 

• 
Su
pp
ort
 fo
r n
ew
ly 
un
em
plo
ye
d –
 JC

P S
up
po
rt C

on
tra
ct 

• 
Ad
dit
ion
al 
su
pp
ort
 fo
r p
eo
ple
 w
ith
 di
sa
bil
itie
s t
hro

ug
h D

EA
 & 
W
ork
 C
ho
ice
 – 
thi
s i
nc
lud
es
 

pe
op
le 
to 
fin
d w

ork
 or
 to
 re
ma
in 
in 
wo
rk.
 

• 
Ac
ce
ss
 to
 th
e N

ew
 D
ea
l fo
r lo
ne
 pa
ren

ts 
an
d p
art
ne
rs.
 

• 
W
ork
 Fo

cu
se
d S

up
po
rt f
or 
Ca
rer
s 

• 
Em

plo
ya
bil
ity
 Sk

ills
 an
d B

as
ic 
Sk
ills
 Pr
og
ram

me
 (u
nti
l F
eb
 20
11
) 

• 
Pr
og
res
s2
W
ork
 (s
tab
ilis
ed
 dr
ug
 m
isu
se
) 

• 
Vo
lun
tar
y D

rug
 Tr
ea
tm
en
t re

fer
ral
s 

• 
W
ork
 C
lub
s 

• 
W
ork
 To
ge
the
r 

• 
Ne
xt 
Ste

p 
• 

ES
F P

rog
ram

me
 

88



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
                    Ot
he
r A

cti
vit
y 

• 
Ap
pre

nti
ce
sh
ips
 (1
8-2

4) 
Fr

om
 3 

Mo
nth

s i
nc

lud
es

  
• 

Ad
dit
ion
al 
ad
vis
er 
int
erv
iew

s 
• 

Se
lf e
mp
loy
me
nt 
su
pp
ort
 & 
cre
dit

 
Fr

om
 6 

Mo
nth

s i
nc

lud
es

 
Ac
ce
ss
 to
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 tra

ini
ng
 is
 av
ail
ab
le:
 

• 
Jo
bc
en
tre
 Pl
us
 Su

pp
ort
 C
on
tra
ct 
 

• 
W
ork
 Fo

cu
se
d T

rai
nin
g (
un
til 
Fe
b 2
01
1) 

• 
Fu
tur
e J
ob
s F
un
d o
pp
ort
un
itie
s (

un
til 

Ma
rch

 20
11

) 
• 

Ro
ute
s i
nto
 W
ork
 (u

nti
l F

eb
 20

11
) 

• 
Ne
w 
De
al 
for
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple
 – 
int
en
siv
e a
dv
ise
r s
up
po
rt f
oll
ow
ed
 by
 re
qu
ire
me
nt 
to 
tak
e u
p 

on
e o
f fo
ur 
op
tio
ns
. (l
as
t re
fer
ral
 31
.03
.11
) 

• 
In 
W
ork
 Tr
ain
ing
 G
ran

t (5
0+
) 

• 
W
ork
 Tr
ial
s –
 Tr
ial
 pe
rio
d i
n a
n a
ctu
al 
job
. C
us
tom

er 
rem

ain
s o
n b
en
efi
t. M

ax
im
um
 du
rat
ion
: 

30
 da
ys
 ov
er 
no
 m
ore

 th
an
 6 
we
ek
s 

• 
Gr
ad
ua
te 
Int
ern

sh
ips
 (u
nti
l M
arc
h 2
01
1) 

 Fr
om

 18
 M

on
ths

 in
clu

de
s N

ew
 D
ea
l 2
5+
 - I
nte
ns
ive
 ad
vis
er 
su
pp
ort
 fo
llo
we
d b
y r
eq
uir
em
en
t to
 

tak
e u
p a
n o
pti
on
 (la
st 
ref
err
als
 31
.03
.11
) 

Ne
w 
De
al 
25
 pl
us
 – 
(un

til 
Ju
ne
 20
11
) 

 
- 

 
- 

W
ilk
ins

on
s S

to
re

 - O
pe

n D
ay

s a
tte

nd
ed

 by
 13

00
0 p

eo
ple

 kn
ow

 ou
tco

me
s t

o d
ate

 13
0, 

70
% 

of 
wh

ich
 ar

e p
erm

an
en

t p
ost

s. 
  

Ma
np
ow

er
 H
ar
ro
w-

 Re
cru

ite
d f

or 
Ma

il W
ork

ers
. 2

50
 in

ter
vie

we
d 1

37
 st

illl 
em

plo
ye

d. 
    

 
-P
ar
k R

oy
al 
W
or
kfo

rce
 – 

JC
P w

ork
s c

los
ely

 w
ith

 Pa
rk 

Ro
ya

l w
ork

for
ce 

on
 av

era
ge

 JC
P r

ece
ive

 
be

tw
ee

n 1
00

-12
5 v

aca
nc

ies
 pe

r m
on

th 
fro

m 
the

 Re
tai

l P
ark

.   
 

 Fu
tur

e J
ob

 Fu
nd

 42
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

 pr
ov

ide
d w

ith
 em

plo
ym

en
t.  

W
or
k S

tre
am

  
Su

pp
or
tin

g t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 of

 en
ter

pr
ise

 sk
ills

 an
d a

cu
me

n s
o t

ha
t l
oc
al 

en
tre

pr
en

eu
rs 

be
co
me

 lo
ca
l 

bu
sin

es
se
s a

nd
 ex

ist
ing

 SM
Es
 su

sta
in 

an
d g

ro
w 

    
    

   L
ea

d H
ar
ro
w 

in 
Bu

sin
es
s 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
  

Bu
sin

es
s S

up
po
rt 
 

St
ar
t U

p 
Su
rv
iva

l 
Gr
ow

th
  

ED
 

Als
o a

t R
ece

ssi
on

 Bu
stin

g G
rou

p –
 bi

-m
on

thl
y  

HI
B 

Th
e B

usi
ne

ss 
Lo

nd
on

 Co
ntr

act
 fin

ish
ed

 on
 th

e 3
1st  De

cem
be

r 2
01

0, 
HiB

 w
ere

 th
e o

nly
 co

ntr
act

or 
in 

89



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
the

 Bu
sin

ess
 Lo

nd
on

 W
est

 Co
nso

rtiu
m 

to 
com

ple
te 

an
d e

xce
ed

 al
l th

eir
 ta

rge
ts.

  T
he

 ta
rge

t fo
r 

Bu
sin

ess
es 

Cre
ate

d (
1 y

ea
r t

rad
ing

) w
as 

12
 an

d H
iB 

ach
iev

ed
 32

 th
us 

ex
cee

din
g t

he
 ta

rge
t b

y 2
0. 

 
Th

ey
 re

ach
ed

 th
e t

arg
et 

for
 Bu

sin
ess

es 
sta

rte
d (

28
 fo

r t
he

 ye
ar)

; th
e t

arg
et 

for
 Bu

sin
ess

es 
Su

pp
ort

ed
 (u

p t
o 3

 ho
urs

) w
as 

23
 - H

iB 
ach

iev
ed

 13
5 t

hu
s e

xce
ed

ing
 th

is t
arg

et 
by

 11
2; 

tar
ge

t fo
r 

Le
arn

ing
 O

pp
ort

un
ity

 (6
 ho

urs
 pl

us)
 w

as 
8 a

nd
 Hi

B a
ch

iev
ed

 32
, th

ere
for

e p
lus

 24
.  

 DW
P a

lso
 co

mp
let

ed
 in

 De
cem

be
r 2

01
0 a

nd
 Hi

B r
ea

ch
ed

 al
l it

s t
arg

ets
 an

d h
ad

 tw
o c

lien
ts 

ch
ose

n 
as 

cas
e s

tud
ies

 fo
r  L

et’
s T

alk
 Bu

sin
ess

 – 
Ba

rcl
ay

s S
po

nso
red

 ev
en

ts.
  T

he
 ta

rge
t fo

r t
he

 ye
ar 

wa
s  

als
o e

xce
ed

ed
 an

d w
e h

ad
 to

 as
k f

or 
ex

tra
 ou

tpu
ts 

wh
ich

 w
ere

 ag
ree

d. 
Th

ese
 ta

rge
ts 

we
re 

als
o 

ach
iev

ed
.  H

iB 
wa

s a
lso

 aw
ard

ed
 co

ntr
act

or 
of 

the
 ye

ar 
by

 th
e N

FE
A a

nd
 Ba

rcl
ay

s: 
 “Th

e c
ere

mo
ny

 al
so 

inc
lud

ed
 an

 aw
ard

 fo
r th

e B
arc

lay
’s L

et’
s T

alk
 pr

og
ram

me
 - b

usi
ne

ss 
sta

rt u
p 

sem
ina

rs 
run

 by
 NF

EA
 M

em
be

rs 
acr

oss
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y. 

Th
e B

ar
cla

y’s
 Le

t’s
 Ta

lk 
Co
nt
ra
cto

r o
f t
he
 

Ye
ar

 w
as 

an
no

un
ced

 as
 Ha

rro
w 

En
ter

pri
se 

Ag
en

cy 
for

 its
 ex

cep
tio

na
l d

eliv
ery

 of
 th

e p
rog

ram
me

 
ov

er 
the

 co
ntr

act
ed

 ta
rge

ts 
an

d f
or 

tho
rou

gh
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n t
hro

ug
ho

ut 
the

 ye
ar.

”  
 HiB

 ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 ru

nn
ing

 th
e I

nv
est

ing
 fo

r S
uc

ces
s p

rog
ram

me
 an

d h
as 

ach
iev

ed
 ex

cel
len

t r
esu

lts
 

- t
o d

ate
 su

pp
ort

ed
 cli

en
ts 

to 
rai

se 
£5

70
,00

0. 
 Th

ere
 ha

ve
 be

en
 57

 cli
en

ts 
wit

h 1
-1 

me
nto

rin
g 

sup
po

rt t
o b

uil
d t

he
ir b

usi
ne

ss 
pla

ns,
 w

hic
h i

n t
urn

 ha
s h

elp
ed

 th
em

 to
 st

art
 th

eir
 bu

sin
ess

 or
 

saf
eg

ua
rd 

it. 
Wh

ich
 in

 tu
rn 

ha
s c

rea
ted

/sa
feg

ua
rde

d j
ob

s. 
 

 Cli
en

t n
um

be
rs 

ha
ve

 no
t re

du
ced

 so
 fa

r, e
ve

n t
ho

ug
h t

he
 st

art
up

 pr
og

ram
me

s f
un

de
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 
LD

A h
av

e c
ea

sed
.  S

till
 ge

ttin
g a

 hi
gh

 le
ve

l o
f a

tte
nd

an
ce 

at 
the

 FR
EE

 ev
en

ts,
 ho

we
ve

r s
om

e o
f th

e 
ch

arg
ea

ble
 w

ork
sho

ps 
are

 no
t a

s h
igh

ly 
att

en
de

d. 
 In

tro
du

ced
 a 

ne
w 

wo
rks

ho
p c

alle
d S

oci
al 

Me
dia

 
& F

ace
bo

ok
 an

d t
his

 on
e s

ee
ms

 to
 be

 th
e m

ost
 po

pu
lar

 at
 th

e m
om

en
t.  

Cu
rre

ntl
y l

oo
kin

g a
t 

up
da

tin
g t

he
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 tr
ain

ing
 to

 gi
ve

 it 
a f

urt
he

r b
oo

st.
 

• 
3 B

e y
ou

r B
oss

 ev
en

ts 
- a

ve
rag

e  
att

en
da

nc
e 1

5 
• 

3 B
usi

ne
ss 

Pla
nn

ing
 – 

av
era

ge
 at

ten
da

nc
e 1

7 
• 

7 B
usi

ne
ss 

ski
lls 

tra
ini

ng
 ev

en
ts 

– a
ve

rag
e a

tte
nd

an
ce 

6 (
the

re 
is a

 ne
ed

 fo
r s

ma
ller

 
nu

mb
ers

 in
 th

ese
 w

ork
sho

ps 
as 

the
y a

re 
mo

re 
tar

ge
ted

) 
• 

Sta
rt 

up
 le

ve
ls a

re 
inc

rea
sin

g d
ue

 to
 HI

B w
ork

 th
rou

gh
 th

e I
nv

est
ing

 fo
r S

uc
ces

s 
(ER

DF
/LB

H f
un

de
d p

roj
ect

).  
 

 All
 Hi

B t
rai

nin
g e

ve
nt 

de
tai

ls h
av

e n
ow

 be
en

 tr
an

spo
sed

 on
to 

Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
 na

tio
na

l w
eb

sit
e. 

HiB
 

ha
s a

lwa
ys 

be
en

 ad
ve

rtis
ing

 in
 th

e H
arr

ow
 Pe

op
le 

an
d h

as 
no

w 
be

en
 ad

ve
rtis

ing
 in

 th
e M

idd
les

ex
 

Jou
rna

l.  
Th

e w
eb

site
 is 

cu
rre

ntl
y i

n t
he

 m
idd

le 
of 

a c
om

ple
te 

ov
erh

au
l a

nd
 w

ill b
e c

om
ple

ted
 by

 
mi

d A
pri

l  -
  lo

ok
ing

 at
 w

ay
s t

o i
nc

rea
se 

hit
s o

n t
he

 w
eb

sit
e i

.e.
 re

cip
roc

al 
link

s w
ith

 su
ita

ble
 

90



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
pa

rtn
ers

 
St
ar
t U

p S
up
po
rt 
for

 Vu
lne

ra
ble

  
DW

P c
on

tra
ct 

cea
sed

 31
st  De

cem
be

r 2
01

0 –
 Th

e d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 se

lec
ted

 Pr
im

es 
ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 
rel

ea
sed

 fo
r t

he
 W

ork
 Pr

og
ram

me
, h

ow
ev

er 
HiB

 w
as 

no
t in

vo
lve

d i
n a

ny
 of

 th
e b

ids
 w

ith
 th

ese
 

pa
rtic

ula
r p

rim
es.

  H
ow

ev
er 

HI
B w

ill b
e l

oo
kin

g t
o b

id 
as 

a s
ub

 co
ntr

act
or 

wit
h t

he
 se

lec
ted

 Pr
im

es.
  

HiB
 is 

loo
kin

g t
o c

rea
te 

ne
w 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s b
y w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 gr
ou

ps
 th

at 
he

lp 
the

 vu
lne

rab
le:

 
me

eti
ng

s a
re 

to 
be

 ar
ran

ge
d. 

Lo
bb
yin

g  
HiB

 st
ill w

ork
s c

los
ely

 w
ith

 Ca
pit

al 
En

ter
pri

se 
an

d t
he

 NF
EA

  
Bu
sin

es
s L
ink

 
  

Bu
sin

es
s L
ink

 in
 Lo

nd
on
 ke

y p
er
for

ma
nc
e 

sta
tis
tic
s f
or
 H
ar
ro
w 
 

    Th
e C

us
to
me

r A
cti
vit
y C

ou
nt
 

       BI
S b

us
ine

ss
 de

ve
lop

me
nt
 pl
an
s 

    BL
L S

er
vic

e f
or
 SM

E’s
 

    

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

 Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
 in

 Lo
nd

on
’s K

PIs
 an

d r
efe

rra
ls f

or 
the

 pe
rio

d e
nd

ing
 

De
cem

be
r 2

01
0 (

to 
Ma

rch
 av

aila
ble

 m
id-

Ap
ril)

. 
 

• 
Th

e B
usi

ne
ss 

Lin
k i

n L
on

do
n k

ey
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce 

sta
ts 

for
 th

e 1
2 m

on
ths

 to
 en

d o
f D

ece
mb

er 
20

10
  

o
 

42
48

 bu
sin

ess
 su

pp
ort

ed
 m

ark
et 

pe
ne

tra
tio

n  
o
 

12
3 b

usi
ne

sse
s s

up
po

rte
d i

nte
nsi

ve
ly 

 
o
 

45
6 b

usi
ne

sse
s s

up
po

rte
d u

nd
er 

the
 ‘C

ust
om

er 
Ac

tiv
ity

’ m
ea

sur
e  

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
ta

tu
s 

Ha
rro

w 
Pa

n 
Lo

nd
on

 
%

 %
 

 Th
e C

ust
om

er 
Ac

tiv
ity

 co
un

t in
clu

de
s a

ll t
ho

se 
wh

o a
tte

nd
 Bu

sin
ess

 Li
nk

 ev
en

ts,
 re

qu
est

 an
d 

rec
eiv

e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 pa

cks
 or

 w
ho

 ar
e b

rok
ere

d o
r r

efe
rre

d t
o o

the
r s

erv
ice

s. 
 It

 do
es 

no
t in

clu
de

 
tho

se 
wh

o r
ece

ive
 in

ten
siv

e s
up

po
rt (

i.e
. B

usi
ne

ss 
Re

vie
ws

).  
Th

e C
A d

ata
 ha

s b
ee

n p
rov

ide
d a

s a
 

spr
ea

dsh
ee

t s
o y

ou
 ca

n m
an

ipu
lat

e a
nd

 an
aly

se 
the

 da
ta.

  
  

• 
A r

ep
ort

 on
 ca

ses
 of

 br
ok

era
ge

 an
d r

efe
rra

l fr
om

 Ap
ril 

to 
De

cem
be

r 2
01

0  
o
 

33
4 i

nst
an

ces
 of

 re
fer

ral
  

 Th
e D

ep
art

me
nt 

of 
Bu

sin
ess

 In
no

va
tio

n a
nd

 Sk
ills

 re
cen

tly
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 a 

pa
pe

r o
utl

ini
ng

 its
 pl

an
s f

or 
de

ve
lop

ing
 bu

sin
ess

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r s
ma

ll f
irm

s o
ve

r th
e n

ex
t tw

o y
ea

rs.
 Th

e p
ap

er 
can

 be
 fo

un
d o

n 
the

 BI
S w

eb
sit

e a
t  B

IG
GE

R, 
BE

TT
ER

 BU
SIN

ES
S -

 Ja
n 2

01
1 .

  T
he

 pa
pe

r in
dic

ate
s t

ha
t th

e r
eg

ion
al 

Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
s w

ill c
ea

se 
to 

pro
vid

e s
erv

ice
s b

y t
he

 en
d o

f N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

1. 
  

 BL
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly

 aw
ait

ing
 ne

ws
 fro

m 
the

 LD
A o

n o
ur 

bu
dg

et 
an

d p
rio

riti
es 

for
 th

e p
eri

od
 fro

m 
Ap

ril 
20

11
.  C

urr
en

t s
erv

ice
s t

o S
ME

s in
 Lo

nd
on

: 
 

• 
Bu

sin
ess

 Li
nk

 in
 Lo

nd
on

 co
nti

nu
es 

to 
sup

po
rt a

ll s
ize

s a
nd

 st
ag

es 
of 

bu
sin

ess
 bu

t w
ith

 an
 

inc
rea

sed
 pr

op
ort

ion
 of

 5 
an

d 1
0 p

lus
 em

plo
ye

e c
om

pa
nie

s  
• 

Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
 Ad

vis
ers

 w
ill p

rov
ide

 bu
sin

ess
 re

vie
ws

 an
d a

cti
on

 pl
an

s f
or 

bu
sin

ess
es 

91



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
ide

nti
fie

d w
ith

 th
e p

ote
nti

al 
to 

gro
w 

 
• 

Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
 is 

pro
vid

ing
 a 

ser
ies

 of
 Re

ad
y t

o G
row

 w
ork

sho
ps

 th
at 

foc
us 

on
 he

lpi
ng

 
en

tre
pre

ne
urs

 w
ho

 w
an

t to
 de

ve
lop

 gr
ow

th 
pla

ns 
for

 th
eir

 bu
sin

ess
 - s

ee
 at

tac
he

d b
roc

hu
re 

for
 de

tai
ls o

r fo
llow

 th
e l

ink
 to

 th
e w

eb
 pa

ge
 Bu

sin
ess

 Li
nk

 in
 Lo

nd
on

 Re
ad

y t
o G

row
 

Wo
rks

ho
ps 

 
• 

Bu
sin

ess
 Li

nk
 in

 Lo
nd

on
 w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 de

live
r t

he
 fir

st 
tw

o S
tar

tin
g a

 Bu
sin

ess
 w

ork
sho

ps 
– “

Is 
it f

or 
Me

” a
nd

 “G
ett

ing
 th

e B
asi

cs 
Rig

ht”
 – 

de
tai

ls o
n t

he
 Bu

sin
ess

 Li
nk

 w
eb

sit
e a

t 
Bu

sin
ess

 Li
nk

 in
 Lo

nd
on

 St
art

up
 W

ork
sho

ps 
 

• 
Bro

ke
rag

e r
em

ain
s k

ey
 to

 th
e s

erv
ice

 an
d w

e a
re 

ke
en

 to
 w

ork
 w

ith
 yo

u t
o e

nsu
re 

we
 ha

ve
 

cap
tur

ed
 al

l lo
cal

 bu
sin

ess
 su

pp
ort

.  A
tta

ch
ed

 is 
the

 se
rvi

ce 
tem

pla
te 

we
 as

k l
oca

l se
rvi

ce  
pro

vid
ers

 to
 co

mp
let

e. 
 

• 
Th

e F
oru

m 
– w

ww
.bu

sin
ess

lin
kg

ate
wa

y.c
o.u

k c
on

tin
ue

s t
o b

e a
 us

efu
l in

for
ma

tio
n s

ou
rce

 
an

d w
e e

nc
ou

rag
e p

art
ne

rs 
to 

use
 it 

to 
pro

mo
te 

the
ir e

ve
nts

, s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 ne

ws
.  E

ve
nts

 
can

 be
 ea

sily
 up

loa
de

d f
rom

 th
e F

oru
m 

to 
the

 na
tio

na
l B

usi
ne

ss 
Lin

k w
eb

site
.  Y

ou
r s

up
po

rt 
wit

h t
his

 w
ou

ld 
als

o b
e w

elc
om

ed
.  

 
Ta
ilo
re
d B

us
ine

ss
 Su

pp
or
t 

Sh
op

4S
up

pp
ort

 la
un

ch
ed

 op
en

ing
 up

 ne
w 

ma
rke

ts 
to 

bu
sin

ess
es 

su
pp

ort
ing

 di
sab

led
 pe

op
le 

an
d 

old
er 

pe
op

le.
 Pr

om
ote

d a
t b

usi
ne

ss 
ev

en
ts 

an
d v

ia 
Ne

ws
let

ter
. 

Sm
art

 W
ork

s p
rov

idi
ng

 en
erg

y e
ffic

ien
cy 

ad
vic

e t
o S

ME
’s. 

 
Ga

tew
ay

 As
ia 

– s
up

po
rtin

g b
usi

ne
sse

s w
ish

ing
 to

 en
ter

 As
ian

 m
ark

ets
, w

ork
sho

p d
eliv

ere
d o

n 
do

ing
 Bu

sin
ess

 w
ith

 In
dia

..  
W
or
k S

tre
am

 C2
 

So
cia

l E
nt
er
pr
ise

 – 
Le

ad
 Vi

cto
ria

 Is
aa

cs
 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad

 
Cr
ed
it u

nio
n 

Ea
rth

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ha
rro

w 
He
alt
hy
 Li
vin

g C
en
tre

 
De

ve
lop

ed
 an

d r
olle

d o
ut 

M4
Mo

ne
y C

red
it U

nio
n i

n H
arr

ow
.  

Fa
cili

tat
ed

 tr
an

sfe
r o

f E
art

h P
roj

ect
 to

 th
e S

ha
w 

Tru
st 

Pro
vis

ion
 of

 on
go

ing
 ca

sh 
flo

w 
sup

po
rt t

o H
HL

C a
nd

 en
ab

lin
g t

he
 m

erg
er 

wit
h H

AD
, th

ere
by

 
en

sur
ing

 its
 co

nti
nu

ed
 pr

ese
nc

e i
n t

he
 Hi

gh
 St

ree
t.  

 
W
or
k S

tre
am

 D
 

He
lpi

ng
 lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es
 by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 th
em

 te
ch

nic
al 

su
pp

or
t, 
su
pp

ly 
ch

ain
 de

ve
lop

me
nt
 an

d m
ar
ke

t 
inf

or
ma

tio
n  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   L
ea

d –
 Ba

li R
ai 

 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad

 
Lo
ca
l p
ro
cu
re
me

nt
 

� 
Tra

ini
ng

 an
d c

ap
aci

ty 
bu

ildi
ng

 fo
r S

ME
s 

an
d t

he
 vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity

 se
cto

r 
 

ED
/S
up
ply

 Lo
nd
on

 
Su

pp
ort

ing
 bu

sin
ess

es 
to 

reg
ist

er 
on

 20
12

 Co
mp

ete
Fo

r w
eb

sit
e a

nd
 Co

ntr
act

 Fi
dn

er 
wh

ich
 re

pla
ces

 
Su

pp
ly2

Go
v. 

Ch
am

pio
nin

g H
arr

ow
 ev

en
t h

eld
 15

th
 Fe

bru
ary

.  
Pro

mo
tin

g u
se 

of 
bu

sin
ess

 on
 Ha

rro
w 

dir
ect

ory
 fo

r p
roc

ure
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 

92



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
 

Ch
an
ge
 pr
oc
ur
em

en
t g
uid

an
ce
 to
 

en
co
ur
ag
e m

or
e l
oc
al 
pr
oc
ur
em

en
t 

� 
Ne

w 
Bu

ye
r’s

 gu
ide

 
� 

Sh
op

 Lo
cal

 
 � 

Co
mm

un
ity

 be
ne

fit 
cla

use
 fo

r h
igh

 en
d 

con
tra

cts
 

� 
Mo

nit
or 

pro
gre

ss 
of 

ne
w 

gu
ida

nc
e 

ED
/P
ro
cu
re
me

nt
 

La
un

ch
ed

 ex
ten

siv
ely

 am
on

gst
 Co

un
cil 

bu
ye

rs 
an

d c
on

tin
ua

lly 
pro

mo
ted

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

Sh
op

 Lo
cal

 
cam

pa
ign

. 
ED

 ha
s w

ork
ed

 w
ith

 Pr
ocu

rem
en

t a
nd

 So
cia

l C
are

 to
 ta

rge
t lo

cal
 bu

sin
ess

es 
for

 lo
w 

lev
el 

con
tra

cts
 

e.g
. p

roc
ure

me
nt 

of 
wh

ite
 go

od
s f

or 
ch

ild
ren

’s C
en

tre
.  

Als
o p

rom
oti

ng
 su

pp
ly 

ch
ain

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
via

 en
ga

ge
me

nt 
wit

h P
roc

ure
me

nt 
an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f a
 

ne
w 

Pro
cu

rem
en

t O
pe

rat
ing

 M
od

el.
  

Im
pr

ov
e a

cc
es

s t
o i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
Im

pro
ve

 pr
ocu

rem
en

t w
eb

 pa
ge

 to
 en

sur
e 

vis
ibi

lity
 fo

r a
ll t

en
de

rs 
 

Te
mp

lat
es 

are
 in

 pl
ace

 
On

go
ing

  
  

De
ve

lop
 an

 on
 lin

e P
re 

Qu
alif

ica
tio

n 
Qu

est
ion

na
ire
 

Cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d. 

 
Bu
sin

es
s D

ire
cto

ry
 

� 
Dis

trib
ute

 
� 

Ma
rke

t in
ter

na
lly 

an
d e

xte
rna

lly 
� 

De
ve

lop
 se

con
d e

dit
ion
 

ED
/B
ur
ro
ws

 
On

go
ing

 pr
om

oti
on

 of
 bu

sin
ess

 di
rec

tor
y -

 cu
rre

ntl
y t

arg
eti

ng
 an

d s
up

po
rtin

g m
ore

 bu
sin

ess
es 

to 
reg

ist
er.

 Di
str

ibu
ted

 to
 ba

nk
s. 

Be
gu

n s
eco

nd
 ed

itio
n o

f b
usi

ne
ss 

dir
ect

ory
 – 

pu
blic

ati
on

 Ap
ril 

20
11

 
Me

et
 th
e B

uy
er
 

� 
Pa

rtic
ipa

te 
as 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

� 
Or

ga
nis

e e
ve

nt 
wit

h S
up

ply
 Lo

nd
on

  
 

ED
/S
up
ply

 Lo
nd
on
 

Un
de

rst
an

din
g P

ub
lic 

Pro
cu

rem
en

t E
ve

nt 
A M

TB
 pr

e-e
ve

nt 
wa

s h
eld

 on
 29

 Se
pte

mb
er 

foc
uss

ing
 on

 ho
w 

to 
bid

 fo
r p

ub
lic 

sec
tor

 co
ntr

act
s. 

16
3 p

eo
ple

 fro
m 

11
6 H

arr
ow

 bu
sin

ess
es 

cam
e t

og
eth

er 
to 

fin
d o

ut 
ho

w 
to 

win
 ne

w 
con

tra
cts

 fo
r 

the
ir c

om
pa

nie
s. 

 20
th

 O
cto

be
r: 

Ha
rro

w 
ho

ste
d i

ts 
firs

t M
TB

 ev
en

t o
rga

nis
ed

 in
 co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 Su

pp
ly 

Lo
nd

on
 an

d 
Bu

sin
ess

 to
 Bu

sin
ess

. V
ery

 su
cce

ssf
ul 

tur
no

ut 
an

d w
ell 

sup
po

rte
d b

y b
uy

ers
. 1

26
 pe

op
le 

att
en

de
d, 

rep
res

en
tin

g 1
07

 Ha
rro

w 
com

pa
nie

s. 
10

0%
 of

 bu
ye

rs 
sai

d t
he

y h
ad

 ac
hie

ve
d t

he
ir m

ain
 pu

rpo
se 

of 
att

en
din

g; 
93

% 
of 

sup
pli

ers
 sa

id 
the

y f
elt

 th
ey

 ha
d a

 ch
an

ce 
of 

ge
ttin

g r
esu

ltin
g b

usi
ne

ss 
fro

m 
the

 ev
en

t; 9
3%

 sa
id 

the
y f

ou
nd

 it 
use

ful
 an

d w
ou

ld 
att

en
d a

ga
in.

  
 

En
su
re
 su

pp
or
t p
ro
vid

ed
 fo
r v
olu

nt
ee
r 

se
cto

r a
s w

ell
 as

 SM
Es
 

Re
pre

sen
ted

 at
 bo

th 
ev

en
ts 

ab
ov

e. 
W
or
k S

tre
am

 E 
Ma

kin
g s

ur
e b

us
ine

ss
es
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to

 th
e l

an
d a

nd
 pr

em
ise

s t
he

y n
ee

d  

93



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad

 
Ha
ve
 pr
oa
cti
ve
 po

lic
y i
n p

lac
e 

Co
mp

let
e r

ev
iew

 of
 re

tai
l su

rve
y 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
Co

mp
let

e r
ev

iew
 of

 em
plo

ym
en

t la
nd

 st
ud

y 
HC

/L
DF
 

Fin
al 

ve
rsi

on
 re

cei
ve

d D
ece

mb
er 

20
10

 
De

ve
lop

 pr
oa

cti
ve

 po
licy

 in
 LD

F c
ore

 st
rat

eg
y 

pre
fer

red
 op

tio
n 

HC
/L
DF
 

Ha
rro

w 
an

d W
ea

lds
ton

e I
nte

nsi
fica

tio
n A

rea
 - A

rea
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
: P

res
en

tat
ion

 an
d C

on
sid

era
tio

n o
f 

Str
ate

gic
 O

pti
on

s c
on

sid
ere

d b
y M

ajo
r D

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
Pa

ne
l 6

/1/
20

11
 

Ide
nti

fy 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 st

rat
eg

ic 
pro

pe
rtie

s &
 W

LB
 to

 pr
om

ote
 av

aila
ble

 sit
es 

HC
/E
D 
 

To
 be

 re
vie

we
d f

ollo
win

g c
ha

ng
es 

at 
WL

B. 
Inv

est
iga

te 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 w

ork
 w

ith
 ow

ne
rs 

an
d a

ge
nts

 to
 re

du
ce 

em
pty

 of
fice

 sp
ace

 
HC

/E
D 

Po
p-u

p s
ho

ps 
be

ing
 in

ve
sti

ga
ted

 to
 re

du
ce 

nu
mb

er 
of 

em
pty

 pr
em

ise
s in

 Ha
rro

w 
Ha

rro
w 

no
t e

lig
ible

 fo
r G

ov
ern

me
nt 

em
pty

 sh
op

s in
itia

tiv
e f

un
din

g (
In 

Lo
nd

on
 on

ly 
Ha

ckn
ey

 is)
.  

 On
go

ing
 di

scu
ssi

on
s w

ith
 Un

i o
f W

est
mi

nst
er 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

use
s f

or 
va

can
t s

ho
ps.

 
 No

 pr
og

res
s d

ue
 to

 un
wil

lin
gn

ess
 of

 fre
eh

old
 ow

ne
rs 

to 
allo

w 
tem

po
rar

y u
ses

 be
cau

se 
of 

ins
ura

nc
e/l

ea
se 

an
d o

the
r c

ost
 im

plic
ati

on
s 

 No
rth

 Ha
rro

w 
pro

file
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d c
irc

ula
ted

 to
 lo

cal
 ag

en
ts 

to 
pro

mo
te 

dis
tric

t c
en

tre
 to

 
po

ten
tia

l o
ccu

pie
rs.

 
 

In
cu
ba
tio
n S

pa
ce
 

Pu
rsu

e a
s m

ark
et 

im
pro

ve
s 

� 
Ide

nti
fy 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 w
ay

s f
orw

ard
 an

d 
pu

rsu
e +

 lo
ng

er 
ter

m 
tak

e f
orw

ard
 at

 Ho
ne

yp
ot 

La
ne
 

ED
/H
IB
/H
C 

Sp
eci

fica
tio

n f
or 

op
era

tor
 at

 Ho
ne

yp
ot 

La
ne

 an
d e

xp
res

sio
n o

f in
ter

est
 fo

r O
pe

rat
or 

ag
ree

d f
or 

Ho
ne

yp
ot 

La
ne

 
   

W
or
k S

tre
am

 F 
Pr
ov

idi
ng

 a 
su
pp

or
tiv

e R
eg

ula
to
ry 

Fr
am

ew
or
k  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   L

ea
d –

 Ba
li R

ai 
Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad

 
Im
pr
ov
e b
us
ine
ss
 en
ga
ge
me

nt
 

Ho
st 

ser
ies

 of
 bu

sin
ess

 ev
en

ts 
On

go
ing

 ev
en

ts 
he

ld 
as 

pa
rt 

of 
Ch

am
pio

nin
g H

arr
ow

. S
ee

 al
so 

Ga
tew

ay
 As

ia 
an

d M
ee

t th
e B

uy
er.

 
Or

ga
nis

ed
 a 

Su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 w

ork
sho

p F
rid

ay
 17

th
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
 10

am
 12

.30
pm

, C
ivic

 Ce
ntr

e; 
to 

be
 ru

n b
y B

ov
is l

en
d L

ea
se.

 
Ch

am
pio

nin
g H

arr
ow

 ev
en

t h
eld

 15
th

 Fe
bru

ary
 at

 Av
an

ta 
in 

con
jun

cti
on

 w
ith

 Lo
nd

on
 Bu

sin
ess

 
Ne

tw
ork

 to
 fo

cu
s o

n u
pco

mi
ng

 co
ntr

act
s. 

 
En

sur
e A

cce
ss 

Ha
rro

w 
an

d C
ou

nc
il d

ep
art

me
nt 

On
go

ing
 pr

om
oti

on
 of

 th
is (

Ha
rro

w 
pe

op
le,

 w
eb

site
, B

usi
ne

ss 
Ne

ws
let

ter
) 

94



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
reg

ula
rly

 br
ief

ed
 on

 sm
all 

bu
sin

ess
 ra

te 
rel

ief
 et

c 
 Re
ce
ss
ion

 Is
su
es
 

En
sur

e r
eg

ula
tor

s –
 ar

e h
elp

ing
 bu

sin
ess

es 
wh

ere
 po

ssi
ble

  

RB
G A

cti
on

 up
da

tes
 

Bu
sin
es
s C
ha
rte
r  

De
ve

lop
 Ha

rro
w 

Ve
rsi

on
 of

 Bu
sin

ess
 Ch

art
er 

� 
Ga

in 
bu

y i
n a

cro
ss 

the
 Co

un
cil 

an
d 

ne
go

tia
te 

sta
nd

ard
s 

Co
mm

itm
en

t to
 Bu

sin
ess

 ad
op

ted
 as

 Fl
ag

shi
p A

cti
on

.  
CS

B b
rie

fed
.  

Co
mm

itm
en

t p
rod

uc
ed

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
. 

 
W
or
k S

tre
am

 G
 

Pr
om

ot
ing

 us
e o

f lo
ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es
 an

d f
ac
ilit

ies
 

Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad

 
 

 
Bu
sin
es
s I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 D
ist
ric
ts 

� 
Ma

int
ain

 re
gu

lar
 m

ee
tin

gs 
of 

Bo
ard

 
� 

Pro
ces

s o
f im

ple
me

nti
ng

 vo
te 

is b
ein

g 
pla

nn
ed

 
� 

Fu
rth

er 
fun

din
g t

o b
e i

de
nti

fie
d  

Ide
nti

fy 
ne

w 
me

mb
ers

 to
 st

ren
gth

en
 BI

D B
oa

rd 

ED
/S
ha
do
w 
Bid

 Bo
ar
d 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

Re
vie

w 
de

cid
ed

 to
 pr

og
res

s B
ID

 vo
te.

 
Ag

ree
d t

o e
mp

loy
 de

dic
ate

d p
ers

on
 on

 pa
rt t

im
e b

asi
s t

hro
ug

h t
he

 BI
D C

om
pa

ny
 to

 en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 

bu
sin

ess
es 

in 
6 m

on
ths

 up
 to

 BI
D v

ote
. 

Se
cti

on
 10

6 m
on

ey
 id

en
tifi

ed
 as

 po
ten

tia
l so

urc
e. 

To
 be

 ag
ree

d t
hro

ug
h T

ow
n C

en
tre

 Fo
rum

 an
d 

Sh
ad

ow
 Bi

d B
oa

rd.
 

 
Sh
op
 Lo
ca
l  

Su
pp

ort
 pr

om
oti

on
 

Pro
mo

tio
n d

istr
ict

 ce
ntr

es 
in 

Ha
rro

w 
Pe

op
le.

  
Pro

po
sal

 to
 es

tab
lish

 di
str

ict
 ce

ntr
e p

art
ne

rsh
ips

 ac
cep

ted
.   

 
Ha
rro
w 
To
wn
 Ce

nt
re
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt
  

Co
mp

let
e T

ow
n c

en
tre

 De
sig

n S
PD
 

Ce
ntr

al 
Are

a G
row

th 
Stu

dy
 an

d A
rea

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

. T
his

 w
ill p

rov
ide

 a 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d d

esi
gn

 st
rat

eg
y 

for
 th

e w
ho

le 
We

ald
sto

ne
/To

wn
 Ce

ntr
e a

rea
.  

Tim
efr

am
e: 

 
Ma

ste
rpl

an
 co

mp
let

ed
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
11

 
Are

a A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 to

 be
 pr

od
uc

ed
 Sp

rin
g 2

01
1 –

 se
e W

ork
 St

rea
m 

E 
De

ve
lop

 co
nta

cts
 w

ith
 co

mm
erc

ial 
ag

en
ts 
 

Ex
plo

rin
g v

iab
ilit

y o
f a

n a
rt 

in 
em

pty
 sh

op
 w

ind
ow

s p
roj

ect
.  

Fo
llow

ing
 di

rec
t c

on
tac

t w
ith

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ag

en
ts,

 th
e c

ost
 vs

 be
ne

fits
 to

 la
nd

lor
ds 

is n
ot 

con
sid

ere
d s

uff
icie

nt 
to 

pro
cee

d w
ith

 th
e p

roj
ect

. 
 

Lo
bb
yin
g f
or
 In
ve
stm

en
t i
n 

Re
gio

ns
 

En
sur

e t
he

 O
ute

r L
on

do
n C

om
mi

ssi
on

 su
pp

ort
s 

me
tro

po
lita

n t
ow

n c
en

tre
s 

Co
un

cil 
en

do
rse

d W
est

 Lo
nd

on
 Al

lian
ce 

an
d L

on
do

n C
ou

nc
il’s

 su
bm

iss
ion

. O
ng

oin
g d

ire
ct 

dis
cu

ssi
on

s w
ith

 GL
A o

n r
ev

ise
d L

on
do

n P
lan

.  
Ha

rro
w 

OL
C r

esp
on

se 
Ma

yo
r a

nn
ou

nc
es 

£5
0m

 O
ute

r L
on

do
n F

un
d f

or 
the

 re
ne

wa
l o

f to
wn

 ce
ntr

es 
 

 

95



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Di
str
ict
 Ce

nt
re
s S

us
ta
ina

bil
ity
 

Tra
de

rs 
As

soc
iat

ion
 Su

pp
ort
 

As
ses

s v
iab

ilit
y o

f d
ist

ric
t c

en
tre

s t
hro

ug
h L

EA
 pr

oce
ss.

  
Pro

jec
t I

nit
iat

ion
 Do

cu
me

nt 
dra

fte
d a

nd
 to

 be
 ag

ree
d b

y P
ort

fol
io 

Ho
lde

r N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

0 
No

rth
 Ha

rro
w 

ag
ree

d a
s f

irs
t D

ist
ric

t c
en

tre
 to

 be
 su

pp
ort

ed
.  

Qu
est

ion
na

ire
 cir

cu
lat

ed
 to

 bu
sin

ess
es 

in 
No

rth
 Ha

rro
w 

De
cem

be
r 2

01
0 

Tw
o m

ee
tin

gs 
he

ld 
wit

h l
oca

l b
usi

ne
sse

s a
nd

 co
un

cill
ors

 (1
7th

 Ja
nu

ary
 an

d 2
1st  Fe

bru
ary

) t
o d

eci
de

 
wa

y f
orw

ard
. 

Bu
sin

ess
 on

ly 
me

eti
ng

 he
ld 

on
 28

th
 M

arc
h t

o a
gre

e d
raf

t a
cti

on
 pl

an
. 

Pro
po

sal
s o

f N
ort

h H
arr

ow
 Sh

op
pin

g P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
cu

rre
ntl

y b
ein

g d
ev

elo
pe

d. 
 

W
or
k S

tre
am

 H
 

Pr
om

ot
ion

 of
 To

ur
ism

  
Ke
y A

cti
vit
y a

nd
 su

b-
ac
tiv
iti
es

 
Pr
og
re
ss
 – 
Le
ad
 – 
Pe
nd
ing

 ap
po
int
me

nt
 of
 To

ur
ism

 O
ffi
ce
r 

Ne
w 
To
ur
ism

 St
ra
te
gy
  

 
Im
ple
me

nt
 Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

� 
Su
pp
or
tin
g b

us
ine

ss
 in
 th
e r
ec
es
sio

n  
Cre

ate
 clo

ser
 lin

ks 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 pr
iva

te,
 th

e 
vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 th
ird

 se
cto

r w
ith

 re
ga

rd 
to 

the
 

con
fer

en
ce,

 m
ee

tin
gs 

an
d e

ve
nts

 se
cto

r 

Th
e W

est
 Ho

use
 an

d H
ea

th 
Ro

bin
son

 M
use

um
 Tr

ust
 op

en
ed

. 
 Th

e c
om

ple
x w

as 
op

en
ed

 w
ith

 a 
hig

hly
 su

cce
ssf

ul 
cer

em
on

y, 
wit

ne
sse

d b
y c

los
e 

on
 10

00
 sp

ect
ato

rs 
on

 th
e 2

0th
. J

un
e. 

 Th
e C

afe
, D

ais
ys 

in 
the

 Pa
rk,

 ha
d a

lre
ad

y o
pe

ne
d 3

 w
ee

ks 
ea

rlie
r. T

his
 

fac
ilit

y h
as 

be
en

 ve
ry 

we
ll p

atr
on

ise
d, 

an
d d

uri
ng

 th
e l

ast
 tw

o w
ee

k-e
nd

s, 
up

to 
12

 st
aff

 ha
ve

 be
en

 em
plo

ye
d t

o m
ee

t th
e d

em
an

d. 
 Th

ese
 re

pre
sen

t 1
2 j

ob
s, 

alb
eit

 no
t a

ll f
ull

 tim
e. 

 Ma
rch

 20
11

 Ha
rro

w 
ev

en
ts 

an
d v

en
ue

s p
rom

ote
d t

o V
isit

 Lo
nd

on
 fo

r in
clu

sio
n i

n C
ult

ura
l E

ve
nts

 
Dia

ry 
for

 20
12

 
Sk
ills

 de
ve
lop

me
nt

  
 

Sta
nm

ore
 Co

lleg
e i

s b
ase

d a
t th

e C
ivic

 Ce
ntr

e O
ne

 St
op

 Sh
op

 on
 a 

we
ek

ly 
ba

sis
, p

rov
idi

ng
 ad

vic
e 

an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 on
 vo

cat
ion

al 
tra

ini
ng

 an
d S

kill
s f

or 
Lif

e p
rog

ram
me

s t
o H

arr
ow

 re
sid

en
ts 

20
12
 Vo

lun
tee

rin
g: 

De
ve

lop
 vo

lun
tee

rin
g o

pp
ort

un
itie

s in
 th

e 
tou

ris
m 

sec
tor

 as
 pa

rt o
f 2

01
2 a

cti
vit

ies
 

 

20
12
 Ch

am
pio

nin
g H

ar
ro
w 

de
ve
lop

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r H

ar
ro
w 

bu
sin

es
se
s t
o b

en
efi
t f
ro
m 
th
e e

ve
nt
 

25
 bu

sin
ess

es 
ad

vis
ed

 on
 ho

w 
to 

reg
ist

er 
on

 Co
mp

ete
4, 

an
d t

he
 re

ma
ini

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 on
 th

e 
Oly

mp
ic s

ite
 on

 15
th

 Fe
bru

ary
 at

 Av
an

ta 
in 

the
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e. 

   

96


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	9 Chair's Report
	10 INFORMATION REPORT:  Capital Governance and Monitoring
	GARM Information_Report_Capital 280611V4
	2011-12 Capital Programme Approvals - Summary for GARM, 28/06/2011 Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee
	Capital Implementation Plan 150611 GARM version

	12 Progress against the Economic Development Strategy Action Plan 2010/11
	App A - Sustainability Review-Economic Development


